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Director’s Statement

ESRE

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS BREE
Year Year
ended ended
31 December 31 December
2020 2019
%ﬁ?—_ HE
—EZEH —EF—JUE
+=A=+—-8B +ZA=+—H
LFE 1R
Financial Performance (HK$'000) Bi#&®RIE (F#E )
Revenue A 478,321 459,109
Gross profit/(loss) EH (EE1R) 8,096 (52,556)
Gross profit/(loss) margin EH (EtH) % 1.7% (11.4%)
Profit/(loss) attributable to owners B, R A N REAS
of the parent A (1) 302,029 (905,423)
31 December 31 December
2020 2019
—EBEHF SR
+=A=+—-8 +ZHA=+—H
Financial Position (HK$'000) B#EMRR (F&T)
Cash and cash equivalents B4 R S%EY 49,749 64,777
Goodwill (Note 1) PR (st = 16,557
Intangible assets (Note 1) L EE (MEE1) — =
Total assets W E 255,821 439,095
Liability component of AR R AR SR
convertible bonds (Note 1) BAEER > (BEE1) 114,189 386,333
Promissory notes (Note 1) AL (BHE) 289,883 553,985
Total liabilities MAMA 934,750 1,413,850
Net liabilities AETE (678,929) (974,755)
Current ratio (Note 2) WED R (K 5E2) 0.5 0.3
Gearing ratio (Note 3) BE AR (MEE3) N/A TE A N/A A%
Return on equity (Note 4) JBE A [ % (Fffk4) N/A RiE A N/A 3
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Notes:

1.

Goodwill and intangible assets were derived from the automotive
engines business while the liability portion of convertible bonds
and promissory notes were issued in prior years.

Current ratio is calculated by dividing current assets by current
liabilities as at the end of the reporting period.

Gearing ratio is calculated by dividing the total of interest-bearing
borrowings, liability component of convertible bonds and
promissory notes less cash and cash equivalent by the total equity
as at the end of the reporting period and multiplied by 100%. The
gearing ratio as at 31 December 2020 is not available because the
Group reported a negative equity attributable to owners of the
parent as at 31 December 2020.

The calculation of return on equity is based on the profit
attributable to owners of the parent during the period divided by
the ending equity attributable to owners of the parent as at the
end of the reporting period and multiplied by 100%. The return
on equity for the year ended 31 December is not available because
the Group reported a negative equity attributable to owners of the
parent as at 31 December 2020.
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Director’s Statement
EEHE

Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the board of directors (the “Board”) of Bisu
Technology Group International Limited (the “Company”), |
present the annual results of the Company and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the “Group”) for the year ended 31

December 2020.

BUSINESS OVERVIEW

For the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group recorded a
consolidated revenue amounted to approximately HK$478.3
million as compared to that of 2019 of approximately HK$459.1
million,
increase. The profit for the year ended 31 December 2020
attributable to owners amounted to approximately HK$302
million whereas the loss for the year ended 31 December 2019
attributable to owners amounted to approximately HK$905.4
million.

representing approximately HK$19.2 million or 4.2%

CIVIL ENGINEERING AND CONSTRUCTION
BUSINESS

As of 31 December 2020, the Group had 12 significant
projects in progress. 3 of them were building construction and
maintenance projects while the remaining were civil engineering
construction projects. As of 31 December 2020, the total
contract sum and the total outstanding values of the Group's
substantial projects in progress were approximately HK$536.6
million and HK$197.4 million respectively (2019: approximately
HK$566.1 million and HK$300.1 million respectively).

The revenue generated from the Civil Engineering and
Construction Business was approximately HK$475 million for the
year ended 31 December 2020 (2019: approximately HK$378
million), represented approximately 99.4% of the total revenue
of the Group (2019: approximately 82.3%). For the year ended
31 December 2020, the gross profit of the Civil Engineering and
Construction Business was approximately HK$15 million (2019:
gross loss of approximately HK$20 million), representing a gross
profit margin of approximately 3.1% (2019: gross loss margin of
approximately 5.3%,).

6 Bisu Technology Group International Limited HZERHE 4 [H 5 F5 A5 BR A
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AUTOMOTIVE ENGINES BUSINESS
The Group recorded a stagnancy performance of the Automotive
Engines Business for the year ended 31 December 2020.

For the year ended 31 December 2020, revenue generated from
the Automotive Engines Business was approximately HK$3 million
(2019: approximately HK$81 million), represented approximately
0.6% of the total revenue of the Group (2019: approximately
17.7%). For the year ended 31 December 2020, the gross loss of
the Automotive Engines Business was approximately HK$6 million
(2019: approximately HK$32 million).

In 2020, the operation of the Automotive Engines Business has
shrunk significantly with no new orders placed by its customers
and no new products manufactured. Its revenue dropped
significantly for the year ended 31 December 2020, with the
minimal revenue attributable to this segment mainly consisting
of delivering inventory manufactured in 2019 and providing
replacement parts. Full impairment losses were made on the
property, plant and equipment and goodwill of the Automotive
Engines Business during 2020.

The company considered that the business prospect of the
Automotive Engines Business was highly uncertain and not
promising. In light of all the above, in January 2021, the Group
proceeded and completed the disposal of the Automotive
Engines Business. The Board is in the view that the Disposal is
fair and reasonable and in the interest of the Group and the
Shareholders as a whole as the Disposal would improve the
financial position of the Group.

Director’s Statement
EERE
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Director’s Statement
EEHE

OUTLOOK

The Proposed Change of Company Name to “China Carbon
Neutral Development Group Limited B 6 HF 58 Ji 45 3 4 BR 2%
""" will better reflect the new business plans of the Company
and its direction of future business development. The Group
believes that the proposed new name of the Company will
provide the Company with a new corporate image which will
enable the Group to better identify itself and capture more
potential business opportunities for the future development of
carbon neutral.

Looking ahead, all Directors are cautious about the prospect of
the Group’s operation an business in 2021 and will continue
to search for opportunities to enhance the current business
segments, and explore new business segment which includes
carbon neutral business.

On 10 March 2021, the Group has entered into a strategic
cooperation agreement on carbon neutral development with
China Eco Development Association to achieve the strategic goal
of “China’s commitment to peak its carbon emissions by 2030
and become carbon neutral by 2060” by Chinese leader made
before the UN General Assembly. The Group believes that the
ongoing new projects will help to improve financial performance
and strive to maximise the interests of the shareholders. The
Company will make further announcement(s) in relation to the
above matters as and when appropriate.

APPRECIATION

Finally, on behalf of the Board, | would like to take this
opportunity to express my sincere gratitude and appreciation
to our management team and staff for their dedication
commitment, as well as all of our customers, suppliers,
shareholders, business partners and associates for their support
and encouragement to the Group.

Chen Xinwei
Executive Director
Hong Kong, 29 March 2021
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Summary of Significant Contracts on Hand

EXRFHEEHIBE

The following table summarises our significant contracts on N RMHEKRMP T _FLF+_H=+—
hand for the civil engineering and construction business as at 31 HAEB T A TR KEEEHWERTFEHE

December 2020: # -
Particulars of the contract Contract sum
ERFEE =¥ kx|
HK$ million
A E T
Roads and drainage works ERREBIRE
Provision of external cable construction works PEAEF A B TR & A A -
and outside telecommunications plant PREE RS (Note 1)
maintenance services (BFEE1)
Provision of Barrier-free Access Facilities for 1 T B SR ) i 4 e s A . — 203
Highway Structures — Phase 3 Contract 8 =W M A
Provision of Barrier-free Access Facilities for 1 L B S ) 4L e s R A R — 173
Highway Structures — Phase 3 Contract 9 FHEWE LAY (Note 2)
(Bf5E2)
Utilities civil engineering works AAZBELIARIRE
Term contract for provision of civil engineering AL T R A% SO B R 2 -
works for the telecommunication networks TARTHEEMEH (Note 1)
and associated facilities (K1)
Provision of integrated field works for field AL KLA, KLB & NTC I s 45 & 445 =
services in KLA, KLB & NTC region W AR (Note 1)
(B$5ET)
Construction and Maintenance of Trenching/ Frus ~ WO - m Y S AT AT Y —
Cable Laying and Contractual Works in the By T R s MR K (Note 1)
Areas of Hong Kong, Ap Lei Chau, Lamma B TR (BfFzE1)
Island and any Outlying Island
Civil and Building Works for North Point 132-kv  dtff 132 TR 5 B 46 4% BA BN + A & 33

GIS Improvement (Phase 3-Stage 1)

HROE TR (535 — 510 B)

Annual Report 2020 % " EAEAER 9



Summary of Significant Contracts on Hand
EXFHEOHE

Particulars of the contract Contract sum
BRFHE EHEE
HK$ million

[ER- 3P

Improvement Works (Stage 2) for Elevated Cable R 7K Y T SEAE 1 e R TR A A RO TR 8

Trough at Mills and Chong Path, Deep Water Bay ~ (Zf2 [ Ef)

Building construction and maintenance works EFEZEMNRETR

District Term Contract for Maintenance, JUHE PG [ K VG 5 (@ —
Improvement and Vacant Flat Refurbishment RS ~ 5 R 7 B B B (Note 1)
for Kowloon West, Sai Kung (1) 2020/2022 TREMSREYEL0) (Ffk&E1)

“E R R R

Advance Civil Engineering Works for Public “E - NER R -NELIMAERE 18

Housing Development Projects Batch 9 J2 3% JR 3E H i R TR

(2018-2019)

Construction of superstructure works at H F R R 11U S 4 B b R R AR TR G T 92
sections 4 of Tseung Kwan O Depot Phase |l

Note 1: No contract sum provided in the contracts due to the nature  [ff3:1:  BERFHB S QMR > GRS 4
of the relevant contracts. HUE B HI R

Note 2: Project with a contract sum of HK$340 million being Misr2 © & #4%/4340,000,000% T2 IHH

undertaken by EXCEL-LANON Joint Venture, an unincorporated Ml R A FA 4 — SE A B B
company in which 51% interest is attributable to the Group. R, - H51% MR AR IR -
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BUSINESS REVIEW AND FINANCIAL REVIEW

For the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group was
principally engaged in two business segments, which were (i) civil
engineering works and building construction and maintenance
works (the “Civil Engineering and Construction Business”); and
(ii) development, production and sale of automotive engines (the
“Automotive Engines Business”).

Since late 2019, the Group has witnessed a significant increase
in the hardness of the business environment. From an inside
perspective, the COVID-19 pandemic has continued to cause
a significant challenge to maintain a smooth and effective
operation of the Group. From the perspective of the overall
environment, the pandemic has significantly decreased and
handicapped the economic activities. On the other hand,
the China-US trade war, together with the uncertainty in
governments’ policies on trades and business, remains as a doom
for small or mid-size businesses in Hong Kong and mainland
China. Given such challenges and uncertainties, the Civil
Engineering and Construction Business has managed to record
a stable performance for the year ended 31 December 2020,
while the Automotive Engines Business has encountered practical
difficulty to achieve any improvements.

In January 2021, the Group proceeded and completed the
disposal of the Automotive Engines Business, mainly because that
it failed to make any progress, not mentioning a turnaround,
in its business or financial performances and the slow progress
of the restructuring of some key customers of the Automotive
Engines Business. Following the disposal, the Group has ceased
to be engaged in the Automotive Engines Business.

Then in March 2021, the Company decided to start investing
in the global carbon neutral business (the” Carbon Neutral
Business”), including the acquisition of global forest rights
and related carbon rights, as well as the investment in clean
energy (including solar energy, wind energy, energy storage and
carbon capture and storage) and carbon credit trading and the
development of digital assets of clean energy, to actively echo the
major commitment made by the top Chinese leader in the General
Assembly of the United Nation, which states that China will strive
to achieve the goals of carbon peak in 2030 and carbon neutral
in 2060 and contribute to the objective of responding to global
climate change. The management was positive on the prospects of
the Carbon Neutral Business, and was of the view that it can bring
in a long-term profitability to the Group.

BEEFWR DT

EREEK Y KERE
BE_Z_FE+_A=Z+—HIFF -
A ) A S W R 2R A RIG) ERLE
RIEH U R Fds AR TRE ([ L AT
TR AR ) o GBI -~ A E K E
R BB (DR BEER ) -

HoZFE—JUERUK > AEBBEK TEMN
BRET IR #E g - FMRAE > COVID-19%
15 R 48 27 AN 5 B AR OE F A S0 A AR
W R PR > TR R IR IR S B E MR
b 30 ) K BELGE T A VETE B o S — A
T 2 R 5 O UM A B S KA 2
) BRSO ) RS
A ZERTRA R ATEN o FE 5% 55 Ph ¥k K A e
HF > PARTREEREEEFDREE %
CEEF A= -HIEEEREBEE
B MR EEEEEREREREE > K
AEBUST A -

WFEZ—F—H > KL CHEAT IR 5E R
WERE S ER » FER RN HER R
W 5 2% B oK B B A s £ 8 JR S AT AT
> HREBEHKRERE T EEEFNE
MEERE - NABRLER  AFEHCA
T IR B TS -

HEWR -E =1 AQAREMR
BB R P M ERS ([ M EH ) -
BLAE S A ER AR S A B B A LA B
R (B4F K HE - JAVRE - ff BE A0 B
AR ) Bk E 2 5 DA B 8% J i iR RE IR T
YR o N A B e S N TE TS
K& T EE AR > B B S E B
T R W K TN T AR T B
7 AEEERERELAEERIE -
B HLIE A U BR R AN SE B R SRR > BB A
% ST I AR A AR EL A o
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEERWR DA

BUSINESS REVIEW AND FINANCIAL REVIEW
(Continued)

The abovementioned disposal of the Automotive Engines Business
and the tapping into the Carbon Neutral Business are expected
to make an improvement on the Group’s business and financial
performance, but are not reflected in the financial statements of
the Group for the year ended 31 December 2020.

For the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group recorded a
consolidated revenue of approximately HK$478 million (2019:
approximately HK$459 million). The Group recorded a profit
attributable to owners of the parent of approximately HK$302
million (2019: loss of approximately HK$905 million). The
turnaround from loss to profit is mainly due to:

(i) a turnaround from the gross loss of approximately HK$53
million for the year ended 31 December 2019 to the gross
profit of approximately HK$8 million for the year ended 31
December 2020. Such gross profit was mainly attributable
to the Civil Engineering and Construction Business which
managed to achieve a stable performance for the year
ended 31 December 2020.

(i) a gain from fair value change of approximately HK$293
million and HK$294 million on the convertible bonds and
promissory notes of the Company respectively, whose
terms have been amended to the favour of the Company in
January 2020.

(iii) for the year ended 31 December 2019, the Company
recorded a significant amount of impairment on the
inventories, intangible assets,

receivables which are related to the Automotive Engines
Business. Such impairments in the aggregated amount
of approximately HK$746 million for the year ended 31
December 2019. Such impairment losses have significantly
decreased to approximately HK$203 million for the year
ended 31 December 2020. The impairment losses for the
year ended 31 December 2020 mainly include impairment
losses on inventories, accounts receivable, property, plant
and equipment and goodwill of approximately HK$7
million, HK$152 million, HK$28 million and HK$16 million
respectively.

goodwill and accounts
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BUSINESS REVIEW AND FINANCIAL REVIEW
(Continued)

Basic and diluted earnings per share for the year ended 31
December 2020 were approximately HK$151.0 cents and
HK$84.1 cents respectively (2019: basic and diluted loss per
share of approximately HK$452.7 cents).

Civil Engineering and Construction Business

For the year ended 31 December 2020, the Civil Engineering and
Construction Business managed to record a stable performance,
despite of the grave challenges from the COVID-19 outbreak and
the economic downslope in Hong Kong.

As a main contractor of the contracts awarded to the
Group, the Civil Engineering and Construction Business
offers high value-added services that encompass works from
the procurement of materials and equipment, selection of
sub-contractors to on-site supervision, work progress monitoring
and overall co-ordination of the day-to-day work of projects. All
of the Civil Engineering and Construction Business’ contracts
undertaken for both civil and building construction business were
for customers which are independent third parties, including
certain departments of the Government of Hong Kong, public
utilities companies and private organizations in Hong Kong.

For the year ended 31 December 2020, revenue generated
from the Civil Engineering and Construction Business was
approximately HK$475 million (2019: approximately HK$378
million), represented approximately 99.4% of the total revenue
of the Group (2019: approximately 82.3%). For the year ended
31 December 2020, the gross profit of the Civil Engineering and
Construction Business was approximately HK$15 million (2019:
gross loss of approximately HK$20 million), representing a gross
profit margin of approximately 3.1% (2019: gross loss margin of
approximately 5.3%).

As of 31 December 2020, the Group had 12 significant
projects in progress. 3 of them were building construction and
maintenance projects while the remaining were civil engineering
construction projects. As of 31 December 2020, the total
contract sum and the total outstanding values of the Group's
substantial projects in progress were approximately HK$536.6
million and HK$197.4 million respectively (2019: approximately
HK$566.1 million and HK$300.1 million respectively).
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEERWR DA

BUSINESS REVIEW AND FINANCIAL REVIEW
(Continued)

Civil Engineering and Construction Business (Continued)
Despite the tough operating environment in Hong Kong,
including the down-sloping local economy and the difficulty
to maintain a continuous and effective operation under the
safety concerns on the workers under the COVID-19 pandemic,
the Civil Engineering and Construction Business maintained its
competitive advantages, which is to provide high-quality services
of a wide scope and to maintain a cordial client relationship, and
the progress in obtaining new contracts managed to record a
stable performance for the year ended 31 December 2020. The
Group has been awarded 5 new substantial contracts for the
year ended 31 December 2020:

- 3 contracts from Hongkong Telecommunication Limited for
Provision of Intergrated Field Works & Civil Work

- Civil and Building Works for North Point 132kV GIS
improvement

- Improvement Works for Elevated Cable Trough at Deep
Water Bay

Automotive Engines Business

For the year ended 31 December 2020, the Automotive Engines
Business witnesses a stagnancy with very minimal operation
recorded.

For the year ended 31 December 2020, revenue generated from
the Automotive Engines Business was approximately HK$3 million
(2019: approximately HK$81 million), represented approximately
0.6% of the total revenue of the Group (2019: approximately
17.7%). For the year ended 31 December 2020, the gross loss of
the Automotive Engines Business was approximately HK$6 million
(2019: approximately HK$32 million).
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BUSINESS REVIEW AND FINANCIAL REVIEW
(Continued)

Automotive Engines Business (Continued)

As the final products of the Automotive Engines Business are
specifically designed for only a few customers (the” Automotive
Engines Business Customers”) in the PRC, operation status
of each of such customers will have a crucial impact on the
performance of this business segment. In the past few years, as
a result of the reduction of excessive production capacity policy
and the de-leveraging policy in the PRC since 2018, business
performance of most of the Automotive Engines Business
Customers are unsatisfactory, and they are facing financial
difficulties with their operations materially affected. Among
these Automotive Engines Business Customers, the Company
became aware in 2020 that a key customer (the” Key Customer”)
was undergoing corporate restructuring in order to improve its
financial position and resume normal operation. Further, the
management of the Group was given to understand that a new
engine production line may be injected into the Key Customer
following its business restructuring and such injection will
materially reduce its planned orders with the Automotive Engines
Business in the future.

In 2020, the operation of the Automotive Engines Business has
shrunk significantly with no new orders placed by its customers
and no new products manufactured. Its revenue dropped
significantly for the year ended 31 December 2020, with the
minimal revenue attributable to this segment mainly consisting
of delivering inventory manufactured in 2019 and providing
replacement parts. Full impairment losses were made on the
property, plant and equipment and goodwill of the Automotive
Engines Business during 2020.

In light of the above, the Company was in the view that the
business prospect of the Automotive Engines Business was
highly uncertain and not promising. Then in January 2021, the
Group proceeded and completed the disposal of the Automotive
Engines Business.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEERWR DA

PROSPECTS
Despite the hardness in the year 2020, the management remains
positive about the prospects of the Group.

For the Civil Engineering and Construction Business, although
the operating environment in Hong Kong is expected to remain
tough in the coming years such as continuously rising wages
and cost of construction materials and shortage of skilled labor,
the Company is confident that the Group would be capable
of securing promising business opportunities given its vast
experience in handling a wide variety of construction works.
The Group will continue to adopt a prudent approach when
submitting new tenders.

Deploying the Group’s resources into the Carbon Neutral
Business constitutes a milestone in the history of the Company.
especially the
highly-supportive policies of the Chinese government, the

After studying the business environment,

management is of the view that this business is a valuable
opportunity which can create returns to the Company and its
shareholders. According to the forecast in the report issued by
The Investment Association of China regulated by the National
Development and Reform Commission of the People’s Republic
of China on 8 November 2020, China will unfold over RMB70
trillion of investment opportunities in green industry in the
future, creating a huge market.

Mentionable measures conducted by the Group to explore the
Carbon Neutral Business include (i) a proposed change of the
Company name from “Bisu Technology Group International
Limited HAEPHEEBBEIEARAR" to “China Carbon Neutral
Development Group Limited H Bk = A0 45% B 42 B A BR A A7,
(ii) entering into a strategic cooperation agreement on carbon
neutral development with China Eco Development Association;
and (iii) engaging expertise and professional persons in relevant
areas to form a management team.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

PROPOSED CHANGE OF COMPANY NAME

As disclosed in the announcement of “the Business Update and
Proposed Change of Company Name"” dated 2 March 2021,
to cope with the needs of entering into the Carbon Neutral
Business, the Group will search for opportunities to enhance the
current business segments of the Group or provide a healthy
and diversified development prospect, in order to improve
its performance and strive to maximise the interests of its
shareholders. The Group is exploring new business segment,
which includes carbon neutral business.

Meanwhile, the Group proposed to change the name of the
Company from “Bisu Technology Group International Limited” to
“China Carbon Neutral Development Group Limited”, and adopt
the Chinese name of "Bk AR LM AR A " to replace
its existing Chinese name of “ WAL EFBEIBEARAF". In
addition, as disclosed in the announcement of “Proposed Change
of Company Name and Notice of Extraordinary General Meeting”
dated 15 March 2021, the Company proposed to change the
name of the Company and issued a notice of convening the
extraordinary general meeting for approving the resolution of
Proposed Change of Company Name.

The Board considers that the Proposed Change of Company
Name will better reflect the new business plans of the Company
and its direction of future business development. The Board
believes that the proposed new name will provide the Company
with a new corporate image which will enable the Group to
better identify itself and capture potential business opportunities
for its future development.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEERWR DA

EFFECTS OF THE PROPOSED CHANGE OF
COMPANY NAME

The Proposed Change of Company Name will not affect any
rights of the Shareholders. Once the Proposed Change of
Company Name becomes effective, any issue of share certificates
of the Company thereafter will be in the new name of the
Company and the shares of the Company (the “Shares”) will be
traded on the Stock Exchange in the new name of the Company.
All existing share certificates of the Company in issue bearing
the present name of the Company shall, after the Proposed
Change of Company Name having become effective, continue
to be evidence of title to such Shares and will continue to be
valid for trading, settlement, registration and delivery purposes.
Accordingly, there will not be any arrangement for free exchange
of the existing share certificates for new share certificates for
new share certificates bearing the new share certificates bearing
the new name of the Company.

COOPERATION WITH CEDA

On 10 March 2021, the Company has entered into a strategic
cooperation agreement on the Carbon Neutral Business with
China Eco Development Association (“CEDA”, the association is
a national first-class association approved by the State Council of
the PRC and supervised by the National Forestry and Grassland
Administration) to achieve the strategic goal of “China’s
commitment to peak its carbon emissions by 2030 and become
carbon neutral by 2060” by Chinese leader made before the UN
General Assembly.

The cooperation targets at a wide spectrum of the Carbon
Neutral Business, including but not limited to (i) increasing
carbon sink forest in China; (ii) building a national forest
carbon sink sharing platform; (iii) establishing a carbon credit
identification and certification institution; (iv) building a carbon
credit trading platform; and (v) promoting the application and
promotion of high and new technology achievements in the field
of carbon neutral.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

COOPERATION WITH CEDA (Continued)

The CEDA is national first-class association approved by the
State Council of the PRC and supervised by the National Forestry
and Grassland Administration, whose business scope includes
ecological conservation, afforestation, desertification prevention
and control, wetland and wildlife protection, ecotourism, forest
carbon sink, forest food, ecological fund, etc. The CEDA is
also an important social organization of China’s carbon neutral
projects.

The cooperation enables the Company to cooperate with national
institutions with rich resources, provide the foundation for the
implementation of the Company’s strategic objectives, and
form the unique competitive advantages of the Company. The
Company will promote cooperation with the CEDA in accordance
with the cooperation agreement. Further announcement will be
made when appropriate if there is any update.

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

The Group's operations, financials and prospects are affected
by risks and uncertainties. The risk factors listed below may
directly or indirectly lead to significant differences in the Group's
operating performances, financial positions and development
prospects from its expected or past performances. These factors
are not comprehensive, and there may be other risks and
uncertainties that are not known by the Group or may not be
noticeable at present, but may become significant in the future.

Business Risk

Performance of all business segments of the Group may be
affected by fluctuations in market prices and market demands
of the Group’s final products and services. On the other hand,
raw materials or outsourced services which are provided by the
Group's suppliers are subject to price fluctuations. The Group does
not enter into any material contracts to hedge against such price
fluctuations. Therefore, any increases in these raw materials or
outsourced services will exert pressures on the Group’s production
costs, gross profits and final prices that the Group in turn charges
the customers. If the Group fails to adapt and respond successfully
to the changing demands and supplies, it may adversely affect the
business performance and development prospects.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEERWR DA

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES (Continued)
Industry Risk

All business segments of the Group are operated in industries
which are highly competitive. Competition may intensify as the
Group’s competitors expand their product or service, lower their
prices, or increase their qualities. There may be new competitors
entering the Group's existing markets as well. If the Group does
not compete successfully against existing and new competitors,
the Group may not be able to maintain its existing business scale
and operation performance.

Policy Risk

Some business segments of the Group must abide by various
policies and regulations. For example, the civil engineering and
construction business is subject to compliance requirements
imposed by the Hong Kong government. The regulators may
require the Group to apply for new licenses, and impose new
rules, regulations or requirements. Changes in policies and
regulations will affect the development of the Group’s business,
such as increasing compliance costs and reducing business
opportunities.

Credit Risk
All business segments of the Group allow a credit for their
payment. All trade and other receivables are
accounted by their carrying amounts less expected credit loss.
In the past, the Group has experienced significant delay in
the payment of the trade and other receivables, especially in
the Automotive Engines Business, and therefore some credit
loss has been recognized in the financial statements of the
Group in accordance with the accounting standards. However,
the impaired amounts of the trade and other receivables do
not represent the Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk.
Recoverability of such receivables depends on a lot of factors,
including the general economy, government policies,

customers’

investor
confidences, and most importantly, the business performances
and financial positions of each debtor.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES (Continued)
Liquidity Risks

As discussed before, the Group recorded net current liabilities
and net liabilities as at 31 December 2020, indicating that the
Group was exposed to liquidity risk. Despite that the Group has
some measures to raise additional working capital to finance its
operation, there is always a risk that the Group cannot meet its
financial obligations as they fall due.

Other Risks

Some risks are not noticeable from the daily operations of the
Group, but they can have a material adverse impact on the
Group. For example, the harshening business environment from
the U.S.- China trade conflicts, the sharp decrease in Hong
Kong economy after the local political movements, and the
recent COVID-19 outbreak. These kinds of events may interrupt
the Group’s operations,
outsourced services, and deteriorate other risks and uncertainty
that the Group are facing. All such events are outside control of
the Group and there is no guarantee that the Group’s responsive

increase prices of raw material and

measures are sufficient to protect the Group's interests. Given
the complexity and materiality of these events, the Group is
of the view that their impacts may take a longer time to fully
emerge.

DIVIDEND
The Board does not recommend payment of any final dividend
for the year ended 31 December 2020 (2019: Nil).

CAPITAL STRUCTURE, FINANCIAL RESOURCES,
LIQUIDITY AND GEARING

As at 31 December 2020, the Group had cash and cash
equivalents of approximately HK$49.7 million, representing an
decrease of approximately 23.3% from approximately HK$64.8
million as at 31 December 2019. The decrease was mainly
attributable to the net cash flows generated from financing
activities. The Group had not pledged any bank deposits for
the bank loans. The Group’s cash and cash equivalents were
denominated in HK$ and RMB.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEERWR DA

CAPITAL STRUCTURE, FINANCIAL RESOURCES,
LIQUIDITY AND GEARING (Continued)

As at 31 December 2020, the total assets were approximately
HK$255.8 million, representing a decrease of approximately
41.7% from approximately HK$439.1 million as at 31 December
2019. The significant decrease was mainly due to (i) the
decrease in accounts receivable and contract assets in aggregate
of approximately HK$112.2 million as mainly because of the
expected credit loss of approximately HK$152.1 million made
on the account receivable of the Automotive Engines Business;
and (ii) the impairment of goodwill and property, plant and
equipment of approximately HK$16.3 million and approximately
HK$28.4 million made in 2020 respectively.

As at 31 December 2020, the total liabilities were approximately
HK$934.8 million, representing an decrease of approximately
33.9% from approximately HK$1,413.9 million as at 31
December 2019.

As at 31 December 2020, the convertible bonds had a carrying
amount of approximately HK$498.2 million (2019: approximately
HK$761.9 million), in which approximately HK$384.0 million was
recognized as equity and approximately HK$114.2 million was
recognized as non-current liabilities. As at 31 December 2020,
the promissory notes had a carrying amount of approximately
HK$289.9 million (2019: approximately HK$554.0 million),
in which approximately HK$18.6 million was recognized as
current liabilities and approximately HK$271.3 million was
recognized as non-current liabilities. On 8 November 2019, the
Company and the then holder of the convertible bonds and
the promissory notes, Power Expert Global Limited (“Power
Expert”), entered into an amendment agreement, pursuant
to which (i) the maturity date of the convertible bonds shall
be extended for 5 years to 4 February 2025; and (ii) the term
of the promissory notes will be changed to perpetual and the
interest rate will be fixed at 5% per annum with effect from 5
February 2020, payable annually and the interest accrued on or
before 4 February 2020 shall be payable on 4 February 2025.
This amendment took effect on 14 January 2020. Following
the amendment, majority of the convertible bonds and the
promissory notes was re-categorized as non-current liabilities.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

CAPITAL STRUCTURE, FINANCIAL RESOURCES,
LIQUIDITY AND GEARING (Continued)
Interest-bearing bank and other borrowings of the Group
comprised (1) other loans from independent third parties and
related party in which controlled by the shareholder of the
Company of approximately HK$12.5 million (2019: approximately
HK$22.4 million) and approximately HK$31.5 million (2019:
HK$31.5 million) with the contractual interest of 5.0% to 12.0%
per annum; and (2) bank loans of approximately HK$nil (2019:
approximately HK$4.1 million); of which a corporate guarantee
was given by the Company on the bank loans. They are
repayable on demand.

As at 31 December 2020, the Group had banking facilities of
approximately HK$45.0 million (2019: approximately HK$42.8
million) which approximately HK$40.4 million was not utilized
and was secured by corporate guarantees.

As at 31 December 2020, the net current liabilities were
approximately HK$233.1 million, as compared to approximately
HK$980.8 million of net current liabilities as at 31 December
2019. The decrease in net current liabilities was primarily
attributable to the reclassification of the convertible bonds and
promissory notes from current liabilities to non-current liabilities
as at 31 December 2020.

Current ratio of the Group has improved to approximately 0.5
as at 31 December 2020 (2019: approximately 0.3). Current
ratio is calculated by dividing current assets by current liabilities.
Such improvement was mainly due to the re-classification of
the convertible bonds and the promissory notes as non-current
liabilities.

Gearing ratio is calculated based on the amount of net cash and
bank balances (interest-bearing borrowings, liability component
of the convertible bonds and promissory notes less cash and cash
equivalent) divided by the total equity. The gearing ratio as at
31 December 2020 is not available because the Group reported
a negative equity attributable to owners of the parent as at 31
December 2020 (2019: negative).
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EEENWR DN

GOING CONCERN

Given the net liability position of the Group and the challenging
business environment, including but not limited to the
uncertainty in the COVID-19 outbreak and the China/US
relationship, the worrisome issue of going concern should be
taken into consideration when assessing the prospects of the
Group. Nevertheless, the management maintained the opinion
that the Group will have sufficient working capital to finance
its operation and to meet its financial obligations as and when
they fall due in the foreseeable future, based on the following
consideration:

(i)  On 27 January 2021, Future Marvel Limited (a wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company), as the vendor, entered
into a sale and purchase agreement with Mr. Liu Chang, as
the purchaser, for a disposal of the entire issued shares in
Well Surplus Enterprises Limited and the shareholder loans
owned by the disposal group to Future Marvel Limited,
which represented the whole Automotive Engines Business
of the Group. The total consideration for the disposal was
HK$41,500,000, which was settled by the purchaser in
the way of (i) HK$500,000 by cash; and (b) the balance
of HK$41,000,000 by way of waiver of the interests of
the promissory notes held by Power Expert Global Limited
("Power Expert”). The disposal has completed on 29 January
2021.

As of 31 December 2020, the Automotive Engines Business
reported a net current liabilities and net liabilities of
HK$256,171,000 and HK$269,520,000, respectively. The
disposal of which would significantly improve the financial
position of the Group.

(i) A major shareholder of the Company has agreed to provide
additional funding by way of shareholder’s loan for not less
than HK$45,000,000 from 1 January 2021 to 30 June 2022
to the Group as and when required, and not to demand for
repayment of the amount due by the Group until it is in the
position to repay without impairing its liquidity and financial
position.As of the reporting date, the shareholder’s loan of
HK$1,252,000 was drawn down by the Group.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

GOING CONCERN (Continued)

(i) On 7 March 2021, the Company entered into two
subscription agreements with two subscribers, namely Mao
Yuan Capital Limited and Mr. Zhang Yaxun, in respect
of the subscriptions of an aggregate of 40,000,000
subscription shares at the subscription price of HK$4.80
per share. The issue of the 40,000,000 subscription shares
will not be subject to the approval by the shareholders
and the subscription shares will be issued under the
general mandate granted to the Directors at the 2020
annual general meeting held on 19 June 2020. The gross
proceeds from the subscriptions will be approximately
HK$192,000,000, which are expected to improve the
liquidity of the Group.

The Directors believe that, taking into account the above factors
and based on the existing information available to the Group,
the Group will have sufficient working capital to satisfy its
present requirements for at least the next 12 months from 31
December 2020. However, should the above financing or support
be unavailable, the Group may be unable to continue as a going
concern, in which case adjustments might have to be made to
the carrying amounts of the Group’s assets to state them at their
recoverable amounts, and to provide for any further liabilities
which might arise and to reclassify its non-current assets and
non-current liabilities to current assets and current liabilities,
respectively. The effect of these adjustments has not been
reflected in these consolidated financial statements.

CONVERTIBLE BONDS AND PROMISSORY NOTES
On 4 February 2016, the Company issued (i) zero coupon
convertible bonds with an aggregate principal amount of
approximately HK$390.0 million; and (i) promissory notes in the
aggregate principal amount of approximately HK$410.0 million
to Power Expert Global Limited (“Power Expert”) as part of the
consideration for the acquisition of 100% equity interest in Well
Surplus Enterprises Limited and its subsidiaries in October 2015.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEERWR DA

CONVERTIBLE BONDS AND PROMISSORY NOTES
(Continued)

On 8 November 2019, the Company and Power Expert entered
into an amendment agreement, pursuant to which (i) the
maturity date of the convertible bonds shall be extended for 5
years to 4 February 2025; and (ii) the term of the promissory
notes will be changed to perpetual and the interest rate will
be fixed at 5% per annum with effect from 5 February 2020,
payable annually and the interest accrued on or before 4
February 2020 shall be payable on 4 February 2025. Further
details of the amendment are set out in the Company’s
announcement dated 8 November 2019 and the Company's
circular dated 19 December 2019. This proposed amendment
took effect on 14 January 2020.

On 3 February 2020, the Company received (i) a duly-executed
transfer notice from Power Expert notifying the Company that
Power Expert has agreed to transfer the convertible bonds to LE
Group Holdings Pte. Ltd. ("LEGH"); and (ii) an assignment notice
from Power Expert notifying the Company that Power Expert has
agreed to assign the promissory notes to LEGH. The Company
has given its consent on the transfer and issued new certificates
of the convertible bonds and the promissory notes to LEGH.

On 7 October 2020, the Company received a transfer notice from
LEGH notifying the Company that LEGH has agreed to transfer
the entire convertible bonds back to Power Expert. The Company
has given its consent on the transfer and issued new certificates
of the convertible bonds to Power Expert.

On 12 October 2020, the Company received an assignment
notice from LEGH notifying the Company that LEGH has agreed
to assign the entire promissory notes back to Power Expert. The
Company has given its consent on the transfer and issued new
certificates of the promissory notes to Power Expert.

26 Bisu Technology Group International Limited HZERHE 4 [H 5 F5 A5 BR A

R ESZRELRE (8)

o FE—NE+T—HAH > AN A HEIY R
BRBRFET SIABET Whak > PRI > (i) v HR AR & J5
MEIABEER KA E —F A AN
H o5 B (i) A 7K 5, B2 45 i 10 BR A% e 2 7k A
P IR E B EFE5% 0 H F AR
THRHB®ER  BEIA—R . Hit
T TR A DA B2 R E AR R R
CECHFEZHWMH AT o ZEFTFEE
GBI AN A H R —F—LFE+—H/N\H
NERARANR AR E —F—L4FE+ A
TIHZEK - ZBFIH T _FFE—H
U H AR -

WZEZEETHZH > AN EETREER
BRUSCEN (1) Z BB ST ERE R > e AL
A) 35 RE R BR O [A) B w] H I AR 05 R T LE
Group Holdings Pte. Ltd. ([LEGH]) 5 A (ii)
TR R > R A R I REBR BK R B
TR LB E T LEGH - AN ] B[R] &R
$E’IE§ A 4 AR 2 SR S SRR T
E%LEGH ©

T ECEEFAEH > AN FERLEGHIR
B R > e AN A LEGHE M &% 2
TR R B AR S B ] IS REBR R o AN EIELH
R IE > I B R AT A R AR S e
TITHEEREK o

PR EFETH T ZH > AAFHLEGH

W B R A > Mg AR A E LEGHE W B A%

BB AR G LR (A T REBRER - AR FIEH

ﬁﬁ%%ﬁ’iaﬁﬁﬁﬁm%%%i
GHEBRER o



Management Discussion and Analysis

PARTIAL CONVERSION OF THE CONVERTIBLE
BONDS

On 19 March 2021, Power Expert issued a conversion notice
to the Company in respect of the exercise of the conversion
rights attached to the convertible bonds to the extent of
HK$40,000,000 and accordingly requested the Company to issue
20,000,000 new shares. As all conditions for the conversion
which were stipulated in the terms of the convertible bonds were
fulfilled, the Company gave its consent on the conversion, and
agreed to issue 20,000,000 conversion shares to Power Expert.
The conversion is expected to decrease the total amount of
the liabilities of the Group, and increase the equity base of the
Company.

On 26 March 2021, the partial conversion of the convertible
bonds has completed, and 20,000,000 conversion shares has
been issued and allotted to Power Expert.

SUBSCRIPTION OF NEW SHARES
On 7 March 2021,
subscription agreements with two subscribers,
Yuan Capital Limited and Mr. Zhang Yaxun,
subscriptions of an aggregate of 40,000,000 subscription shares
at the subscription price of HK$4.80 per share.

the Company (as issuer) entered into two
namely Mao
in respect of the

The subscription shares will be issued under the general mandate
granted to the Directors at the 2020 annual general meeting
held on 19 June 2020.

The gross proceeds of the subscriptions will be HK$192,000,000.
The net proceeds from the subscriptions (after deducting all
applicable costs and expenses of the subscriptions) will be
approximately HK$192,000,000, of which HK$60,000,000 are
intended for the general working capital of the Group and/or
the repayment of the debts of the Group, and the remaining
HK$132,000,000 are intended to develop the Carbon Neutral
Business and/or the exploration of other possible new business.
The subscriptions are expected to improve the liquidity of the
Group, as well as increase the asset base and the equity base of
the Company.

As at the date of this report, the subscriptions have not
completed.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEER R DT

SHARE CAPITAL

As at 1 January 2020 and 31 December 2020, the Company has
issued a total of 200,000,000 shares in the par value of HK$0.01
each. There was no movement for the year ended 31 December
2020.

On 26 March 2021,
conversion of the convertible bonds to the extent of
HK$40,000,000 and at the conversion price of HK$2.00 per
share, and accordingly issued 20,000,000 conversion shares to
Power Expert.

the Company has completed a partial

Following the abovementioned change and as at the date of this
report, the Company has issued a total of 220,000,000 shares in
the par value of HK$0.01 each. All shares are fully paid and rank
pari passu with each other in all respects.

TRANSACTIONS WITH CONNECTED AND/OR
RELATED PARTIES

As at 31 December 2020, shareholder loans amounted to
approximately HK$32.9 million and controlling shareholder loans
amounted to approximately HK$16.8 million were provided to
the Group for its working capital. The shareholder loans were
conducted on normal commercial terms or better, and were not
secured by the assets of the Group.

More information about the transactions with connected and/or
related parties are set out in note 38 to the financial results.

MATERIAL ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS OF
SUBSIDIARIES, ASSOCIATES AND JOINT VENTURES
the Group did not have any material
acquisition or disposals of subsidiaries, associates and joint
venture for the year ended 31 December 2020 (2019: nil).

Save as disclosed,

On 29 January 2021, Future Marvel Limited, a wholly owned
subsidiary of the Company, completed a disposal of the entire
issued shares in Well Surplus Enterprises Limited and the
shareholder loans owned by the disposal group. The disposed
interests constitute the Group’s entire investment in the
Automotive Engines Business.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS AND CAPITAL ASSETS
As at 31 December 2020, the Group did not have any significant
investment or capital assets (2019: nil).

PLEDGE OF ASSETS
As at 31 December 2020, the Group did not have any pledge of
assets (2019: nil).

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
Detail of the Group’s contingent liabilities are set out in note 37
to the financial results.

FOREIGN CURRENCY RISK

Most of the Group's assets and liabilities are denominated in HK$
and RMB, which are the functional currencies of respective group
companies. The Group has not entered into any instruments on
the foreign exchange exposure. The Group will closely monitor
exchange rate movement and will take appropriate activities to
reduce the exchange risk.

EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICIES

As at 31 December 2020, the Group had approximately 334
employees (2019: 452) in Hong Kong and the PRC. The Group's
remuneration policy is reviewed periodically and determined by
reference to market terms, company performance, and individual
qualifications and performance. Other staff benefits include
bonuses awarded on a discretionary basis, mandatory provident
fund scheme for Hong Kong employees, state-sponsored
retirement plans for the PRC employees.

NO OTHER MATERIAL CHANGE

Save as disclosed, there has been no material change in the
Group's financial position or business since the publication of
the latest annual report of the Company for the year ended 31
December 2019.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EEENWR DN

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

Since 31 December 2020, the Group has occurred the following
transactions which have not been fully reflected in the
consolidated financial statements of the Company for the year
ended 31 December 2020:

(i) Disposal of the Automotive Engines Business

On 27 January 2021, Future Marvel Limited (a
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company), as the vendor,
entered into a sale and purchase agreement with Mr.
Liu Chang, as the purchaser, for a disposal of the entire
issued shares in Well Surplus Enterprises Limited and the
shareholder loans owned by the disposal group. The total
consideration for the disposal was HK$41,500,000, which
was settled by the purchaser in the way of (a) HK$500,000
by cash; and (b) the balance of HK$41,000,000 by way
of waiver of the interests of the promissory notes held by
Power Expert.

The disposal has completed on 29 January 2021. Following
the disposal, the Group was expected to record a significant
gain on disposal of approximately HK$280,000,000,
calculated by taking into account the consideration of the
disposal, the relevant expenses in relation to the disposal,
the net liabilities of the Automotive Engines Business, and
the relevant sale loan. The disposal will further lessen the
Group's financial pressure to support the daily operation of
the Automotive Engines Business.

Upon completion of the disposal, Well Surplus Enterprises
Limited has ceased to be a subsidiary of the Company and
the Company has ceased to have any interest in it. The
financial results of the group of Well Surplus Enterprises
Limited will no longer be consolidated into the consolidated
financial statements of the Group and the Group will cease
to engage in the Automotive Engines Business.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

(Continued)

(ii) Subscription of 40,000,000 new shares
On 17 March 2021, the Company amounted the
subscriptions of 40,000,000 new shares at the subscription
price of HK$4.80 per share, with total net proceeds of
approximately HK$192,000,000 to be raised. As at the date
of this announcement, the subscriptions have not been
completed.

(iii) Partial conversion of the convertible bonds
On 26 March 2021, the Company has completed a partial
conversion of the convertible bonds to the extent of
HK$40,000,000 and at the conversion price of HK$2.00 per
share, and accordingly issued 20,000,000 conversion shares
to Power Expert. There was no cash flow impact related to
the conversion.

Save as disclosed, there was no other significant event after the
reporting period and up to the date of this report.
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EENSREEEREE

DIRECTORS

Executive directors

Dr. Gao Gunter, aged 65, was appointed as an executive
Director and Chairman of the Company on 2 March 2021 and
18 March 2021 respectively. He is currently the chairman of
the board of Sunbase International (Holdings) Limited, New
Horizons Space-Based MIOT (Group) Limited and Asia Pacific
Airlines (Holdings) Ltd., each being an unlisted public company
in Hong Kong or overseas. He is also a member of the eighth,
ninth, tenth, eleventh, twelfth and thirteenth CPPCC National
Committee of Hong Kong Special Administrative Region
("HKSAR") of the People’s Republic of China, a member of the
ninth and tenth of the Committee of Foreign Affairs of the
CPPCC National Committee, the eleventh and twelfth vice-
chairman of the Committee of Education, Science, Culture,
Health and Sports of the CPPCC National Committee and the
thirteenth vice-chairman of the Committee for Learning and
Cultural and Historical Data of the CPPCC National Committee.

He is the Justice of the Peace of HKSAR and awarded Silver
Bauhinia Star of Hong Kong. He is also a member of the Election
Committee of the Chief Executive of HKSAR, a member of the
Election Committee of the Legislative Council of HKSAR, a
deputy of the HKSAR to the National People’s Congress Election
Committee, the chairman of the Cultural Association of Hong
Kong, the chairman of the Association of Chinese Culture of
Hong Kong, the chairman of the Hong Kong federation of
China Federation of Literary and Art Circles, the chairman of the
Hong Kong Association for Chinese Ecological Development and
Promotion, the chairman of the Hong Kong and Mainland China
Investment Association, the chairman of the General Association
for the Promotion of Cross-strait Peaceful Development of Hong
Kong, the founding chairman of the Hong Kong Association for
Promotion of Peaceful Reunification of China, the chief officer
of the Chinese and Foreign Enterprises Cooperation Committee
and the economic consultant of the People’s Government of
Hebei, Tianjin, Shannxi, Yunnan and Hubei Provinces. Dr. Gao
has been appointed as a non-executive director of Chong Kin
Group Holdings Limited, a company whose shares are listed on
the Stock Exchange (stock code: 1609), since 10 February 2021.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

DIRECTORS (Continued)

Executive directors (Continued)

Mr. Chen Xinwei, aged 45, was appointed as an executive
Director of the Company on 2 March 2021. He holds a
bachelor’'s degree in economics and a master’s degree in finance.
He worked for renowned international and Chinese investment
banks for many years. With his extensive work experience in
domestic and foreign investment banks accumulated over years,
he is familiar with the operation and development of financial
institutions in the world. He served as the chairman of Sinocon
Holdings International Limited, engaging in cross-border financial
services and cross-border financial investment. He worked for
many well-known financial institutions such as Nomura, UBS and
Merrill Lynch. Mr. Chen has been appointed as an independent
nonexecutive director of Shenzhen Infogem Technologies
Co.,Ltd., a company whose shares are listed on Shenzhen Stock
Exchange (stock code: 300085).

Mr. Di Ling, aged 58, is experienced in risk investment and
corporate finance sectors. He obtained a bachelor’s degree from
the Department of Thermal Engineering of Tsinghua University.
He served as (i) the standing vice president of SBCVC* (4R [
) between 2011 and 2019; and (ii) the president of SB Green
Investment Fund Limited* (4R&GHEIHESAIRAT) since
2019. He has extensive experience in risk management, project
management, corporate restructuring and debt restructuring.
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Executive directors (Continued)

Dr. Cui Dingjun, aged 55, is an expert in liquid mechanics field.
He obtained the doctoral degree in engineering from the Beihang
University majoring in jet aerospace power, and subsequently
obtained his second doctoral degree in the University of
Strathclyde majoring in fluid dynamics. Dr. Cui is a member of
technical committee of the American Society for Testing and
Materials (ASTM), a Professional Engineer of Ontario (PEO) and a
member of the Ontario Society of Professional Engineers (OSPE).
Apart from the academic sector, Dr. Cui also possesses extensive
experience in the practical application of cutting-edge scientific
technology. He served as (i) the supervisor of laboratory of
Fantom Technologies Ltd between 1999 and 2001, responsible
for the design of new products and respective quality standards;
(ii) the principal designer of Armstrong Pump Ltd between
2001 and 2006, responsible for the development, design and
production of high-tech products; (iii) the managing director of
Watson Process Systems since 2006, responsible for the design
and supply of gas processing and environmental protection
equipment; and (iv) the executive director of Macro Eng. & Tech.
Inc. since 2010, responsible for the design and production of
high-tech plastic products. He has participated in various large
projects of energy conservation and emission reduction as well as
international carbon trading.

Mr. Brett Ashley Wight, aged 46, was appointed as an
executive Director of the Company on 5 February 2020. He
is currently an Executive Committee member and Executive
Director of the group of LE Group and its subsidiaries. He
has more than 20 years’ international experience in law,
engineering, construction and the delivery of major engineering
and construction projects. He was a lawyer with Blake Dawson
Waldron (now Ashurst) focusing on major projects especially
in transport, energy, mining and engineering. He has extensive
experience advising on projects including sporting complexes,
commercial developments, energy, mining and engineering
projects. He was also a board member of an established
multi-national engineering and construction company that
undertook major projects throughout Australia, Asia and the
Middle East. Such projects included airports, stadiums, industrial
facilities, process plants and public infrastructure. He has
significant experience in developing and executing company
strategy, business development, planning, procurement, finance
and project management.
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DIRECTORS (Continued)

Executive directors (Continued)

LE Group is the holder of (i) the zero-coupon convertible bonds
in the aggregate principal amount of HK$390,000,000 issued by
the Company on 4 February 2016; and (ii) the promissory notes
issued by the Company on 4 February 2016 in the aggregate
principal amount of HK$410,000,000.

On 3 February 2020, the Company received (i) a duly-executed
transfer notice from Power Expert notifying the Company that
Power Expert has agreed to transfer the convertible bonds to LE
Group Holdings Pte. Ltd. (“LEGH"); and (ii) an assignment notice
from Power Expert notifying the Company that Power Expert has
agreed to assign the promissory notes to LEGH. The Company
has given its consent on the transfer and issued new certificates
of the convertible bonds and the promissory notes to LEGH.

Mr. Artem Matyushok, aged 40, was appointed as an executive
Director and the Chief Executive Officer of the Company on 5
February 2020. He holds a Bachelor of Science from Northern
Kentucky University in Kentucky, the United States and a
Bachelor of Economies from the Peoples Friendship University of
Russia in Russia. He is currently an Executive Committee member
and Chief Investment Officer of the group of LE Group Holdings
Pte Ltd ("LE Group”) and its subsidiaries, being responsible for
company strategy, portfolio management and investments.
Prior to this role, he held various roles with the PJSC Rosneft
Oil Company, recently being Global Head of Mergers and
Acquisitions and Business Development. In addition, he held
positions as Project Director and Manager of Merger and
Acquisitions and Project Financing at Royal Dutch Shell PLC. He
has executed numerous high-profile M&A transactions; he has
considerable experience in establishing joint ventures and has
over the years built a considerable experience in infrastructure
development projects.

LE Group is the holder of (i) the zero-coupon convertible bonds
in the aggregate principal amount of HK$390,000,000 issued by
the Company on 4 February 2016; and (ii) the promissory notes
issued by the Company on 4 February 2016 in the aggregate
principal amount of HK$410,000,000.
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Executive directors (Continued)

On 3 February 2020, the Company received (i) a duly-executed
transfer notice from Power Expert notifying the Company that
Power Expert has agreed to transfer the convertible bonds to LE
Group Holdings Pte. Ltd. Later (“LEGH"); and (ii) an assignment
notice from Power Expert notifying the Company that Power Expert
has agreed to assign the promissory notes to LEGH. The Company
has given its consent on the transfer and issued new certificates of
the convertible bonds and the promissory notes to LEGH.

Mr. Matyushok is also the Chief Executive Officer of the
Company.

Independent non-executive directors

Mr. Ip Mei Shun, aged 46, was appointed as an independent
non-executive Director on 12 April 2019. He is also a chairman
of the remuneration committee of the Company, a member of
each of the audit committee and the nomination committee
of the Company. He is currently the Director of Logic Global
Assets Management Limited, which is licensed by the Hong Kong
Securities and Futures Commission (the “SFC") for carrying out
Type 9 (Asset Management) regulated activity. Prior to that, he
was the Managing Partner of Avantfaire Investment Management
Limited from 2018 to 2020, and the Executive Director of
Tairos Investment Management Company Limited from 2017
to 2018, which are both licensed by the SFC for carrying out
Type 4 (Advising on Securities) and Type 9 (Asset Management)
regulated activities. Mr. Ip started his career at Hong Kong
Exchanges & Clearing Ltd (HKEx) followed by Hong Kong
Monetary Authority (HKMA) during the period between 1997
and 2004. He was then employed by Canadian Imperial Bank of
Commerce (CIBC) and Toronto-Dominion Bank (TD) in Canada
during the period between 2004 and 2008. He has served as the
assistant vice president of Citigroup Global Markets Asia Limited
from 2008 to 2010, and the Director of CTBC Private Bank
responsible for investment advisory and portfolio management
from 2012 to 2017. He obtained an MBA degree from the
Schulich School of Business at York University in Canada, an
MSc Systems Engineering & Engineering Management degree
from the Chinese University of Hong Kong, and a BSc Finance
degree from the City University of Hong Kong. He also holds the
designations of Chartered Financial Analyst (CFA), Financial Risk
Manager (FRM), Certified Private Wealth Professional (CPWP)
and Certified International Wealth Manager (CIWM). He has
been an independent non-executive Director of Imperial Pacific
International Holdings Limited (Hong Kong Stock Code: 1076)
since 1 February 2021.
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Independent non-executive directors (Continued)

Mr. Leung Tsz Wing, aged 37, was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director on 28 November 2018.
He is also a chairman of the audit committee of the Company,
a member of each of the remuneration committee and the
nomination committee of the Company. He is currently the
Managing Partner of Avantfaire Investment Management
Limited, a licensed corporation authorised by the Securities and
Futures Commission conducting regulated activities of advising
on securities and asset management in Hong Kong.

He started his career at Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu and he has
also been taking up the senior positions in various SFC licensed
corporations, listed companies, family office and private equity
fund. He has over 15 years of experience in direct investment,
private equity, fund raising and financial reporting. Since January
2021, he has been an independent non-executive director of
Modern Chinese Medicine Group Co., Ltd. (stock code: 1643), a
company on the Stock Exchange.

He obtained a Bachelor of Business Administration (Accounting
& Finance) from the Hong Kong University of Science and
Technology. He is a member of the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants since 2009 and a fellow member
since 2016. He also holds Chartered Financial Analyst (CFA) and
Chartered Alternative Investment Analyst (CAIA) designations.

Mr. Yu Wai Chun, aged 47, graduated from The Hong Kong
Polytechnic University with a Bachelor of Arts in Accountancy
and with an MBA degree from City, University of London, he is
a fellow member of both the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants and the Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants. Mr. Yu possesses more than 20 years executive
experiences in accounting, corporate finance, risk management
and internal controls. He has been appointed as the chief
financial officer of Cornerstone Financial Holdings Limited (stock
code: 8112) (“Cornerstone”) since 2015. Prior to that, Mr. Yu
held key corporate positions in various companies, including
chief financial officer of Culture Landmark Investment Limited
(now known as China Tangshang Holdings Limited, stock
code: 674) and Assistant General Manager of China Resources
Enterprise Limited (now known as China Resources Beer
(Holdings) Company Limited, stock code: 291), consultant at
KPMG Consulting (Asia) Limited ("KPMG") and assistant manager
at KPMG.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Lai Kon Ting, aged 41, is the Contracts Manager of the
Group, responsible for implementation of works and the overall
management of contracts. Mr. Lai obtained a Bachelor Degree
in Civil and Structural Engineering in November 2001 from the
Hong Kong University of Science and Technology and Degree
of Master of Science in Engineering (Infrastructure Project
Management) from The University of Hong Kong in November
2014. He is a Chartered Engineer of Engineering Council, United
Kingdom and a corporate member of the Institution of Civil
Engineers and the HKIE as well as a Registered Professional
Engineer (Civil). He has over 14 years of experience in the
construction of roads and utilities works, landslip prevention,
waterworks and building works. He is also a Tutor for Excel in
the HKIE Engineering Graduate Training (Scheme A) for graduate
engineers.

Mr. Wong Kin Sang, aged 41, is the Project Manager of the
Group, responsible for all activities on site to ensure the efficient
running of a project and effective use of resources. Mr. Wong
obtained a Bachelor Degree in Civil and Structural Engineering in
November 2002 from the Hong Kong University of Science and
Technology. He is a corporate member of the HKIE. He has over
14 years of experience in the construction of waterworks, roads
and utilities works, landslip prevention and building works. He is
also a Tutor for Excel in the HKIE Engineering Graduate Training
(Scheme A) for graduate engineers.

Mr. Wong Kin Yan, aged 51, is the Environmental and Quality
Manager of the Group, responsible for the implementation
and maintenance of our Group’s environmental and quality
management systems. Mr. Wong obtained a Bachelor Degree
in Applied Science in December 1994 from Hong Kong Baptist
University. He is a Chartered Environmentalist and a corporate
member of the Society of Environmental Engineers. He has
over 19 years of experience in the environmental and quality
management in the construction field. He is the Management
Representative of Excel’s ISO 9001 Quality Management System
and ISO 14001 Environmental Management System.
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COMPLIANCE WITH THE CG CODE

The Group is committed to maintaining high standards
of corporate governance to safeguard the interests of the
shareholders of the Company and to enhance corporate value
and accountability. The Company has adopted the Corporate
Governance Code (the “CG Code”) contained in Appendix 14
to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities (the "Listing
Rules”) on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”) since 11 December 2013, the date on which dealings
in its shares first commence on the Stock Exchange.

For the year ended 31 December 2020, the Company has
complied with the code provisions set out in the CG Code with
the following exception:

Code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code requires that the roles of
the chairman and the chief executive officer should be separate
and should not be performed by the same individual. There
were periods during the year ended 31 December 2020, wherein
the Company has not appointed the chairman, and the roles
and functions of the chairman have been performed by all the
executive Directors collectively. On 5 February 2020, Mr. Artem
Matyushok was appointed as the chief executive officer of the
Company. On 9 February 2021, Mr. Chen Bingyan was appointed
as the chairman of the board of Directors. On 17 March 2021,
Mr. Chen Bingyan resigned as a non-executive Director and the
chairman of the board of Directors. On 18 March 2021, Mr. Gao
Gunter was appointed as the chairman of the board of Directors.
As at the date of this report, the roles of the chairman and the
chief executive officer have been properly separate.

Code provision A.4.1 of the CG Code requires that non-executive
directors should be appointed for a specific term, subject to
re-election. The non-executive Director and independent non-
executive Directors have not been appointed for any specific
terms as they are subject to retirement by rotation and re-
election at the Company’s annual general meeting in accordance
with the Company’s articles of association.
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Code provision E.1.2 of the CG Code requires the chairman
of the Board should attend the annual general meeting of the
Company. Since the Company has not appointed a chairman
of the Board at the relevant time, no chairman of the Board
attended the annual general meeting of the Company held on
19 June 2020 (the “2020 AGM"). Other members of the Board
(including executive Directors, the chairman of each of the Audit
Committee and the Remuneration Committee and the members
of the Nomination Committee) attended the 2020 AGM to
ensure effective communication with the shareholders of the
Company.

Code provision A.4.2 of the CG Code requires that every
director, including those appointed for a specific term, should
be subject to retirement by rotation at least once every three
years. Mr. Xing Bin (“Mr. Xing”), an executive Director, was
first appointed as a Director at a meeting of the Board held
on 11 September 2015 and was re-elected as a Director at the
annual general meeting of the Company held on 23 August
2016. In accordance with the CG Code, Mr. Xing should have
been subject to retirement at the 2019 annual general meeting
(the “2019 AGM"). However, the Company inadvertently did
not notice the status of Mr. Xing's directorship. As a result, Mr.
Xing did not retire at the 2019 AGM and continued to act as
a Director and his name continued to appear on the register
of directors of the Company as a Director since the conclusion
of the 2019 AGM. A Board meeting from which Mr. Xing has
abstained from attending and voting was held on 10 February
2019 and the Board has confirmed the appointment of Mr.
Xing as a Director. An extraordinary general meeting has been
convened on 19 June 2020 to approve the re-election of Mr.
Xing as an executive Director.

The Company regularly reviews its corporate governance

practices to ensure they comply with the CG Code and align with
the latest developments.
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DIRECTORS’' SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted a code of conduct regarding securities
transactions by Directors on terms no less exacting the required
standard set out in the model code for Securities Transactions
by Directors of Listed Issuers as contained in Appendix 10 to
the Listing Rules (the “Model Code”). The Company has made
specific enquiry of all Directors regarding any non-compliance
with the Model Code for the year ended 31 December 2020,
all Directors confirmed their respective full compliance with the
required standard as set out in the Model Code during the year
ended 31 December 2020.

THE BOARD

Responsibilities of the Board

The Board is responsible for the overall leadership of the
Group, oversees the strategic decisions and monitors business
and performance of the Group. The Board has delegated the
authority and responsibility for day-to-day management and
operation of the Group to the senior management of the
Group. Approval has to be obtained from the Board prior to any
significant transactions entered into by the management. To
oversee particular aspects of the Company’s affairs, the Board
has established three Board committees including the Audit
Committee, the Remuneration Committee and the Nomination
Committee (together, the “Board Committees”). The Board has
delegated to the Board Committees responsibilities as set out in
their respective terms of reference.

All Directors shall ensure that they carry out duties in good faith,
in compliance with applicable laws and regulations, and in the
interests of the Company and the Shareholders at all times.

Board Composition
From 1 January 2020 to the date of this report:

(i)  Mr. Artem Matyushok was appointed as an executive
Director and the chief executive officer of the Company
with effect from 5 February 2020.

(i) Mr. Brett Ashley Wight was appointed as an executive
Director with effect from 5 February 2020.
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(iii)

(vii)

(viii)

(ix)

(xii)

(xiii)

(xiv)

42

Mr.
Director to an executive Director with effect from 3 August
2020.

Lam Wah was re-designated from a non-executive

Mr. Liu Wengang resigned as an executive Director with
effect from 20 August 2020.

Mr. Zhang Guozhi resigned as an independent non-
executive Director, the chairman of the Nomination
Committee, a member of the Audit Committee and a
member of the Remuneration Committee with effect from
16 October 2020.

Mr. Yu Wai Chun was appointed as an independent
non-executive Director, the chairman of the Nomination
Committee, a member of the Audit Committee and a
member of the Remuneration Committee with effect from
16 October 2020.

Mr. Chin Chun Hin was appointed as an executive Director
with effect from 13 November 2020.

Mr. Chen Bingyan was appointed as a non-executive
Director with effect from 2 February 2021.

Mr. Chen Bingyan was appointed as the chairman of the
Board with effect from 9 February 2021.

Mr. Lam Wah resigned as an executive Director with effect
from 2 March 2021.

Mr. Xing Bin resigned as an executive Director with effect
from 2 March 2021.

Dr. Gao Gunter was appointed as an executive Director
with effect from 2 March 2021.

Mr. Chen Xinwei was appointed as an executive Director
with effect from 2 March 2021.

Mr. Chen Bingyan resigned as a non-executive Director and
the chairman of the Board with effect from 17 March 2021.
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(xv)  Mr. Chin Chun Hin resigned as an executive Director with
effect from 17 March 2021.

(xvi) Dr. Cui Dingjun was appointed as an executive Director
with effect from 18 March 2021.

(xvii) Mr. Di Ling was appointed as an executive Director with
effect from 18 March 2021.

(xviii) Dr. Gao Gunter was appointed as the chairman of the
Board with effect from 18 March 2021.

As at the date of this report, the Board is composed of nine
Directors, including six executive Directors and three independent
non-executive Directors. The biographical details of the Directors
are set out in the section headed
Directors and Senior Management”
annual report.

“Biographical Details of
on pages 32 to 38 of this

Upon specific enquiry by the Company and following
confirmations from the Directors and save for disclosed, there
was no change in the information of the Directors required to
be disclosed pursuant to paragraphs (a) to (e) and (g) of Rule
13.51(2) of the Listing Rules for the year ended 31 December
2020.

For the year ended 31 December 2020, the Board at all
times met the requirements of the Rules 3.10(1) and 3.10(2)
of the Listing Rules relating to the appointment of at least
three independent non-executive Directors with at least one
independent non-executive Director possessing appropriate
professional qualifications or accounting or related financial
management expertise.

The Company has also complied with Rule 3.10A of the Listing
Rules relating to the appointment of independent non-executive
Directors representing at least one-third of the Board.
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The Board has assessed the independence of all the independent
non-executive Directors. Having considered the guidelines as
set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules, the Board considers
all of them to be independent having regard to (i) their annual
confirmation on independence as required under the Listing
Rules; (ii) the absence of involvement in the daily management
of the Company; (iii) the absence of any relationships or
circumstances which would interfere with the exercise of their
independent judgment; and (iv) the absence of remuneration
from the Company other than the directors’ fee.

All Directors, including independent non-executive Directors,
have brought a wide spectrum of valuable business experience,
knowledge and professionalism to the Board for its efficient
and effective functioning. All Directors have separate and
independent access to the advices and services of the senior
management and the company secretary with a view to ensuring
that board procedures, and all applicable rules and regulations,
are followed. When needed and upon making request to the
Board, the independent non-executive Directors may obtain
independent professional advice at the Company's expense in
carrying out their duties. Saved as disclosed in the “Biographical
Details of Directors and Senior Management” section of this
annual report, there are no relationships (including financial,
business, family or other material or relevant relationships)
among members of the Board.

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

On 9 February 2021, Mr. Chen Bingyan, a non-executive
Director, was appointed as the chairman. On 17 March 2021,
Mr. Chen Bingyan resigned as a non-executive Director and the
chairman. On 18 March 2021, Dr. Gao Gunter was appointed
as the chairman. The chairman is mainly responsible for taking
the lead in the Board to ensure its effective operation, providing
adequate, complete and reliable information for all Directors in a
timely manner, establishing good corporate governance practices
and procedures, encouraging all Directors to contribute to the
Board’s affairs, and ensuring that proper approaches are adopted
to maintain effective communication with shareholders.

44 Bisu Technology Group International Limited HZERHE 4 [H 5 F5 A5 BR A

EHGOAMEITAB L RITERE BT
P oo K78 B8 E TR RS 31 340 T i 4
51> BETAN S (i) AR T AR B SR AR S B
SEVERY AR RS 5 (DI AL FH
W 5 (i) AT T R AR I DL AT 4
SEA BT T 5 K (iv)BREFH M EAAL
A I A S AR - R AL
JI AT 5L IR AT S X R ST -

EHEF (BRI ESR) JLHES
B A A A RELAS [R] P B B T AR Nk
B HHATREMERAYBTEETN
BRAE o My rEOR B S G AR L B A 8 T A
LRI REy > MAERERBAT R
T 7. R v A B S R RS IR AR
DA 75 00 46 1 2 A IR B » 7 B AT I R
5 > 8 S I AT ) T R R
HWESR > RSB HEE R > MEEA
AR RIRHE o BRAS 470 [ 2 o M v A
i@ J FE | — B P R B N A SL - E SR R
ZEIARTFAEAR T BAR (BRI ~ 2885 ~ &
JiE B H A 7 R SR B B AR o

FERITHAR

AR AT HIUE - JEWAT E R
REEBRELER - RN _F_—F=H
TLH > BRAREABEFRNITERIE
i o A E - —4EZ A+ /\H > A
THEBAELER ERFEARELES
FUMERE R GASOMEE > e EE
Mgty - EEEATENFLE > &0
RIFZ EEREHLRET » BB 2=
HLAEEGEHELER - IR R EUE
B 7 AR BB R 2 A R o



Corporate Governance Report

On 5 February 2020, Mr. Artem Matyushok was appointed as
the chief executive officer of the Company. The chief executive
officer is mainly responsible for the day-to-day operations
and overall management of the Group, and implementing the
business policies and objectives determined and adopted by the
Board.

Directors’ Training and Continuous Professional
Development

Every Director keeps abreast of responsibilities as a director
of the Company and of the conduct, business activities and
development of the Company. The Company continuously
updates the Directors on the Group’s businesses and the latest
developments regarding the Listing Rules and other applicable
regulatory requirements, to ensure compliance and enhance their
awareness of good corporate governance practices.

According to the Code Provision A.6.5 of the CG Code,
all Directors should participate in continuous professional
development to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills
to ensure that their contribution to the board remains informed
and relevant. The Company has requested from each director
and maintained their records of training received during the year
ended 31 December 2020.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Directors pursued
continuous professional development and relevant details are set

out below:

Name of Director
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Types of training

EspR ZA R
Mr. Artem Matyushok Artem Matyushok Jc4= A, B
Executive Director HATHESE
(appointed on 5 February 2020) (AZZ_FFEHHHAERT)
Mr. Brett Ashley Wight Brett Ashley Wight4t4: A, B

Executive Director

(appointed on 5 February 2020)
Mr. Chen Xinwei

Executive Director

(appointed on 2 March 2021)
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SRERRE

Name of Director

ESESR

Types of training

Dr. Cui Dingjun
Executive Director
(appointed on 18 March 2021)
Mr. Chin Chun Hin
Executive Director
(appointed on 13 November 2020 and
resigned on 17 March 2021)
Mr. Di Ling
Executive Director
(appointed on 18 March 2021)
Mr. Gao Gunter
Executive Director
(appointed on 2 March 2021)
Mr. Lam Wah
Executive Director
(re-designated to an Executive Director on
3 August 2020 and resigned on 2 March 2021)

Mr. Liu Wengang
Executive Director
(resigned on 20 August 2020)
Mr. Xing Bin
Executive Director
(resigned on 2 March 2021)
Mr. Chen Bingyan
Non-executive Director
(appointed on 2 February 2021 and
resigned on 17 March 2021)
Mr. Ip Mei Shun
Independent non-executive Director
Mr. Leung Tsz Wing
Independent non-executive Director
Mr. Yu Wai Chun
Independent non-executive Director
(appointed on 16 October 2020)
Mr. Zhang Guozhi
Independent non-executive Director
(resigned on 16 October 2020)

Z IR
FEE FE I+ Not applicable
WATHE S N
(R =F_—F=HT/NHERT)
BRARAT Sk A, B
WATE S
(RF_RFET—AT=HEZRA

Wi = F = —F = A B HEHME)

I & S
WATHE SR
(R =F - —FE=A+/\HERT)

A
HiTHE SR
(AT —HF=H _HEZT)

R S A B
HITHESR
(R = F T NH ZHHMTE A
WITERWR T —F=H_H
BEAT)

B SCH) S A A B
AT
(A = = F44E )\ A —+ HBHE)

Y& Stk A, B
WATHE SR
(%

BI04 e A
FMITES
(R T —HF " H Z HERTI
Mo —EZ AL HEATD)

X NEEA A, B
B EPATHE S

IR St A, B
B AT SR

RIERTE A, B
%j#ﬁﬁ%$
(= F =T+ A N HERT)

iR B Sk A, B
%j#ﬁﬁ%$
(i —F = FF+ A 75 HEE)

Not applicable
AN

Not applicable
A

ZFEEH ZHEHE)
Not applicable
AN

46 Bisu Technology Group International Limited FZERHE 42 [H 5 B A BR



Corporate Governance Report

Remarks:
A — Attending seminars/conferences/forums
B — Reading journals/updates/articles/materials

Appointment and Re-election of Directors

Each of the Directors has signed a letter of appointment with
the Company, which does not specify any fixed term of service
and may be terminated by either party giving to the other not
less than one-month prior notice in writing. They are also subject
to retirement and re-election at annual general meeting of the
Company in accordance with the Articles of Association of the
Company (the “Articles”).

According to the Articles, the Board has the power at any time
to appoint any person as a Director either to fill a casual vacancy
or as an additional Director. Any Director appointed by the Board
to fill a casual vacancy shall hold office until the first general
meeting of the Company after his appointment and be subject
to re-election at such meeting. Any Director appointed by the
Board as an addition to the existing Board shall hold office only
until the next following annual general meeting of the Company
and shall then be eligible for re-election. Besides, at every annual
general meeting, one-third of the Directors for the time being,
or if their number is not a multiple of three, the number nearest
to but not less than one-third, shall retire from office by rotation
provided that every Director shall be subject to retirement at an
annual general meeting at least once every three years.

The procedures and process of appointment, re-election and
removal of Directors are set out in the Articles. The Nomination
Committee is responsible for reviewing the Board composition,
monitoring the appointment, re-election and succession planning
of Directors.

Meetings

Code Provision A.1.1 prescribes that at least four regular board
meetings should be held in each year at approximately quarterly
intervals with active participation of majority of Directors, either
in person or through electronic means of communication.
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The Company convened and held 23 Board meetings during the
year ended 31 December 2020.

Additional Board meetings will be convened, as and when
required, to deal with ad hoc issues. Any Director who is not
able to present physically may participate at any Board meeting
through electronic means of communication, such as conference
telephone or other similar communication equipment, in
accordance with the Articles.

Notice convening each regular Board meeting is sent at least 14
days in advance, and reasonable notice is given for other Board
meetings and committee meetings. The Company Secretary
assists the Chairman and the executive Director(s) to prepare the
meeting notice and agenda. Each Director may include any item
in the agenda. Save for urgent matters which require the Board's
or a committee’s immediate attention and therefore lead to a
short notice of a meeting, the agenda, accompanied by meeting
papers with sufficient and reliable information, are sent to each
Director at least 3 days before each Board meeting or committee
meeting to enable the Directors to make informed decisions on
the matters to be discussed.

The Company Secretary is responsible for taking and keeping
minutes of all Board meetings and committee meetings. Draft
minutes will normally be circulated to Directors for comment
within a reasonable time after each meeting and the final version
is open for Directors’ inspection.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, 23 Board meetings,
6 Audit Committee meetings,
meetings, 5 Nomination Committee meetings and four general
meetings were held. Details of individual Directors’ attendance at
these meetings are set out in the following table:

5 Remuneration Committee
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Attended/Eligible to attend

SRERRE

BHERE/ THERH
Audit  Remuneration Nomination
Board Committee Committee Committee General
Name of Director meeting meeting meeting meeting meeting
3 ghzEe iMzeg RtzEg
3023 B E EE Ef kRAg
Executive Directors #iEs
Mr. Artem Matyushok Artem Matyushok JE& 6/16 N/A N/A N/A 03
(appointed on 5 February 2020) (R=FZFEZHEHEFF) AER Sl Nl
Mr Brett Ashley Wight Brett Ashley Wight &4 10116 N/A /A N/A 03
(appointed on 5 February 2020) (R=F_FE_H T HEEF) MR NER MR
Mr. Chen Xinwei BRI N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A
(appointed on 2 March 2021) [y ;2 d) AR Nl Nl AR Nl
Dr. Cui Dingjun EEERT N/A N/A /A N/A N/A
(appointed on 18 March 2021) (R_FZ—E= TN HEEE) Iyl REH byl AER AR
Mr. Chin Chun Hin BikEEE NIA NIA NIA NIA NIA
(appointed on 13 November 2020 and /iA: FFEI— = HEEFT R MR Nl MR Nl
resigned on 17 March 2021) CETEH AR
Mr. Di Ling &F Bk N/A NIA N/A N/A NIA
(appointed on 18 March 2021) (R=FZ—E= T/ HEEE) R AR L AR AR
Mr. Gao Gunter AR N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A
(appointed on 2 March 2021) (RoF = HEFF) AR Nl MR AR Nl
Mr. Lam Wah LA i N/A N/A N/A N/A
(re-designated to an Executive Director - (F=%= *5@ H=HHEEHTT S S i S S
on 3 August 2020 and resigned FREUR-F =/
on 2 March 2021)
Mr. Liu Wengang BRI 1417 NA N/A N/A 4
(resigned on 20 August 2020) (RoE-FEAA - HERIT) Nl MR AR
M. Xing Bin i 13 2 N/A N/A N/A 104
(resigned on 2 March 2021) (H=F == HE) N St S
Non-executive Directors FUTES
Mr. Chen Bingyan Bl et N/A NA N/A N/A NA
(appointed on 2 February 2021 and iﬁ Fo—E I HEE MR Nl MR AR Nl
resigned on 17 March 2021) SR AR
Mr. Lam Wah M%%% 1416 N/A N/A N/A 0/4
(re-designated to an Erecutive Diector - (R=E-FENF = H#fTH T T St

on 3 August 2020)

HirE%)
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Attended/Eligible to attend

BERRS/ WEEAY
Audit  Remuneration Nomination
Board Committee Committee Committee General
Name of Director meeting meeting meeting meeting meeting
gze EE L H gMzae Rzzae
£3:8 g3 ] g3 g3 eV
Independent non-executive Directors ~ BUFHTES
Mr. Ip Mei Shun EEIRLE 23123 6/6 55 55 24
Mr. Leung Tz Wing P& 203 66 55 55 2
Mr. Yu Wai Chun RERRE n N/A 7n n N/A
(appointed on 16 October 2020) (R-FZFE AT EE) Nl Nl
Mr. Zhang Guozhi RREEE 2001 6/6 33 33 04
(resigned on 16 October 2020) (REFZFELH A HRE)
Remuneration of Directors and Senior Management EERSREEE SN

The Company has established a formal and transparent
procedure for formulating policies on remuneration of Directors
and senior management of the Group.

The biographies of the senior management are disclosed in the
section headed “Biographical Details of Directors and Senior
Management” in this annual report.

Details of the remuneration of each of the Directors for the year
ended 31 December 2020 are set out in note 9 to the financial
statements. Remuneration paid to the senior management
(excluding the Directors) for the year ended 31 December 2020
are included in note 10 to the financial statements.

Directors’ Liability Insurance

The Company purchases annually the Directors’ and officers’
liability insurance for members of the Board. The insurance cover
is reviewed annually to ensure that the Directors and officers are
adequately protected against potential liabilities.

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has set up three Board Committees, namely, the Audit
Committee, the Remuneration Committee and the Nomination
Committee, to oversee particular aspects of the Company’s
affairs.
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Audit Committee

The Audit Committee was established in compliance with Rules
3.21 and 3.22 of the Listing Rules and Code Provision C.3.3 of
the CG Code. The full terms of reference of the Audit Committee
are available on the Stock Exchange’s website and the Company’s
website.

As at 31 December 2020, the Audit Committee was made up of
three independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Leung
Tsz Wing (chairman of the Audit Committee), Mr. Ip Mei Shun
and Mr. Yu Wai Chun. Mr. Leung Tsz Wing was the Chairman
of the Audit Committee. Mr. Leung Tsz Wing is a member
of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
and holds Chartered Financial Analyst (CFA) designation, and
therefore possesses the appropriate accounting qualifications and
experiences in financial matters.

The Audit Committee meets at least twice annually and also
meets with the Company’s external auditor at least twice
annually to discuss the audit plan and to review the Company’s
annual report and accounts. During the year ended 31 December
2020, the Audit Committee held 6 meetings.

The primary duties of the Audit Committee include, but not
limited to:

o make recommendation to the Board on the appointment,
reappointment and removal of the external auditor, and to
approve the remuneration and terms of engagement of the
external auditor, and any questions of the resignation or
the dismissal of that auditor;

o review and monitor the external auditor’'s independence
and objectivity and the effectiveness of the audit process
and reporting obligations in accordance with applicable
standards;

o discuss with the auditor the nature and scope of the audit
and reporting obligations before the audit commences;

e develop and implement policy on engaging an external
auditor to supply non-audit services;
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o act as the key representative body for overseeing the
Company’s relations with the external auditor;

o monitor the integrity of financial statements of the
Company and the Company’s annual report and accounts,
half-year report and, if prepared for publication, quarterly
reports, and to review significant financial reporting
judgements contained in them;

o review arrangements employees of the Company can use,
in confidence to raise concerns about possible improprieties
in financial reporting, internal control or other matters;

° review the Company’s financial controls, internal control
and risk management systems;

o discuss the internal control system with management to
ensure that management has performed its duties to have
an effective internal control system;

o review the Group's financial and accounting policies and
practices; and

o review the external auditor’'s management letter, any
material queries raised by the auditor to management about
accounting records, financial accounts or systems of control
and management's response.

Audit Committee also reviewed final results of the Company and
its subsidiaries for the year ended 31 December 2020 as well
as the audit report prepared by the external auditor relating to
accounting issues and major findings in course of audit.

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee was established in compliance with
Rules 3.25 and 3.26 of the Listing Rules and Code Provision B.1.2
of the CG Code. The full terms of reference of the Remuneration
Committee are available on the Stock Exchange’s website and
the Company’s website.
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As at 31 December 2020, the Remuneration Committee was
made up of three independent non-executive Directors, namely
Mr. Ip Mei Shun (chairman of the Remuneration Committee), Mr.
Leung Tsz Wing and Mr. Yu Wai Chun. Mr. Ip Mei Shun was the
Chairman of the Remuneration Committee.

The Remuneration Committee meets at least once a year to
review the remuneration of Directors and make recommendations
to the Board. During the year ended 31 December 2020, 5
meetings of the Remuneration Committee were held.

The primary duties of the Remuneration Committee include, but
not limited to:

o make recommendations to the Board on the Company'’s
policy and structure for the remuneration packages of
Directors and senior management;

o determine with delegated responsibility the remuneration
packages of individual Directors and senior management;

o review and approve compensation payable to executive
Directors and senior management for any loss or
termination of office; and

o review and approve compensation arrangements relating to
dismissal or removal of Directors for misconduct.

Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee was established in compliance with
Code Provision A.5.1 and A.5.2 of the CG Code. The full terms
of reference of the Nomination Committee are available on the
Stock Exchange’s website and the Company’s website.

As at 31 December 2020, the Nomination Committee was made
up of three independent non-executive Directors, namely, Mr.
Yu Wai Chun (chairman of the Nomination Committee), Mr. Ip
Mei Shun and Mr. Leung Tsz Wing. Mr. Yu Wai Chun was the
Chairman of the Nomination Committee.

The Nomination Committee meets at least once a year.
During the year ended 31 December 2020, 5 meetings of the
Nomination Committee were held.
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The primary duties of the Nomination Committee include, but

not limited to:

54

review the structure, size, composition and diversity
(including the skills, knowledge and experience) of the
Board at least annually and make recommendations to
the Board in order to maintain an appropriate range and
balance of skills, knowledge and experience of the Board;

To review the policy concerning diversity of the Board as
appropriate, to review the measurable objectives set for
implementing the board diversity policy and the progress
made towards achieving those objectives, and to disclose
the review results in the annual corporate governance
report.

identify individuals suitably qualified to become Directors
and select or make recommendations to the Board on
the selection of, individuals nominated for directorships.
In identifying suitable candidates, a range of diversity
perspectives with reference to the Company’s business
model and specific needs will be considered, including
but not limited to gender, age, culture, race, educational
background, professional experience, knowledge and skills;

assess the independence of independent non-executive
Directors;

make recommendations to the Board on the appointment
or re-appointment of Directors and succession planning for
Directors; and

conform to any requirement, direction, and regulation
that may from time to time be prescribed by the Board or
contained in the constitution of the Company or imposed
by the Listing Rules or applicable law.
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NOMINATION POLICY
The Board has adopted a nomination policy. A summary of this
policy is disclosed as below.

1. Criteria
The Nomination Committee and/or the Board shall consider
the following criteria in evaluating and selecting candidates
for directorships:

J Character and integrity.

o Qualifications including professional qualifications,
skills, knowledge and experience that are relevant to
the Company'’s business and corporate strategy.

o Willingness to devote adequate time to discharge
duties as a Board member and other directorships and
significant commitments.

o Requirement for the Board to have independent
directors in accordance with the Listing Rules (as
amended from time to time) and whether the
candidates would be considered independent with
reference to the independence guidelines set out in
the Listing Rules.

o Board Diversity Policy and any measurable objectives
adopted by the Company for achieving diversity on the
Board.

J Such other perspectives appropriate to the Company’s
business.

2. Nomination Process

Appointment of New Director

e  The Nomination Committee and/or the Board shall,
upon receipt of the proposal on appointment of
new director and the biographical information (or
relevant details) of the candidate, evaluate such
candidate based on the criteria as set out in section 1
to determine whether such candidate is qualified for
directorship.
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If the process yields one or more desirable candidates,
the Nomination Committee and/or the Board shall rank
them by order of preference based on the needs of
the Company and reference check of each candidate
(where applicable).

The Nomination Committee shall make
recommendation to the Board in respect of the
appointment of appropriate candidate for directorship.

For any person that is nominated by a Shareholder
for election as a director at the general meeting of
the Company, the Nomination Committee and/or the
Board shall evaluate such candidate based on the
criteria as set out in section 1 to determine whether
such candidate is qualified for directorship and where
appropriate, the Nomination Committee and/or the
Board shall make recommendation to Shareholders
in respect of the proposed election of director at the
general meeting.

Re-election of Director at General Meeting

The Nomination Committee and/or the Board shall
review the overall contribution and service to the
Company of the retiring director including his/her
attendance of Board meetings and, where applicable,
general meetings, and the level of participation and
performance on the Board.

The Nomination Committee and/or the Board shall also
review and determine whether the retiring director
continues to meet the criteria as set out in section 1.

The Nomination Committee and/or the Board shall
then make recommendation to Shareholders in respect
of the proposed re-election of director at the general
meeting.
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BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

In order to strengthen the business development of the
Company, enhancement of the effectiveness and performance
of the Board are the fundamental and vital elements. The
Company believes that diversity at the Board level can intensify
these fundamental elements. The Board diversity shall consider
from, including but not limited to, age, gender, educational
background, professional experience, skills, knowledge and
length of service. All the appointments of the Board members
shall be based on the positive contribution to be brought by the
proposed candidate to the Company, its subsidiaries and/or its
affiliated companies of the group.

It is set out below a list of measurable objectives for selection
of candidates. The list is only an indication of factors relevant
to the selection of candidates to be considered by the
Nomination Committee and shall not be regarded as conclusive
nor exhaustive in nature. Where appropriate, the Nomination
Committee may take into account and/or further adopt and/
or weight against one another such factor(s) relevant to the
business to be transacted.

Age: 18 or over.

o Gender: Welcome both genders with no preference for any
particular proportion.

o Professional qualification: At least one independent non-
executive Director shall possess appropriate professional
qualifications in finance and accounting and meets the
requirements of the Listing Rules.

o Composition: One third of the Board or minimum three
members shall be independent non-executive Directors to
meet the requirements of the Listing Rules.

o Service period: Independent non-executive Directors’ tenure
(as at the date of re-appointment) could be relevant to the
determination of a non-executive Directors’ independence.
Re-appointment of independent non-executive Director
serving more than 9 years should be in full compliance with
the Listing Rules requirements.
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e Other experience: Knowledge and experience which may
contribute to the business of the Company.

e Any other relevant factors
As at the date of this report,

° 1 Director was within the age range of 30-39, 4 Directors
were within the age range of 40-49, 2 Directors were
within the age range of 50-59, and 1 Director was within
the age range of 60-69;

° nine Directors were male and nil Director was female;

o two Directors possessed appropriate professional
qualifications in finance and accounting and meets the
requirements of the Listing Rules;

° three Directors, being one third of the Board, were
independent in accordance with the Listing Rules;

o all Directors contributed to the business of the Company
with their own knowledge and experience.

The Nomination Committee acknowledged that there was an
imbalance between the male and female Directors. Consideration
of such fact would be taken into account for selection and
appointment of future candidates.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTION

The Board is responsible for, amongst other things, the
development and review of the policies and practices on
corporate governance of the Group and monitoring the
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements, reviewing
and monitoring the training and continuous professional
development of Directors and senior management, and reviewing
the corporate governance compliance with the Code Provisions
and disclosure in the annual report.
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DIRECTORS® RESPONSIBILITIES FOR FINANCIAL
REPORTING IN RESPECT OF FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the
financial statements of the Company and of the Group for the
year ended 31 December 2020, which give a true and fair view
of the state of affairs of the Company and of the Group on a
going concern basis. The Board is provided with explanations and
information by the senior management of the Company, so that
the Directors have an informed assessment of the financial and
other information of the Group putting forward to the Board for
discussion and approval.

The external auditor of the Company acknowledges his reporting
responsibilities in the Independent Auditor’s Report on the
financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2020 as set
out in the Independent Auditor’s Report on pages 103 to 112 of
the annual report.

AUDITOR’'S REMUNERATION

In respect of the year ended 31 December 2020, the
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remuneration paid and payable to the Company’s external 7S 2\ B Ak K MEAH &1 B A% S F ool A € 51 i
auditor, Zenith CPA Limited, is set out below: HEFTARA AT
HK$' 000
FHER
Audit service IR 1,348

No non-audit services have been provided by the Company’s
external auditor, Zenith CPA Limited, for the year ended 31
December 2020.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL
The Board is responsible for maintaining a sound risk
management and internal control systems to ensure that a review
of the effectiveness of the risk management and internal control
systems of the Group has been conducted at least annually,
covering all material controls, including financial, operational and
compliance controls, and ensuring adequacy of resources, staff
qualifications and experience, training programs and budget of
the accounting, internal audit and financial reporting functions.
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The Board has also considered the adequacy of resources,
qgualifications and experience of staff of the Company’s
accounting and financial reporting function, and their training
programs.

The Company conducted review of the risk management and
internal control systems of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2020, in order to ensure and enhance (i) proper
process used to identify, evaluate and manage significant risks;
(ii) main features of the risk management and internal control
systems were identified; (iii) the systems were designed to
manage the risks to achieve business objectives and provide
reasonable assurance against material misstatement or loss; (iv)
appropriate process to resolve material internal control defects;
and (v) effective procedures and internal controls for inside
information management. The Company has conducted a review
of the internal audit function of the Group.

The Board has reviewed the effectiveness of the risk
management and internal control systems of the Group annually
and considered that the systems were appropriate.

COMPANY SECRETARY
Mr. Zhou Danging was appointed as the Company Secretary of
the Company in August 2019.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, Mr. Zhou Danging
has complied with the relevant professional training requirement
under Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules.

COMMUNICATIONS WITH SHAREHOLDERS AND
INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Company considers that effective communication with
shareholders is essential for enhancing investor relations and
understanding of the Group’s business, performance and
strategies. The Company also recognizes the importance of
timely disclosure of information, which will enable shareholders
and investors to make the informed investment decisions.

The various channels via which the Company communicates with
its shareholders include interim and annual reports, information
on the websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company,
annual general meeting and other general meeting that may be
convened.
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RIGHTS OF SHAREHOLDERS

The right to attend the annual general meeting
and to receive information

The annual general meeting of the Company provides
opportunity for shareholders to communicate directly with
the Directors. The Chairman and the chairman of the Board
committees will attend the annual general meeting to
answer shareholders’ questions. In their absence, he should
invite another member of the committee or failing this his
duly appointed delegate, to attend. These persons should
be available to answer questions at the annual general
meeting. The chairman of the independent board committee
(if any) should also be available to answer questions at any
general meeting to approve a connected transaction or any
other transaction that requires independent shareholders’
approval. The external auditor of the Company will also
attend the annual general meeting to answer questions
about the conduct of the audit, the preparation and
contents of the auditor’s report, the accounting policies and
auditor independence.

Copies of the reporting documents, including financial
statements, the Directors’ report and the auditor’s report
must be sent to members at least 21 working days before
the annual general meeting of the Company.

The right to convene an extraordinary general
meeting

Any one or more shareholders holding at the date of
deposit of the requisition not less than one-tenth of the
paid up capital of the Company carrying the right of voting
at general meetings of the Company shall at all times
have the right, by written requisition to the Board or the
company secretary, to require an extraordinary general
meeting to be called by the Board for the transaction of
any business specified in such requisition; and such meeting
shall be held within 2 months after the deposit of such
requisition.
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If within 21 days of such deposit the Board fails to proceed
to convene such meeting the requisitionists themselves may
do so in the same manner, and all reasonable expenses
incurred by the requisitionists as a result of the failure of
the Board shall be reimbursed to the requisitionists by the
Company.

The voting powers at the shareholders’ meetings
Every shareholder has the right to vote at the shareholders
meetings subject to provisions on the Articles.

The power to elect and re-elect Directors and
auditors

The shareholders could hold individual Directors (or the
Board as a whole) to account for their actions by voting
against their re-election. The Articles provides at each
annual general meeting one-third of the Directors for the
time being (or, if their number is not a multiple of 3, the
number nearest to but not less than one-third) shall retire
from office by rotation provided that every Director shall be
subject to retirement at an annual general meeting at least
once every three years.

For the Directors to retire by rotation, and if they wish,
they may submit themselves for re-election at the annual
general meeting. The retiring Directors are eligible for
reappointment to the office.

The shareholders also have the right to approve (or reject)
the appointment of the auditors each year. The Company
may by an ordinary resolution passed at a general meeting
remove a person from the office of auditor despite any
agreement between the person and the Company or
anything in the Articles.

The right to receive information of the Company

The Company shall keep shareholders informed of certain
developments and to obtain shareholder approval for
certain transactions in accordance with the Listing Rules.
In these cases, the Company must communicate with its
shareholders and seek their support.
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The right to communicate with the Company

The Chairman or the executive Director should ensure
that the views of the shareholders are communicated to
the Board as a whole and the Chairman or the executive
Director should discuss strategy and governance with the
major shareholders.

Non-executive Directors should be given the opportunity
to attend general meetings with major shareholders, and
should be expected to attend general meetings if requested
by major shareholders.

CONSTRUCTIVE USE OF GENERAL MEETINGS

Effectiveness of general meetings

Shareholders should be given the opportunity to send in
written questions before the meeting. There should be a
circulation of a brief summary of points raised at the annual
general meeting to all shareholders after the event. The
Board should dispatch a circular accompanying the annual
general meeting notice, which contains comprehensive
information on the business to be transacted at the
meeting, together with summary procedure governing
voting at the annual general meeting and frequently asked
questions regarding voting procedures.

The Company should arrange for the notice of the annual
general meeting and the related papers to be sent to the
shareholders at least 21 working days before the meeting.
For other general meetings this should be at least 14
working days in advance.

Giving shareholders an opportunity to ask
questions

The Chairman should attend the annual general meeting.
He/she should also invite the chairmen of the audit,
nomination and remuneration committees and any
other committees (as appropriate) to be available to
answer questions at the annual general meeting. In
addition, independent non-executive Directors and other
non-executive Directors should attend general meetings
and develop a balanced understanding of the views of
shareholders.
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Voting procedure

At any general meeting, the Company proposes a separate
resolution on each substantially separate issue and in
particular proposes a resolution at the annual general
meeting relating to the report and accounts. For each
resolution, proxy appointment forms should provide
shareholders with the option to direct their proxy to vote
either for or against the resolution or to withhold their
vote.

At any general meeting there should also be a separate
resolution to each substantially separate issue. The
Company should avoid “bundling” resolutions unless they
are interdependent and linked forming one significant
proposal. Where the resolutions are “bundled”, the
Company should explain the reasons and material
implications in the notice of meeting.

In the context of voting by proxy and poll results, the
Company should ensure that all valid proxy appointments
received are properly recorded and counted. For each
resolution, after a vote has been taken, except where taken
on a poll, the Company should ensure that the following
information is given at the meeting and made available
as soon as reasonably practicable on a website which is
maintained by or on behalf of the company.

The Company should announce the poll results as soon as
possible and at least 30 minutes before the commencement
of the Exchange’s morning session or any pre-opening
session on the business day following the general meeting.
The poll results announcement must include: the number of
shares entitling the holder to attend and vote at the general
meeting; shares entitling the holder to attend and abstain
from voting in favour; shares of holders that are required
under the Listing Rules to abstain from voting; shares
actually voted for a resolution and shares actually voted
against a resolution.
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SHAREHOLDERS" ENQUIRES

Shareholders should direct their questions about their
shareholdings to the Company's registrar, Tricor Investor Services
Limited at Level 54, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East,
Hong Kong.

Shareholders and the investment community may at any time
make a request for the Company’s publicly available information.
The designated contacts and addresses to enable them to make
query in respect of the company are:

Contact: the Board of Directors

Address: Room 1001, 10/F., Wing On Centre, 111
Connaught Road Central, Hong Kong

Fax: (852) 3728 8710

DIVIDEND POLICY
The Board has adopted a dividend policy (the “Dividend Policy”).
A summary of this policy is disclosed as below.

The Company may declare and pay dividends to the Shareholders
by way of cash or by other means that the Board considers
appropriate. It is the policy of the Board, in recommending
dividends, to allow the Shareholders to participate in the
Company’s profits, and at the same time, to ensure the Company
to retain adequate reserves for future growth. The Company’s
decision to declare or to pay any dividends in the future, and
the amount of such dividends will depend upon, among other
things, the current and future operations, financial condition,
liquidity position and capital requirements of the Group, as
well as dividends received from the Company’'s subsidiaries and
associates, which in turn will depend on the ability of those
subsidiaries and associates to pay a dividend. In addition, any
final dividends for a financial year will be subject to the approval
of the Shareholders. The declaration and payment of dividends
by the Company is also subject to any restrictions under the laws
of Cayman Islands, the laws of Hong Kong, the Company's article
of association and any applicable laws, rules and regulations.
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Whilst this Dividend Policy reflects the Board’s current views on
the financial and cash-flow position of the Group, the Board will
continue to review this Dividend Policy from time to time and the
Board may exercise its sole and absolute discretion to update,
amend and/or modify this Dividend Policy at any time as it deems
fit and necessary. There is no assurance that dividends will be
declared or paid in any particular amount for any given period.
The Dividend Policy shall in no way constitute a legally binding
commitment by the Company that any dividend will be paid in
any particular amount and/or in no way obligate the Company to
declare a dividend at any time or from time to time.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

There was no amendment made to the memorandum and
articles of association of the Company during the year ended
31 December 2020. The latest version of the constitutional
documents of the Company is available on the websites of the
Stock Exchange and the Company.
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The Directors are pleased to present their report together with
the audited financial statements of the Group for the year ended
31 December 2020.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activities of the Group are investment holding.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group’s principal
subsidiaries were engaged in the business of (i) development,
production and sale of automotive engines; and (ii) civil
engineering works and building construction and maintenance.

In January 2021, the Group proceeded and completed the
disposal of the entire business of development, production and
sale of automotive engines.

RESULTS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2020
are set out in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income on pages 113 to 114 of the annual
report.

BUSINESS REVIEW

A fair review of the Group’s business, particulars of important
events affecting the Group that have occurred during the
year ended 31 December 2020, and an indication of likely
future development in the Group’s business, are set out in
the “Director’'s Statement” and “Management Discussion
and Analysis” of this annual report. A description of principal
risks and uncertainties facing the Group is also set out in the
“Management Discussion and Analysis” of this annual report.
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ENVIRONMENTAL POLICY

The Group's commitment to protecting the environment is well
reflected by its continuous efforts in promoting green measures
and awareness in its daily business operations. The Group
encourages environmental protection and promote awareness
towards environmental protection to the employees. The Group
also implements green office practices such as promoting the
use of recycled papers and reducing energy consumption by
switching off idle lighting and electrical appliances.

The Group will review its environmental practices from time
to time and will consider implementing further eco-friendly
measures and practices in the operation of the Group’s
businesses and enhance environmental sustainability.

COMPLIANCE WITH RELEVANT LAWS AND
REGULATIONS

During the current financial year, as far as the Group is
aware, there was no material breach of or non-compliance
with applicable laws and regulations by the Group that has a
significant impact on the business and operations of the Group.

RELATIONSHIPS WITH STAKEHOLDERS

The Group recognizes that employees are valuable assets. Thus,
the Group provides competitive remuneration package to attract
and motivate the employees. The Group regularly reviews the
remuneration package of employees and makes necessary
adjustments to conform to the market standard.

The Group also understands that it is important to maintain good
relationship with business partners to achieve its long-term goals.
Accordingly, senior management have kept good communication,
promptly exchanged ideas and shared business update with them
when appropriate. During the current financial year, there was
no material and significant dispute between the Group and its
business partners.

FINAL DIVIDEND
The Board does not recommend the payment of final dividend
for the year ended 31 December 2020 (2019: Nil).
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SUMMARY FINANCIAL INFORMATION

A summary of the published results and assets and liabilities
of the Group for the last five period/years, as extracted from
the audited financial statements, is set out on page 240 in this
report. This summary does not form part of the audited financial
statements.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

Pursuant to the Articles, every Director shall be entitled to be
indemnified out of the assets of the Group against all losses
or liabilities which he/she may sustain or incur in or about the
execution of the duties of his/her office or otherwise in relation
thereto. There is appropriate directors’ and officers’ liability
insurance coverage for the directors and officers of the Group.

SHARE CAPITAL, SHARE OPTION, CONVERTIBLE
BONDS AND PROMISSORY NOTES

Details of movements in the Group’s share capital, share options,
convertible bonds and the promissory notes during the year are
set out in notes 26, 27, 29 and 30 to the financial statements.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Save for the share option scheme as disclosed in the below
section headed “Share Option Scheme” and the section headed
“Convertible Bonds” of “Management Discussion and Analysis”,
no equity-linked agreements were entered into by the Group, or
existed during the year ended 31 December 2020.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of
the whole or any substantial part of the business of the Group
were entered into or existed during the year ended 31 December
2020.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the largest customer
accounted for approximately 33.4% (2019: approximately
42.5%) of the Group's total revenues. The five largest customers
accounted for approximately 98.8% (2019: approximately
98.8%) of the Group’s total revenues for the year ended 31
December 2020.
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS (Continued)
For the Automotive Engines Business, the customer base is
relatively concentrated to certain private companies in China.

For the Civil Engineering and Construction Business, the customer
base is relatively concentrated to certain departments of the
Government, public utilities companies and private organisations
in Hong Kong.

None of the Directors or their respective associates or any
Shareholder (to the knowledge of our Directors) holding more
than 5% of the Group's issued share capital had any interest in
the five largest customers.

The Group’s five largest suppliers, being its suppliers for
Automotive Engines Business and sub-contractors for Civil
Engineering and Construction segment, together accounted
for approximately 47.9% (2019: approximately 71.6%) of the
Group's total cost of sales charged to the Group for the year
ended 31 December 2020. The largest supplier accounted for
approximately 16.2% (2019: approximately 38.5%) of the
total cost of sales charged to the Group for the year ended 31
December 2020.

Other than as set out in the paragraph above, none of the
Directors or their associates or any Shareholders (to the
knowledge of our Directors) holding more than 5% of the
Group's issued share capital had any interests in the five largest
sub-contractors.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment of
the Group during the year ended 31 December 2020 are set out
in note 14 to the financial statements.

RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Group during the
year ended 31 December 2020 are set out in the consolidated
statement of changes in equity.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES
The Group had no reserve available for distribution to
Shareholders as at 31 December 2020 (2019: Nil).
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PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Articles
or the laws of Cayman Islands where the Group is incorporated,
which would oblige the Group to offer new shares to existing
Shareholders on a pro-rata basis.

TAX RELIEF

The Group is not aware of any relief from taxation available to
shareholders by reason of their holding of the Group’s listed
securities.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’
SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES
As at 31 December 2020, the following interests of 5% or more
of the issued share capital of the Group were recorded in the
register of interests required to be kept by the Group pursuant
to Section 336 of the SFO:

INTERESTS IN

Long position in the issued shares/underlying shares of the Group
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BREREE BB Misr RERMEE HERGEE (K1zE(a))
Mr. Jiang Jianhui (b)  Interest in a controlled 147,700,000 73.85%
corporation
LM Z D ERE AR
Youth Force Asia Ltd (b)  Beneficial owner 147,700,000 73.85%
Youth Force Asia Ltd Bmfa A
Mr. Liu Chang (c) Interest in a controlled 195,000,000 97.5%
corporation
B854 Ve EREL
Power Expert Global Limited (c) Beneficial owner 195,000,000 97.5%
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS" INTERESTS IN
SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES (Continued)

Notes:

(@) Calculated on the basis of 200,000,000 ordinary shares issued.

(b)  Youth Force Asia Ltd is wholly-owned by Mr. Jiang Jianhui.
As such, Mr. Jiang Jianhui is deemed to be interested in the
147,700,000 shares owned by Youth Force Asia Ltd.

(c)  Power Expert Global Limited is wholly-owned by Mr. Liu Chang. As
such, Mr. Liu Chang is deemed to be interested in the 175,000,000
underlying shares through its interests in the convertible bonds
of the Group and the 20,000,000 issued shares owned by Power
Expert Global Limited.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
GROUP’'S LISTED SECURITIES

Neither the Group nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or
redeemed any of the Group's listed securities for the year ended
31 December 2020.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is available to the Group and
within the knowledge of the Directors as at the date of this
Annual Report, the Group has maintained the prescribed
minimum public float under the Listing Rules.

DIRECTORS
The Directors who held office during the year and up to the date
of this Annual Report are as follows:

Executive Directors:
Dr. Gao Gunter (Chairman) (appointed on 2 March 2021)

Mr. Chen Xinwei (appointed on 2 March 2021)

Dr. Cui Dingjun (appointed on 18 March 2021)

Mr. Di Ling (appointed on 18 March 2021)

Mr. Artem Matyushok (Chief Executive Officer)

Mr. Brett Ashley Wight

Mr. Xing Bin (resigned on 2 March 2021)

Mr. Chin Chun Hin (appointed on 13 November 2020
and resigned on 17 March 2021)
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DIRECTORS (Continued)

Executive Directors: (Continued)

Mr. Lam Wah (re-designated from non-executive Director to
executive Director on 3 August 2020 and resigned on
2 March 2021)

Mr. Liu Wengang (resigned on 20 August 2020)

Non-executive Director:
Mr. Chen Bingyan (appointed on 2 february 2021
and resigned on 17 March 2021)

Independent Non-executive Directors:

Mr
Mr
Mr

Mr

. Ip Mei Shun
. Leung Tsz Wing
. Yu Wai Chun (appointed on 16 October 2020)

. Zhang Guozhi (resigned on 16 October 2020)

CHANGE OF DIRECTORS
From 1 January 2020 to the date of this report:

(i)

(i)

(iii)

Mr. Artem Matyushok was appointed as an executive
Director and the chief executive officer of the Group with
effect from 5 February 2020.

Mr. Brett Ashley Wight was appointed as an executive
Director with effect from 5 February 2020.

Mr. Lam Wah was re-designated from a non-executive
Director to an executive Director with effect from 3 August
2020.

Mr. Liu Wengang resigned as an executive Director with
effect from 20 August 2020.

Mr. Zhang Guozhi resigned as an independent non-
executive Director, the chairman of the Nomination
Committee, a member of the Audit Committee and a
member of the Remuneration Committee with effect from
16 October 2020.
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CHANGE OF DIRECTORS (Continued)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

(xi)

(xii)

(xiii)

(xiv)

(xvi)

Mr. Yu Wai Chun was appointed as an independent
non-executive Director, the chairman of the Nomination
Committee, a member of the Audit Committee and a
member of the Remuneration Committee with effect from
16 October 2020.

Mr. Chin Chun Hin was appointed as an executive Director
with effect from 13 November 2020.

Mr. Chen Bingyan was appointed as a non-executive
Director with effect from 2 February 2021.

Mr. Chen Bingyan was appointed as the chairman of the
Board with effect from 9 February 2021.

Mr. Lam Wah resigned as an executive Director with effect
from 2 March 2021.

Mr. Xing Bin resigned as an executive Director with effect
from 2 March 2021.

Dr. Gao Gunter was appointed as an executive Director
with effect from 2 March 2021.

Mr. Chen Xinwei was appointed as an executive Director
with effect from 2 March 2021.

Mr. Chen Bingyan resigned as a non-executive Director and
the chairman of the Board with effect from 17 March 2021.
Mr. Chin Chun Hin resigned as an executive Director with

effect from 17 March 2021.

Dr. Cui Dingjun was appointed as an executive Director
with effect from 18 March 2021.

(xvii) Mr. Di Ling was appointed as an executive Director with

effect from 18 March 2021.

(xviii) Dr. Gao Gunter was appointed as the chairman of the
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Board with effect from 18 March 2021.
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REASONS RELATED TO THE COMPANY'S AFFAIRS
GIVEN BY A DIRECTOR FOR RESIGNATION OR NOT
SEEKING RE-APPOINTMENT
For the year ended 31 December 2020, all directors who resigned
or did not seek re-appointment confirmed that there was no
reason related to the Group’s affairs.

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT OF THE GROUP

Latest biographical details of the Directors and senior
management of the Group are set out in Director and Senior
Management Biographies of this Annual Report.

DISCLOSURE OF CHANGE IN INFORMATION OF
DIRECTORS AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES

Save as disclosed above and in the section headed “Directors
and Senior Management Biographies”, there was no change in
information of the Directors and chief executives of the Group
up to the date of this Annual Report of the Group which is
required to be disclosed pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing
Rules.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS BY
DIRECTORS OF LISTED ISSUERS

The Board has adopted the Model Code as set out in Appendix
10 to the Listing Rules to regulate the Directors’ securities
transactions. The Group had made specific enquiry of all
Directors regarding any non-compliance with the Model Code
for the period under review, and they all have confirmed their
respective full compliance with the required standard set out in
the Model Code during the year ended 31 December 2020.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING
SHARES AND DEBENTURES

As at 31 December 2020, none of the Directors or chief executive
of the Group had registered an interest or a short position in the
shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Group or any of
its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
Securities & Futures Ordinance (the “SFO") which were required
to be notified to the Group and the Stock Exchange pursuant to
Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests and
short positions which he was deemed or taken to have under
such provisions of the SFO) or which were required, pursuant to
Section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in the register referred to
therein, or which were required, pursuant to the Model Code, to
be notified to the Group and the Stock Exchange.

Report of the Directors
EEERE

EERIRTSREAZHERAE
BHEENRE

BE-Z-FFEFL A=+ HILFE
T A7 AT S0AS 3 SR AT 5 2 3% il A
AR SR I S5 AN B A A

FEEEERESREEERE

A S5 B S QR AR B 2 RO T R R
OO AS AR 3 S % AR L R —
i o

REESRITRARER 225

A A A S [ S R A B R | — P
B grH o - WMEAEEAER AW > A
AR bS5 13.51B() e T DL R Y
AR B AT B AR R AT S )

EFTBRITAESETRESFRZIZE
A7 H

O E OB AN TR R B Bk BT A E Sy
Al > RS EREMNBERLS - AEHCH
[ A A0 AT ] R 28 S A2 B S ) 22 R )
BHEFEBEA AN > %S E R
EhBE_ZFZ-_FF+_H=1T—HIF
JE — A AR e S 1) T o B A o

EERBETHRAEZRG - HE
RiOOREERE2ERZRAR

REFZFEFTZA=Z+—H > AEHE
AR AT BOA B M 7 AR 42 I BT AT
FHI i I (R 38 SR8 o S R0 ([ st o I
W BB ) FXVER) BBCG - ARBR B f B
RERE o PR AR 2 S 0 B R 1 8 XV
557 B 873 Wl JEU R B A AR B % g 52 P 4 HE
BORA (G R AR IR R 7 M B ok 1) T A6k SC
BOE AR SR R B IO SR IR BURSE
6 o7 M B Ak 9155 35 2 ok ZH A % A SC i e
RO > O AR R E <y A ZEU AR SR ]
Bt 52 T AR A £ BRIR A o

Annual Report 2020 % " EAEAER 75



Report of the Directors
EEERE

DIRECTORS' SERVICE CONTRACTS

None of the Directors has a service contract which is not
determinable by the Group within one year without payment of
compensation (other than statutory compensation).

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS

No director nor a connected entity of a director had a material
interest, either directly or indirectly, in any transactions,
arrangements or contracts of significance to the business of the
Group to which the Group, or any of the Group’s subsidiaries or
fellow subsidiaries was a party during the year.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING BUSINESS
During the year ended 31 December 2020, no Director was
interested in any business apart from the Group's business, which
competes or is likely to compete, either directly or indirectly, with
the Group’s business which is required to be disclosed pursuant
to the Listing Rules.

ANNUAL CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE

The Group has received, from each independent non-executive
Director, an annual confirmation of his independence pursuant
to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Group considers all
independent non-executive Directors to be independent in
accordance with the independence guidelines set out in Rule
3.13 of the Listing Rules.

REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND FIVE
INDIVIDUALS WITH HIGHEST EMOLUMENTS

The emoluments of Directors and senior management are
recommended by the remuneration committee and determined
by taking into consideration of their duties and responsibilities
with the Group, the market rate and their time, effort and
expertise to be input into the Group’s affairs and the Group’s
performance.

Details of the emoluments of the Directors and the five highest

paid individuals are set out in notes 9 and 10 to the financial
statements in this annual report.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME

At the extraordinary general meeting of the Group held on
24 March 2016, the shareholders of the Group approved
the adoption of the share option scheme of the Group (the
“Scheme”). The relevant listing approval was granted by the
Stock Exchange on 29 March 2016. A summary of the principal
terms of the Scheme are as follows:

Purpose

The purpose of the Scheme is to enable the Group to grant
options to selected eligible participants as incentives or rewards
for their contribution or potential contribution to the Group.

Participants

The eligible participant(s) of the Scheme is/are full time or part
time employees of the Group (including any directors, whether
executive or non-executive and whether independent or not,
of the Group); and any business or joint venture partners,
contractors, agents or representatives, consultants, advisers,
suppliers, producers or licensors, customers, licensees (including
any sub-licensee) or distributors, landlords or tenants (including
any sub-tenants) of the Group or any person who, in the sole
discretion of the Board, has contributed or may contribute to the
Group.

Maximum number of shares

The maximum number of Shares which may be issued upon
exercise of all options which may be granted at any time under
this Scheme together with options which may be granted under
any other share option schemes for the time being of the Group
shall not exceed such number of Shares as equals 10 per cent of
the issued share capital of the Group as at the date of approval
of the Scheme.

Maximum entitlement of each participant

Unless approved by the shareholders of the Group, the total
number of Shares issued and to be issued upon exercise of the
options granted to each eligible participants (including both
exercised and outstanding options) in any 12-month period must
not exceed 1 per cent of the Shares in issue.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued)

Option period

The option period of the Scheme, in respect of any particular
option, the period to be determined and notified by the Directors
to the grantee thereof at the time of making an offer provided
that such period shall not exceed the period of ten (10) years
from the date of the grant of the particular option but subject to
the provisions for early termination thereof contained herein.

Acceptance of offer

Any offer of the option of the Group may be accepted by an
eligible participant in the duplicate letter of option grant letter
comprising acceptance of the offer duly signed by such eligible
participant and received by the Group together with a remittance
in favour of the Group of HK$1.00 by way of consideration for
the grant thereof within twenty-one (21) days from the offer
date.

Exercise price

The exercise price shall be determined at the discretion of the
Board at its absolute discretion, provided that it shall be not less
than the highest of: (a) the closing price of the Shares on the
Stock Exchange as shown in the daily quotations sheet of the
Stock Exchange on the offer date, which must be a Business Day;
(b) the average of the closing prices of the Shares as shown in
the daily quotations sheets of the Stock Exchange for the five
(5) Business Days immediately preceding the offer date; (c) the
nominal value of the Share on the offer date.

Remaining life of the Scheme

The Directors shall be entitled at any time within 10 years
commencing on 29 March 2016 to offer the grant of an option
to any eligible participant. The Scheme will expire on 28 March
2026.

For the year ended 31 December 2020, no options or securities
has been granted, exercised, cancelled or lapsed under the
Scheme. As at 1 January 2020 and 31 December 2020, there
was no outstanding option under the Scheme.
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DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed under the section headed “Directors’ and Chief
Executive's Interests and Short Positions in Shares, Underlying
Shares and Debentures” above, at no time during the year ended
31 December 2020 were rights to acquire benefits by means of
the acquisition of shares in or debentures of the Group granted
to any Director or his/her spouse or children under 18 years
of age, or were any such rights exercised by them; or was the
Group, or any of its subsidiaries, holding companies or fellow
subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to enable the directors
to acquire such rights in any other body corporate.

TRANSACTIONS WITH CONNECTED AND/OR
RELATED PARTIES

As at 31 December 2020, shareholder loans amounted to
approximately HK$32.9 million and controlling shareholder loans
amounted to approximately HK$16.8 million were provided to
the Group for its working capital. The shareholder loans were
conducted on normal commercial terms or better, and were not
secured by the assets of the Group.

Save for disclosed, the Group did not have any connected
transactions which were subject to the reporting requirements
under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules for the year ended 31
December 2020.

More information about the transactions with related parties are
set out in note 38 to the financial results. None of these related
party transactions constitutes “connected transactions” or
"continuing connected transactions” as defined under Chapter
14A of the Listing Rules and therefore there is no disclosure
requirements in accordance with Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Group has applied the principles and Code Provisions as
set out in the CG Code contained in Appendix 14 of the Listing
Rules. During the year ended 31 December 2020, save as
disclosed in the section headed "“Corporate Governance Report”,
the Group has complied with the Code Provisions in the CG
Code.
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EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

Save as disclosed in this report, there was no other significant
event after the reporting period and up to the date of this
Annual Report.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee has reviewed together with the
management the accounting principles and policies adopted by
the Group, discussed risk management, internal controls and
financial reporting matters and the consolidated results of the
Group for the year ended 31 December 2020. As at the date
of this Annual Report, the Audit Committee comprises three
members including Mr. Leung Tsz Wing (Chairman), Mr. Ip Mei
Shun and Mr. Zhang Guozhi all being independent non-executive
Directors.

CHANGE OF AUDITOR IN ANY OF THE PRECEDING
THREE YEARS

On 14 December 2018, Ernst & Young (“EY") has resigned as
the auditor of the Group with effect from the same date, as
the Group and EY could not reach a consensus on the audit fee
for the year ending 31 December 2018. The Group appointed
Zenith CPA Limited as the auditor of the Group with effect
from 14 December 2018 to fill the casual vacancy following the
resignation of EY.
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AUDITOR
The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2020 have been audited by Zenith CPA Limited.

Zenith CPA Limited shall retire in the forthcoming annual
general meeting and, being eligible, will offer themselves for
re-appointment. A resolution for the re-appointment of Zenith
CPA Limited as auditor of the Group will be proposed at the
forthcoming annual general meeting.

On behalf of the Board
Bisu Technology Group International Limited

Dr. Gao Gunter
Chairman

Hong Kong, 29 March 2021
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

RIR - 4 ERERRE

INTRODUCTION

Bisu Technology Group International Limited (the “Company”)
was incorporated in the Cayman Islands as a limited liability
company. The Company's shares are listed on the Main
Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Stock Exchange”) (Stock Code: 1372). The Company with its
subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group” or "we")
were engaged in the business of (i) Civil engineering works
and building construction and maintenance works (the “Civil
Engineering and Construction Business”); and (ii) development,
production and sale of automotive engines (the “Automotive

Engines Business”).

PURPOSE OF THIS REPORT

This is the sixth “Environmental, Social and Governance
Report” prepared by the Group. This report mainly outlines
the commitments and strategies and report the Company’s
performance regarding environmental protection, social
responsibility and governance issues.

SCOPE OF COVERAGE

This report outlines the environmental and social performance of
the Group’s core business segment operations. Our sixth report
with particular focus on impacts arising from the following
operation locations of the Group:

o Group's headquarter office in Hong Kong; and

° Civil Engineering and Construction Business in Hong Kong.
Due to the delay in resumption of the operation of the
Automotive Engines Business in Chongqing, the performance
regarding environmental protection, social responsibility and

governance issue of automotive engines production base in
Chongging is excluded in the scope.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

BASIS OF PREPARATION

Relevant disclosures of this report are prepared in accordance
with the Environmental, Social and Governance Reporting Guide
(the "Guide”) under Appendix 27 of the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities issued by the Stock Exchange. The content
of this report includes two main subject areas, being Area A—
Environmental and Area B—Social as required by the Guide.

TIME RANGE
This report is an annual report for the year from 1 January 2020
to 31 December 2020.

STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT

The Group places high value on communication with
stakeholders. To ensure the Group to operate in a sustainable
manner, we engage our stakeholders regularly to understand
the business impacts we bring to them and how they expect us
to tackle our impacts. Our business activities involve a diverse
range of stakeholders, including but not limited to shareholders,
investors, clients, employees, contractors and suppliers. To
understand their concerns, we employ a multi-channel approach
to gather feedback and strive for continuous improvement. The
information we gathered and analyzed was not only the summary
of the environmental and social works carried out by the Group
during 2020, but also the basis for the Group to make strategies
for sustainable development. The following table summaries
stakeholders’ participation channels and their expectations and
demands.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report
RIE - HERERRS

STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT (Continued)

EEASH(F)

Stakeholders Most concerns Major Communication Channels
BHEA IE@E IZEERE
Customers e Quality of works e One-on-one meetings
®F o TiFEE o —H-8HK
e Compliance o Company website
o HH o ATl

Suppliers and
Subcontractors

HEFRD BE

Employees

==
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o Business ethics
o PHEHETE

o Operational risk
o EERER

o Health and safety

o fRREZE

e Green practices
o REOEE

e Compliance

o aM

o Health and safety

o fRREZE

e Training and development
o HEAIEER

o Employee well-being

o (BRI

o Online survey

o ERHAE
e Meetings
. G

e Training sessions

o Sl

o Safety and environmental
o HRBRE

o Online survey

o ERWAE

o Performance appraisals

o REFH

e Training and development
o HEIIEEER

* Employee engagement

o EEZH

e Meetings

. @ik

e Email and instant communication
o BEKAFER

o Online survey

o EHRWE

o Mobile applications

o BEENEF



Environmental, Social and Governance Report

STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT (Continued)

Stakeholders
EEA

Most concerns
TEEE

RiIR - HERERHRE

EEA2H(#)

Major Communication Channels

TRBBRE

Shareholders and Investors

BRREEREE

Government and
Regulatory Authorities
BRREEHE

Community

HE

o Financial results

o APFEES

o Corporate strategy and governance
o AREHIREIG

o Sustainability business development
o EBTRERE

o Information disclosure

o [FEHE

e Risk management

o B

e Compliance

o Al

o Employee protection
o EARHE

¢ Industry innovation

o TR

e Environmental impact
o B
e Community support

o MRS

o Annual general meeting

o BREBEERE

e Annual Report, Interim Report and ESG Report
o ARG - PG REE - AL R
e Announcements/Circulars

o A

o Company websites

o AuldEuh

o Newsletter

o il

o Industry collaboration consortium

o frEGTEEE

o Communication on the relevant latest laws and
regulations

o RHEA B ROTIE AL

e Community support activities

o HEFHEE)

e Involvement in environmental protection
activities

o SIMBUERETE

o Notice board

o AT
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

RIR - 4 ERERRE

CARING FOR PEOPLE

Employment and labour practices

The Group seeks and welcomes people with talent and passion.
We are devoted to shape a non-discriminating, diverse, fair and
harmonious workplace disregard of the number of employees.

The Group comply straightly with all applicable rules and
regulations of the “Labour Law of the People’s Republic
of China” and "Employment Ordinances of Hong Kong
Administrative Region”. We treat all job applicants equally
without any unequal restrictions and unequal preferential policies
and provides equal opportunities for all job applicants. Moreover,
the recruitment process is open and transparent and is monitored
with no backroom deals allowed. The Group also complies with
the Labour law and will not employ any child labour.

On employment of employees, all job positions are open to all
with equal opportunities, decided with no discrimination on
sex, race, religion, gender, age and disability basis, and selected
on skill and competency basis. We identify potential new hires
using appropriate assessment tools and regularly review our
recruitment mechanism to ensure criteria for recruitment aligns
with our up-to-date requirements. The Group also consider
internal promotion and job rotation to ensure equal opportunities
are given to existing employees. The Group treats all employees
equally and consideration for issues such as employment, salary,
benefit package, bonus, promotion and dismissal is solely based
on their education background, professional qualifications and
competency, and male and female employees are treated equally.
At all time, we comply stringently with all applicable local rules
and regulations in anti-discrimination.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

CARING FOR PEOPLE (Continued)
Employment and labour practices (Continued)
Employees’ remunerations are determined with reference to
the market level as well as their competency, qualifications
and experience. The Group has established a comprehensive
performance review mechanism in order to evaluate performance
of employees openly and fairly. The Group offers competitive
remuneration and benefit package to employees to express our
great gratitude towards their effort.

The Group treasury employees as the most important core asset.
In addition to operating its business diligently and attending
to the needs of employees, the Group pays close attention to
employees’ work and life balance. Employees’ balanced life style
can improve the overall efficiency of the Group. Therefore, the
Group shall comply with local regulations and policies to ensure
proper employees’ working hours and rest days. Furthermore,
to strengthen employees’ sense of belonging to the Group and
create a harmonious working atmosphere, the Group adopts a
series of policies to ensure the work and life balance as follows:
Ensure employees have proper breaks and leaves according to
the relevant laws and regulations in mainland China and Hong
Kong; Target to create a harmonious working atmosphere and
a comfortable workplace; Concern about employees’ health and
care for their families.
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RIE - HERERBE

CARING FOR PEOPLE (Continued) HEEE (E)

Employment and labour practices (Continued) EBREREIER (&)

As at 31 December 2020, the Group had 334 employees (31 WR_E_FHE+_H=+—H  AEHAF
December 2019: 452), with details as follows: 3UH/(ZFE—NFE T _HA=1T—H : 452

Z) EE > FEEIR

Employment status
EfEikAE

31 December 2020
—E-ZF+=-A=+-—H

31 December 2019
—®-AE+=A=t-A

M Full-time M Part-time
28 Fel

Gender

]l

31 December 2020
—B-BF+=ZA=+—8

31 December 2019
—E-hAE+=ZA=+—H

B Male I Female
B4 egia

Age Group

FiRAa Rl

31 December 2020 53%
—E-BF+-A=+-H °
31 December 2019

—Z-AF+=A=+—8H 40%

M Under 30 M 31-50 Over 50
30BR A T 31-508%  50BRMA L

Region

&

31 December 2020
—E-RE+-A=+—H

31 December 2019
—E-NE+ZA=+-H

B Hong Kong M Mainland China
B B A
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

CARING FOR PEOPLE (Continued)
Employment and labour practices (Continued)

In addition to our employees, we also believe board diversity
plays an important role in enhancing the Group’s sustainable
development. Nomination Committee was established not
only to recognise the terms of relevant Code Provisions of the
Stock Exchange Code, but also to review the structure, size,
composition and diversity of the Board from time to time. In
designing the Board’s optimal composition, a range of diversity
perspectives with reference to the Group’s business model and
specific needs will be considered, including but not limited to
gender, age, culture, race, educational background, professional
experience, knowledge and skills. The Nomination Committee
acknowledged that there was an imbalance between the male
and female Directors. Consideration of such fact would be taken
into account for selection and appointment of future candidates.

As at 31 December 2020 and 2019, details of our Board as
follows:

Gender

(1l

31 December 2020
—E-ZEF+-A=+—8H

31 December 2019
—®-AFt+=A=+-A

Age

Fie

31 December 2020
—®-®F+=A=+-A

31 December 2019
- nFt=A=+-A
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MRoBOBER FR—JUEF A= —
H o SIS

B Male M Female
St eq:3

B Age below 45 B Age above 45

4557 AT

Designation
g

31 December 2020
—E-E2F+ZA=+—H

31 December 2019
—E-hE+=ZA=+—H

M Executive Director M Non-Executive Director

HiTEE FBITESF

4555 A £

Independent Non-Executive Director

BIAIFITES
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RIR - 4 ERERRE

CARING FOR PEOPLE (Continued)

Health and safety

Safety is the top priority in everything we do. In order to achieve
our goal of zero injuries, we pay special attention to providing a
healthy and safe working environment for all of our employees.
To meet our goal of zero injuries, we strive to integrating
health and safety considerations into all aspects of our business
activities.

In respect of construction business operation, we have been
formulating effective plans and initiatives to cultivate a safety
culture within the Group.

It is vital for our employees and subcontracted workers to be on
the alert for potential hazards, and follow strict safety protocol
when working onsite. Our occupational health and safety
management system has been certified compliance with OHSAS
18001, which is aligned with international standards of best
practice. We work closely with our subcontractors to ensure that
all subcontracted workers we engage are given comprehensive
safety training during different project stages.

As well as attending today-to-day health and safety
considerations, we must be prepared for the unexpected. To
augment the ability of emergency preparedness and response
of our employees, all of our operating companies are required
to carry out emergency drills and safety exercises periodically
according to applicable national laws and regulations as well as
emergency preparedness plans.

We also believe that regular education and training play a vital
role in raising and maintaining the occupational health and
safety awareness among our people at all times. We covered
topics such as safety use of equipment, prevention and handling
of accident, emergency management and rescue, production
safety and corresponding laws and regulations, fire protection
knowledge, etc.

In the event of any safety incident at work, our employees have
to report and investigate the incident in accordance with the
Group's policy. All employees must report to their supervisors in
respect of any accident at work for immediate implementation of
appropriate protective measures.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

CARING FOR PEOPLE (Continued)

Health and safety (Continued)

In both the current and prior reporting year, the Group achieved
the goal of zero fatalities.

RiR - dEREREE

HEEE (&)

BERZ2 (4)

A A AR S b — AR AE I A
BASETHE -

Safety performance ZE2RR
Year ended Year ended
31 December 31 December
2020 2019
8= (S
—ECBH —E A
+t=A=+-8 +ZH=+—H
LHEE 1E4FE
Civil Engineering and Construction EB+t AKIER
Business in Hong Kong BIEEK
Fatalities AN 0
Number of lost time injuries B TR TR 8 5
Lost time injuries frequency rate [ 4.1 2.5

Development and training

The Group considers that the capabilities of our employees are
the key requirements to maintain the Group’s sustainability
and to increase the revenue for the Group. The Group offers
different types of training programs regularly and on needed
basis for employees to improve their skills and satisfy position
needs. Meanwhile, the Group encourages employees to actively
participate in position-related trainings organized by external
institutions in order to enhance individual professional quality
and efficiency, the costs of which would be paid by the Group
on application and by discretion of the senior management.

The Group devotes resources to employees’ development as we
believe that enhancing their knowledge and skills adds value
to our business operations. Training programmes are organized
for all employees by the human resources department and the
operating officer. Besides internal training, the Group provides
subsidies and special leave to employees applying for Graduate
Training Scheme and other Continuing Professional Development
courses. In addition, we strongly support the nurturing of young
talents who are determined to develop their careers in the
construction and engineering industry.
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B HEREARE

CARING FOR PEOPLE (Continued)

Labor standards

The Group has a comprehensive human resources policy in place
regarding recruitment, dismissal, leaves, holidays and benefits
to support our works on manpower resources. The Group
stringently complies with the People’'s Republic of China and
the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region labor laws and
employment regulations, and has totally forbidden recruitment of
child labor and forced labor.

Child Labour Prevention Policy

The Group strictly abides by national laws and regulations and
prohibits the use of child labour. To effectively avoid the use
of child labour, applicants are required to be at least 18 years
old as set out in the recruitment advertisement. Applicants’
identification documents and resumes are also carefully checked
during recruitment to verify their age. Accordingly, a job
applicant will only be interviewed after verification of his or her
identification document in order to avoid employing child labour
using the others’ identification document. Through annual
review on child labour and daily management, the Group will
immediately terminate any employment which is identified as use
of child labour.

Forced Labour Prevention Policy

The Group strictly abides by national laws and regulations and
prohibits all forms of forced labour. The following measures are
implemented strictly: A labour contract or internship agreement
shall be signed by every employee on fair and voluntary basis;
Detention of an employee’s identity card, temporary residence
permit or other identification documents is strictly prohibited;
No department or person is allowed to physically abuse, assault,
body search or insult an employee or to restrict an employee’s
personal freedom by locking up workplace or employee quarters;
and No department or person is allowed to force an employee to
work by any means of violence, threat or unlawful restriction of
personal freedom. The overtime work is required to be arranged
under such principle by the Group to prevent all involuntary
overtime work. Any identified deviation from this principle shall
be investigated immediately.

In both 2020 and 2019, there were zero reported cases of
discrimination and unethical labor practices.
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CARING FOR PEOPLE (Continued)

Operation practices

As the Group regards supply chain competitiveness as one of
the core corporate competitiveness, we have maintained supply
chain management strategy of balancing between quality and
efficiency. At all time, the Group adheres to the principle of
integrity first and conducts business according to the operation
practices which are compliance with the local rules and
regulations.

Supply chain management
Our supply chains mainly cover office supply chains and
construction work with subcontractors and suppliers.

The Group recognises the supply chains play in an important role
in the overall sustainability performance. Stringent guidelines
were adopted to guide the assessment of suppliers. Suppliers
are assessed for their capability to fulfil our business needs
based on a price and non-price factors such as labor practices,
environment and quality.

Civil Engineering and Construction supply chains

During construction projects, we have to work with different
subcontractors and suppliers. Therefore, supply chain
management is important to the Group’s provision of quality
construction work. We have well-established procedures
regarding the selection and control of subcontractors and
supplier partners. The Selection of Subcontractor and Supplier
Policy documents our procedures in selecting suppliers for
projects, and requires cautious assessment of suppliers based on
criteria like reputation, capability, work quality, experience and
other relevant factors.

During the course of project we continue to monitor supplier
performance, and adopt adequate control measures to ensure
that the purchased product conforms to project specifications.
Every year, we evaluate supplier performance to help determine
if the supplier qualifies to stay in our Approved Subcontractors/
Suppliers List. Supplier behaviours are guided by the Supplier
Code of Conduct and site visits are performed to confirm their
compliance to the questionnaire.
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RIR - HERERERE

CARING FOR PEOPLE (Continued)

Supply chain management (Continued)

Encouraging Good Labour Practice

Not only are we committed to treating our own people fairly and
with respect, we also require our construction subcontractors
to follow sound labour practices. At a minimum, we expect our
subcontractors to operate with integrity, treat their people fairly
and ensure compliance with all applicable laws and regulations.
We will hold regular meetings with subcontractors to ensure they
and their workers align with our environmental protection policy.

Supporting Local Subcontractors

We choose to work with subcontractors in Hong Kong whenever
possible. Throughout 2020, all of our subcontractors are located
in Hong Kong. We believe that in doing so, we contribute to the
local economy. We will also assess the viability of incorporating
more medium or even social enterprises in our supply chain to
promote local entrepreneurship.

Quality Management of Civil Engineering and Construction
Business in Hong Kong

We believe that our commitment to enhancing the quality of our
management and construction works is instrumental in
maintaining our overall reputation. In pursuit of quality, we
implement and operate a quality management system in
accordance with the requirements of 1ISO 9001.

To ensure delivery of quality work to our customers, our project
team members are well trained in implementing our quality
control measures which comprise monitoring, verifying and
validating the construction, installation works and materials
before delivery of completed project works to our customers.
Regular inspection will be conducted by our project team
members to ensure that the work completed conforms to the
specifications and requirements set out in the relevant contract.

Meanwhile, the Group recognises the importance of its
supplier and customers’ personal data protection. The Group
has established stringent guidelines to protect and monitor
personal data and privacy. Personal data of our suppliers and
customers are treated as highly confidential and accessible only
by authorised personnel. Internal trainings were organized in
order to ensure employees have well understanding of those
policies so that relevant guidelines could smoothly enact. We
are also devoted to protect intellectual property rights and
trademarks of our suppliers to support their business interests
and confidentiality.
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CARING FOR PEOPLE (Continued)

Anti-corruption

The Group is committed to providing quality products and
services to customers and all employees must perform duties at
the highest level of integrity, commitment and professionalism.
The Group has implemented policies on anti-corruption in
order to prevent, detect and report misconduct. The Group
also provide guidance for all employees which are made
for the purpose of setting out the standard of behavior we
expected for our employees, such as acceptance/offer of gifts or
entertainment during the course of soliciting business, conflict
of interest and outside employment. The Group encourages and
enables employees to raise serious and material concerns on
anti-corruption and in case there is any doubts. All reporting will
be treated as confidential and in a sensitive manner. At the same
time, the Group also welcomes communication and consultation.
With the implementation of clear policies, the Group reported no
bribery nor corruption cases in both 2020 and 2019.

Community

We understands well the importance of making a positive
contribution to the communities where the Group operates,
and sees the interests of the communities as one of its social
responsibilities The Group supports a harmonious and sustainable
working environment.

We encourage our employees to actively participate in charitable
activities at all time. In the coming year, we target to engage
different community groups to support and add value to
communities. We will also invest our money into communities
whenever possible.
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RIR - 4 ERERRE

CARING FOR ENVIRONMENT

We believe that the Group has a large part to play in
protecting the environment. We are committed to protecting
the environment and supporting sustainable development by
conducting our business in an environmentally responsible
manner. We believe that a successful environment management
is important for us to meet customers’ demand in environment
protection and to ensure healthy growth and sustainable
development of our business. Thus, we set and review
environmental objectives from time to time with a target to
minimise our environmental footprints, and seek for continuous
improvement. All of our environmental management policies
were developed based on local requirements and environmental
standards.

Emission

During the current reporting year, the Group had not discovered
any cases of violation of the environmental laws and regulations.
The Group has adopted a series of environmental protection
policies and measures, which are regularly monitored and
evaluated, to lay a solid foundation for green management,
including:

Civil Engineering And Construction Business In Hong
Kong

Green Management

Environmental responsibility is an integral part of our
construction operations. We comply with relevant local laws and
regulations to ensure the environmental impacts arising from
our business are managed in a proper and responsible manner.
Relevant laws and regulations include:

— Air Pollution Control Ordinance (Cap. 311)

— Waste Disposal Ordinance (Cap. 354)

— Water Pollution Control Ordinance (Cap. 358)

— Noise Control Ordinance (Cap. 400)

— Dumping at Sea Ordinance (Cap. 466)

— Environmental Impact Assessment Ordinance (Cap. 499)
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

CARING FOR ENVIRONMENT (Continued)

Civil Engineering And Construction Business In Hong
Kong (Continued)

Green Management (Continued)

In addition, we are increasingly concentrating on the principles
of sustainable construction and have established a strong track
record in executing green building projects. Our environmental
management system was accredited ISO 14001 certification.
Under its rigorous framework, we take a systematic approach
to managing our resources efficiency and emissions control in
order to drive continuous improvement. We place particular
significance on assessing our environmental data, such as energy
and material use, carbon emissions, water consumption and
waste production.

Water Consumption Management
In respect of construction works, to conserve resources, the
Group continuously implement various measures including:

o Conversion & retrofitting of construction machine to fit into
different construction site;

o Compliance with the Code of Practice for Energy Efficiency
of Building Services Installation 2012 and the subsequent
amendment for Lighting, Air Conditioning, Electrical and
Lift Installations;

o Reuse of used timber in construction sites and recycling of
materials like metal parts, plastics and paper packaging;
and

o Reuse treated construction wastewater for water spraying
and wheel washing when possible.

Noise Control Management

Noise is one of the material environmental aspects in the
Group’s construction work operation. During construction, the
operation of machinery and equipment and the construction
processes create noise, which may affect the people nearby. In
managing the impact of construction noise on the surrounding
environment, we strictly adhere to relevant laws and regulations
as well as the Noise Control Ordinance and its established noise
control guidelines for both subcontractors and our employees to
reduce the noise generated from construction and controls the
affecting areas of the noise.
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RIR - HERERERE

CARING FOR ENVIRONMENT (Continued)

Civil Engineering And Construction Business In Hong

Kong (Continued)

Noise Control Management (Continued)

o Monitor noise intensity regularly and obtaining a valid
Construction Noise Permit (CNP) ahead of the construction
works especially for projects involving night-time works
or percussive piling to ensure compliance with the Noise
Control Ordinance.

o Well plan and improve construction processes to reduce
unnecessary knocking and cutting works.

o To lower noise level within an acceptable range, the number
and type of plant used are minimized and as required by
law we apply for Noise Emission Labels for air compressors
and handheld percussive breakers where appropriate.

o While observing the permit specifications, we also install
noise barriers to reduce the construction noise impact to
nearby noise sensitive receivers when necessary.

o Inspect and maintain all equipment in order to comply with
permitted noise level.

We regularly monitor the noise level at our construction sites
against the requirements and specifications of their respective
CNPs. In the reporting year, monitoring results of each site had
not exceeded the noise level limit set by the CNPs.

Management of Construction Waste

We are committed to preventing pollution and mitigating
potential environmental impacts arising from our projects and
operation. Throughout the current financial year, the Group did
not produce any hazardous waste. In managing construction
waste, the possible environmental impacts of waste generated
during the course of its operations such as site clearance,
excavation works, construction and fitting out works. Our
objective is to promote the 3R policy, i.e. reduce, reuse and
recycle, and devote to prevent construction waste from being
disposed of in landfills. To mitigate environmental impacts by
adopting the right waste management strategy, prioritizing
avoidance and minimisation of waste generation, reuse of
materials, recovery and recycling. Waste treatment and disposal
are only the last resort. Specific measures include:
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

CARING FOR ENVIRONMENT (Continued)

Civil Engineering And Construction Business In Hong
Kong (Continued)

Management of Construction Waste (Continued)

Formulating proper work plans and site management
practices to prevent over-ordering of materials and cross
contamination of reusable and recyclable materials to
minimized the waste;

All construction wastes that could not be reuse/recycle are
minimised, transported and disposed of in environmental
friendly manners and in full compliance with statutory
requirements;

Monitoring the performance of our subcontractors to ensure
their compliance with our environmental requirements;

Both the Group and subcontractors carry out classified
collection and disposal of waste by segregating waste
materials into inert, non-inert and chemical waste;

Construction inert waste is disposed to public fill for reuse,
while non-inert waste is reused and recycled by qualified
waste collectors;

The common user disposal containers will be for the
disposal of controlled waste (i.e. non-hazardous industrial or
special waste) and will be situated in both the construction
and site establishment areas;

Notice has been posted which clearly states which materials
can or cannot be disposed of through the common user
disposal skips; and

Waste skips and other receptacles will be checked during
the routine safety and environmental inspections.

Throughout the current financial year ended, the Group is not

aware of any material non-compliance with laws and regulations

relating to air and greenhouse gas emissions, discharges into

water and land, and generation of hazardous and non-hazardous

waste that have a significant impact on the Group.
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RIR - 4 ERERRE

CARING FOR ENVIRONMENT (Continued)

Energy Conservation

The Group is committed to reducing negative impact to our
environment by conducting our operation in an environmentally
responsible manner. In order to reduce our environmental
footprints in the workplace, we always look for opportunities to
reduce unnecessary energy consumption and waste generation.

Green Office Policy

Electricity is the main source of energy used by our offices in our
daily operations. Other resources such as fresh water and paper
and printing ink are also consumed. As part of our environmental
policy, we enact 3R practices — Reduce, Reuse and Recycle — to
minimise the consumption of valuable resources and tackle waste.
The various implemented measures to achieve low-carbon and
green office, including:

o Switch off air conditioning system when out in use;

o Strictly control the air condition temperature by maintaining
temperature of air conditioners to the standard of 25.5
degrees in general conditions;

° Install solar films on window;

o Arrange lighting zoning to ensure that only required
lighting is switched on; and

o Electric appliances are required to turn-off when
unattended, reduce the standby energy consumption of
office equipment such as computer.

During the current reporting year, the Greenhouse gas emissions
("GHG Emissions”) of Scope 2 GHG Emissions' (kg of Co,)? as
follow:
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2020 2019
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Scope 2 GHG Emissions’ (kg of Co2)? 7 2 i U = S PR
(F 5 & bhx) 2 163,995 122,948

Notes:

1. According to the Carbon Audit Guidelines, Scope 2 Emissions refer
to energy indirect emissions. The disclosed figures are resulted
from electricity purchased from power companies.

2. The power company-specific emission factor of Hong Kong Electric
Company is adopted for the calculation.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

CARING FOR ENVIRONMENT (Continued)

Energy Conservation (Continued)

Business Travel Reduction Policy

The Group thoroughly understands that business travel will
leading to increase in emission
of greenhouse gas. Therefore, the Group actively reduces the
number of business trips of employees to reduce the resulted

increase energy consumption,

greenhouse gas emissions. The Group also encourages employees
to communicate in a green manner, e.g. replacing long-distance
travel for face-to-face meetings by video and phone conferences
so as to reduce greenhouse gas emissions caused by extra
transportation. In addition, employees make use of public
transportation during business trips whenever possible. The
Group also encourages employees to plan travel and manpower
arrangements earlier in advance in order to share vehicles and

reduce energy consumption and pollution during travel.

During the current reporting year, the Greenhouse gas emissions
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RIR - 4 ERERRE

CARING FOR ENVIRONMENT (Continued)
Resources Conservation

The Group is well aware that the earth’s natural resources are
limited. Thus, apart from implementing measures for managing
resources consumption and reducing waste generated, various
other policies have been implemented to manage the impact
of our operations on the environment and natural resources.
Natural resources that the Group consumed in normal course of
operations involve paper. To reduce environmental impacts and
raise the efficiency on printing and minimize paper consumption,
the Group focuses on developing recycling measures and requires
all employees to minimize use of office resources such as water,
paper and printing machines ans to store drawings and product
information electronically so as to facilitate information search,
management and sharing.

During the current reporting year, the paper consumption is 1,247
kg.

OUTLOOK

We would like to take this opportunity to extend our sincere
gratitude to our employees, suppliers, shareholders and other
stakeholders for their long-term support and trust to the Group.
The feedbacks from these parties are of great value to us in
forming our business strategy to focus on their needs. “Excellence
is not a destination; it is a continuous journey that never ends”.
Although we believe that our performance has granted positive
recognition in the current financial period, there is still more to be
done. In the coming year, we will continue to strive to implement
the best practices in corporate social responsibility to advance the
global sustainability agenda at large.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

ASSURANCE | TRANSACTIONS | ADVISORY

ZENITH%‘\%

To the shareholders of Bisu Technology Group International Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Bisu
Technology Group International Limited (the “Company”) and
its subsidiaries (the “Group”) set out on pages 113 to 239,
which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position
as at 31 December 2020, and the consolidated statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income, the consolidated
statement of changes in equity and the consolidated statement
of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the
consolidated financial statements, including a summary of
significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the
Group as at 31 December 2020, and of its consolidated financial
performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA"”) and have been properly
prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
B BT RS

To the shareholders of Bisu Technology Group International Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing ("HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in
the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated
financial statements section of our report. We are independent
of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics
for Professional Accountants (the "Code"”), and we have fulfilled
our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

MATERIAL UNCERTAINTY RELATED TO GOING
CONCERN

We draw attention to note 2 in the consolidated net financial
statements, which indicates that as of 31 December 2020, the
Group had net current liabilities of HK$233,085,000 and net
liabilities of HK$678,929,000. These conditions, along with
other matters as set forth in note 2, indicate the existence of
a material uncertainty which may cast significant doubt on the
Group's ability to continue as a going concern. Our opinion is
not modified in respect of this matter.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on
these matters. For each matter below, our description of how
our audit addressed the matter is provided in that context.

We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditor’s
responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial
statements section of our report, including in relation to these
matters. Accordingly, our audit included the performance of
procedures designed to respond to our assessment of the risks of
material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements.
The results of our audit procedures, including the procedures
performed to address the matters below, provide the basis for
our audit opinion on the accompanying consolidated financial
statements.
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To the shareholders of Bisu Technology Group International Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (CONTINUED)

Key audit matters

Independent Auditor’'s Report
iR R S

B ENEEEERAERQAIIRR
(1 2 7E B 2 A 7 9 A R 2 )

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

Impairment assessment of goodwill and property, plant and equipment

As at 31 December 2020, the Group had goodwill
and property, plant and equipment before impairment
amounting to HK$16,338,000 and HK$28,416,000,
respectively, relating to the cash-generating unit
of the development, production and sale of the
automotive engines business (the “Automotive
Engines CGU"). In accordance with HKAS 36
Impairment of Assets, management of the Company
is required to test goodwill for impairment annually.
Management of the Company is also required
to determine whether there are any impairment
indicators for the property, plant and equipment
with reference to the recoverable amount of the
Automotive Engines CGU.

Due to prolonged period of non-performance in
automotive engines business, the carrying amounts
of the Group’s goodwill and property, plant and
equipment related to automotive engines business
amounted to HK$44,754,000 loss allowance were
charged to profit and loss for the year ended 31
December 2020.

We focused on this area because this impairment
assessment is based on the recoverable amount
of the Automotive CGU, which is determined by a
value in use calculation, which requires significant
management’s judgement with respect to a pre-tax
cash flow projection based on the financial budget
approved by management covering a five-year period.
The projection is largely based on management’s
expectations and estimates of future results of sale of
automotive engines.

Disclosures in relation to goodwill and property, plant
and equipment are included in notes 14 and 16 to
the consolidated financial statements.

Our procedures in relation to management’s
judgements used in the impairment assessment of the
goodwill and property, plant and equipment related
to automotive engines business included:

Understanding, evaluating and testing the key
controls over the preparation and approval of
the cash flows projections;

Assessing the competency, objectivity and
independent of the external valuer used by
management;

Discussing with the external valuer their work
scope, and assessing the appropriateness of the
valuation methodology used based on market
industry knowledge and practices;

Assessing reasonableness of the key assumptions
used in value in use calculation, including
growth rate and discount rate by comparing
these assumptions against relevant market data
and future outlook; and

Assessing the adequacy of the disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements.
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To the shareholders of Bisu Technology Group International Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (CONTINUED)

Key audit matters

Independent Auditor’'s Report
iR R S

B ENEEEERAERQAIIRR
(1 2 7E B 2 A 7 9 A R 2 )

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

Recoverability of accounts receivable

As at 31 December 2020, accounts receivable
amounted to HK$95,024,000, representing 37% of
the Group’s total assets as at 31 December 2020.
The loss allowance charged to profit and loss for
the year was HK$152,914,000, and cumulative loss
allowance of accounts receivable carried as at 31
December 2020 was HK$682,856,000. Management
exercised significant judgements to evaluate the
collectability from individual customers after taking
into account their creditworthiness, whether they
have financial difficulties, experience of default in
principal payments, the probability that they will
enter bankruptcy, ageing analysis and forecast of
future events and economic conditions which may
impact the recoverability of accounts receivable. The
judgements applied by management have a significant
impact on the level of provision required for accounts
receivable.

We focused on the impairment assessment of
accounts receivable as a key audit matter because
the material amounts involved, and the significant
judgement and assumptions involved in the
determination of loss allowance under the expected
credit losses model.

Disclosures in relation to accounts receivable are
included in note 20 to the consolidated financial
statements.

Our procedures in relation to management’s
judgements used in the recoverability of accounts
receivable included:

Understanding and evaluating the operating
effectiveness of key internal controls which
govern credit control, debt collection and
estimate of expected credit losses;

Testing on a sample basis the ageing of accounts
receivable as at year end;

Evaluating the level of provision made by
management for accounts receivable based on
management’s estimate of lifetime expected
credit losses to be included with reference
to credit loss experience, ageing of overdue
receivable, customers’ repayment history and
forecast general economic conditions.

Assessing the competency, objectivity and
independent of the external valuer used by
management and discussing with the external
valuer their work scope, and assessing the
appropriateness of the valuation methodology.

Assessing the adequacy of the disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

To the shareholders of Bisu Technology Group International Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OTHER INFORMATION INCLUDED IN THE ANNUAL
REPORT

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises the information
included in the Annual Report, other than the consolidated
financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is
materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements
or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears
to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have
performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of
this other information, we are required to report that fact. We
have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair
view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
and for such internal control as the directors determine is
necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether
due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
of the Company are responsible for assessing the Group's ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters
related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless the directors of the Company either intend to
liguidate the Group or to cease operations or have no realistic
alternative but to do so.

The directors of the Company are assisted by the Audit
Committee in discharging their responsibilities for overseeing the
Group's financial reporting process.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
B BT RS

To the shareholders of Bisu Technology Group International Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

AUDITOR’'S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to
issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Our report is
made solely to you, as a body, in accordance with the terms of
our engagement, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for
the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs
will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably
be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken
on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive
to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The
risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting
from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as
fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to
the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group's
internal control.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

To the shareholders of Bisu Technology Group International Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

AUDITOR’'S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(CONTINUED)

o Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of
the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the
audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate,
to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the
audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the
Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

° Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content
of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and events
in @ manner that achieves fair presentation.

o Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities
within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated
financial statements. We are responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain
solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that
we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear
on our independence, and where applicable, actions taken to
estimate threats or safeguards applied.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
B A2 AR

To the shareholders of Bisu Technology Group International Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

AUDITOR’'S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(CONTINUED)

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee,
we determine those matters that were of most significance
in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the
current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We
describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when,
in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter
should not be communicated in our report because the adverse
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to
outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this
independent auditor’s report is Mr. Cheng Po Yuen.

Zenith CPA Limited

Certified Public Accountants

Cheng Po Yuen

Practising Certificate Number: P04887
Hong Kong

29 March 2021
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and
Other Comprehensive Income

= AN
) 3

BEankHEMEREIRAR

Year ended 31 December 2020
BE-F-BE+ A= ILEE

2020 2019
—ECEF —E—JUE
Notes HK$’000 HK$ 000
(i, FER T
REVENUE WA 6 478,321 459,109
Cost of sales FHE A (470,225) (511,665)
Gross profit/(loss) EA (EEH) 8,096 (52,556)
Other income and gains HoAb A Rl g 6 603,348 4,985
Administrative expenses TR X (45,375) (79,309)
Research and development costs TR Bl A = (842)
Finance costs A5 2T 7 (66,213) (82,065)
Impairment of property, plant and Wy ~ WSRO WA
equipment (28,416) -
Impairment of financial and contract Sl KA A E
assets, net R (152,958) (348,844)
Impairment of goodwill P 16 (16,338) (275,821)
Impairment of intangible assets Y B W 17 - (88,042)
PROFIT/(LOSS) BEFORE TAX BRBLATER(E18) 8 302,144 (922,494)
Income tax (expense)/credit PRl (B 32) /55 11 (115) 16,249
PROFIT/(LOSS) FOR THE YEAR ERBERN(FE) 302,029 (906,245)
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE LOSS Htt2HEEE
Other comprehensive loss that may A5 KB K] T BE R
be reclassified to profit or loss in S E AR 4 1) HoAth
subsequent periods: TR
Exchange differences on translation IR S SE S 1Y BE 51,
of foreign operations R (14,664) (5,094)
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE 2EBA (BIR) #8588
INCOME/(LOSS) 287,365 (911,339)
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and

Other Comprehensive Income
relEnRkREMEEBAR

Year ended 31 December 2020
WEFREF A= 0L

2020 2019
—EEHF ZE U
Notes HK$' 000 HK$' 000
Bt 5 FET Fioo
Profit/(loss) for the year attributable BT ALELEER
to: L (E5E) -
Owners of the parent BRAREEA 302,029 (905,423)
Non-controlling interests FERES - (822)
302,029 (906,245)
Total comprehensive income/(loss) UTATELEREE
for the year attributable to: WA (&) #58 :
Owners of the parent ISENCIE TN 287,365 (910,517)
Non-controlling interests RS - (822)
287,365 (911,339)
EARNINGS/(LOSS) PER SHARE BAREEAEBLEER
ATTRIBUTABLE BF (F#E)
TO OWNERS OF THE PARENT 13
Basic (HK cents) FEA (sl 151.0 (452.7)
Diluted (HK cents) B (L) 84.1 (452.7)
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
e ISR R 3R

As at 31 December 2020
BB EEL A=A

2020 2019
—EEF U
Notes HK$'000 HK$ 000
Bt 5 THT Fioo
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment S E S Y& ] 14 512 32,120
Right-of-use assets i FHRE 15(a) 1,887 3,252
Goodwill R 16 - 16,557
Intangible assets Y &G 17 - =
Total non-current assets I I B AR 2,399 51,929
CURRENT ASSETS RBEE
Inventories ety 18 = 9,895
Contract assets BHERE 19 90,721 60,623
Accounts receivable JRE AR 3R 20 95,024 207,206
Prepayments, deposits and TSI ~ B R
other receivables A AR 21 17,928 44,665
Cash and cash equivalents Bl R B 5 E) 22 49,749 64,777
Total current assets I B A 253,422 387,166
CURRENT LIABILITIES REEE
Accounts payable JREA B 23 340,438 313,300
Tax payable JRE A B IH 97 92
Other payables and accruals A A5 R R T 4R 2 24 86,843 55,686
Interest-bearing bank and other AT EERAT S H A
borrowings 25 38,000 57,980
Lease liabilities FHE A fE 15(b) 2,565 552
Convertible bonds ] fE S 26 = 386,333
Promissory notes 7R 58 S 27 18,564 553,985
Total current liabilities T B E A 486,507 1,367,928
NET CURRENT LIABILITIES REEEFE (233,085) (980,762)
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT AERBERARBRE
LIABILITIES (230,686) (928,833)
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

e M BARR R

As at 31 December 2020
RoZ-BE+ZA=+—H

2020 2019
—EB-EBHF ZE I
Notes HK$’000 HK$’ 000
(i FET THI0
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES #»‘ﬁwﬁF
Other payables and accruals A A K 4 H 24 43,224 29,752
Interest-bearing other borrowing ‘Jr %ﬁﬁ’ﬂ%r)\ 25 6,000
Lease liabilities HEAR 15(b) 108 2,820
Convertible bonds EIE Y deS 26 114,189 =
Promissory notes TR 27 271,319 =
Deferred tax liabilities FEFIE A 7 28 13,403 13,350
Total non-current liabilities E =R b 448,243 45,922
Net liabilities A EFE (678,929) (974,755)
EQUITY e
Equity attributable to owners BAREEAEGER
of the parent
Share capital lii&S 29 2,000 2,000
Equity component of convertible bonds I #2 fi% & % 2 #E 2 &5 384,037 375,576
Reserves Edio (1,064,966) (1,352,331)
Deficiency in assets B At (678,929) (974,755)

Dr. Gao Gunter

SHEEL
Chairman

E
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PREAEE
Executive Director
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
mEREREER

Year ended 31 December 2020
BE-F-BE+ A= ILEE

Attributable to owners of the parent

BRAREARL
Equity
Statutory ~ Exchange  component Share  (Accumulated Non-
Share  Share surplus ~ fluctuation — of convertible option  loss)iretained controlling  Deficiency
capital ~ premium reserve reserve bonds reserve profits  Subtotal interest in assets
EEBH  NERD  TRERES (BitER)

Bs  Kfad 3 fffE  <EEBS BRERE /R2E Nt OFERER  KERM
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS'000 HK$'000  HK$'000 HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000 HK$' 000
Tt Tk T T Tt T T T T T

(note 31(a)) (note 31(b))
(H331(a)) (HzE31(0))
At 1 January 2019 RZF- AR 2000 45486 1085 (22,069) 375,576 = (495,041)  (92,959) = (92,959)
Loss for the year L G = = = = = = (905,423)  (905,423) (822)  (906,245)
Other comprehensive loss ERih2EER :
for the year:
Exchange differences on RN EBME £
translation of foreign
operations - - - (5,094) - - - (5,094) - (5,094)
Total comprehensive loss AFERTERSE
for the year - - - (5,094) - - (905,423)  (910,517) (822) (911,339)
Acquisition of subsidiaries B AR - = S S = S = = 8375 8375
Injection of capital by non- ~ IHEA R R
controlling shareholders of
subsidiaries = = = = = = = = 4,545 4,545
Disposal of subsidiaries HEMBAF = = = = - - - - (120%) (12,09)
Equity-settled share option I ER AR
arrangements - - - - - 28,721 - 28,721 - 28,721

Transfer of share option reserve

SRR b

upon the cancellation of TR
share options - - - - - (28,721) 28,721 - - -
At 31 December 2019 REZ-VELZA=A-H 2,000 45,486* 1,085 (27,159) 375,576 —* (1,371,743 (974,755) - (974,755)
At 1 January 2020 RZBZFE-]-A 2000 45486 1085 (27,159) 375,576 = (137,783)% (974,755) — (974,755
Profit for the year ERh - - = = = = 302,09 302,029 = 302,029
Other comprehensive loss EREMAEER :
for the year:
Exchange differences on BEBMERNEL R
translation of foreign
operations = = = (14,664) = = —  (14,664) = (14,664)
Total comprehensive HEERT (BR)/ WASH
(loss)/income for the year - - - (14,664) - - 302,029 287,365 - 287,365
Modification of TR s
convertible bonds (note 26) ~ (HFzE26) = - = = 8,461 = = 8,461 = 8,461
At 31 December 2020 REF-REFZA=4-0 2000 45486 1,085+ (41,823) 384,037 —* (1,009,714 (678,929) - (678929)

* These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated negative * It 26 ik T B B A R A A B AR L3R PR Y

reserve of HK$1,064,966,000 (2019: HK$1,352,331,000) in the KRt FLfEME1,064,966,0009 70 (—F—JL
consolidated statement of financial position. :1,352,331,000#7C) °
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

RERTRER

Year ended 31 December 2020
BE_EZ-FES A =+—HILEE

2020 2019
—ECEH ZENE
Notes HK$'000 HK$" 000
g FET Tt
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING REEBRELENRERE
ACTIVITIES
Profit/(loss) before tax BrBiATE A (ki R) 302,144 (922,494)
Adjustments for: MTIIEEAEL R
Finance costs W H % 7 66,213 82,065
Interest income FLEMCA 6 (3) (5)
Depreciation of property, plant and E R T Y& Y i
equipment 8 2,898 6,223
Depreciation of right-of-use assets i FIREE s 8 3,648 3,161
Amortisation of intangible assets TV & 8 — 1,236
Gain on disposal of items of HEYIE - WA R
property, plant and equipment JEH Wik £ 6 — (92)
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries H B B 2\ 2 MR 6 — (1,682)
Gain on extinguishment of convertible A B A 40 R R R Y i AR
bonds 6 (293,712) —
Gain on modification of promissory notes B #] & i 22 4% 2 i &k 6 (294,577) -
Impairment of goodwill PR il (L 16 16,338 275,821
Impairment of intangible assets Y& EBE 17 — 88,042
Impairment of financial and SRR A A B BUE T
contract assets, net 8 152,958 348,844
Impairment of property, plant and Wi~ e B W
equipment 8 28,416 —
Provision for inventories R 8 6,748 33,140
Equity-settled shared option expense JHEE &5 L W A B S 8 — 28,721
(8,929) (57,020)
Decrease in inventories & 3,084 63,755
(Increase)/decrease in contract assets BHERE (B Wb (30,142) 137,210
Increase in accounts receivable JRE 5 B 2 448 T (37,618) (39,108)
Decrease/(increase) in prepayments, TEATIE ~ 4 XA
deposits and other receivables JEW D (K ) 26,922 (3,376)
Increase/(decrease) in accounts payable JEAFBE s hn (370 10,863 (27,460)
Increase/(decrease) in other payables and oAb fE A}k K T 4R 2
accruals wm /() 40,390 (25,633)
Cash generated from operations REEENBE 4,570 48,368
Interest received 2 i B 3 5
Interest paid B AE (1,739) (6,545)
Income tax (paid)/refunded (BA}) BB ITER (62) 827
Net cash flows from operating activities MEEERELWRESRE
FH 2,772 42,655
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

n _\éiﬁﬁ;ﬁii

Year ended 31 December 2020
BE_EZ-FEL_H=+—HILEE

2020 2019
—BC-EF —“FhE
Notes HK$'000 HK$" 000
Fif 7 TERT T
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING REXBRELENEESRE
ACTIVITIES
Additions of items of property, plant and  REWIZE « #aE LEHTEH
equipment (122) (15,928)
Proceeds from disposal of items of HEWE - W R EE
property, plant and equipment JiREE: e = 108
Acquisition of subsidiaries 1 i g 2 ) — 596
Disposal of subsidiaries BB 2w — (1,055)
Net cash flows used in investing BOBSER M B B i
activities B (122) (16,279)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING MEXBRELENEESRE
ACTIVITIES
New bank and other loans G ERAT R HAt B - 600
Repayment of bank and other loans B R SRAT RO A B3R (13,980) (7,610)
Principal portion of lease payments HEMFA LTS (3,014) (3,025)
Non-controlling interests arising from BEOME B A T I 42
additional capital injection — 4,545
Advance from a shareholder Ji A B = 22,209
Net cash flows (used in)/from financing RIS (), BN
activities BenERE (16,994) 16,719
NET (DECREASE)/INCREASE IN CASH ReERBLEEN(RD)/
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS EFEE (14,344) 43,095
Cash and cash equivalents at R B R B EEY
beginning of year 64,777 21,706
Effect of foreign exchange rate 41 M [T 32 58 ) 5 28 15
changes, net (684) (24)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS FRNAERAELZEY
AT END OF YEAR 49,749 64,777
ANALYSIS OF BALANCES OF CASH AND BRERERFIZEER
CASH EQUIVALENTS AS STATED IN ReZEY
THE STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS ERDM
Cash and bank balances e RBITRE 22 48,692 64,777
Frozen bank balances URAGSRAT 55 % 1,057 =
Cash and cash equivalents as stated in BEmERII 2B 8K
the statement of cash flows HEEEY 22 49,749 64,777
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Notes to Financial Statements
pE EL

31 December 2020
B SV ES S

1.

120

CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION

Bisu Technology Group International Limited (the
“Company”) is an exempted company with limited liability
incorporated in the Cayman Islands. The registered office
address of the Company is located at Cricket Square,
Hutchins Drive, PO Box 2681, Grand Cayman, KY1-1111,
Cayman Islands. The principal place of business of the
Company is located at Room 1001, 10/F, Wing On Centre,
111 Connaught Road Central, Hong Kong.

During the year, the Group was involved in the following
principal activities:

o Civil engineering works and building construction and
maintenance works; and

o Development, production and sale of the automotive
engines.

In the opinion of the directors, the holding company and
the ultimate holding company of the Company is Youth
Force Asia Ltd., a company incorporated in the British Virgin
Islands.

Bisu Technology Group International Limited Lg% 4 [ B A BR /A ]
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CORPORATE AND GROUP

(Continued)

Information about subsidiaries
Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as

Notes to Financial Statements

INFORMATION

IR MIEE

31 December 2020
SECFEFCAST R

RAREEEHR (&)

REMBATZEN
AL LB WA AT

follows:
Place of
incorporation/ Nominal value of Percentage of
registration and issued ordinary  equity attributable
Company Name business share capital to the Company Principal activities
BMELBR ERTEER KEARELR
NEAER REXBE RANEE BREDL TEXRK
Direct  Indirect
H# &

Chongging Bisu Yunbo Motor Peaple’s Republic of RMB60,000,000 — 100  Development, production
Technology Limited** China ("PRC") AE#60,000,0007C and sale of automotive
("Bisu Yunbo") HE \ R AL A0 engines

B W EHE R R (T 1) BREE - R
A ([HRER ) S KB B

Excel Engineering Company Hong Kong HK$23,288,000 - 100 Civil engineering
Limited Hils 23,288,000 0 works and building

s TRARAH construction and

maintenance works
TATREUREF
RV ER
e Registered as a limited liability company under the PRC law. * ARYE B e R A A PR T o
# The English name of this company represents the best # B 7 7 48 53 E B e 4 it

effort made by the management of the Company to directly
translate its Chinese name as no official English name has

been registered.

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which,

in the opinion of the directors, principally affected the
results for the year or formed a substantial portion of the
net assets of the Group. To give details of other subsidiaries
would, in the opinion of the directors, result in particulars

of excessive length.

N 2SSO A R A PR
RS I B A H A O R

VL ERAR S H R 5 E R B

J3E S A AL A A 2 ) A8 R R O U i
HZARFME AR - EFEH > 5
Hh E At A JB 2 W) 2 BRI (o R A
IR -
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Notes to Financial Statements
pE EL

31 December 2020
FoFEF A=+ —H

2.

122

BASIS OF PRESENTATION

Despite the Group had net current liabilities and net
liabilities of HK$233,085,000 and HK$678,929,000,
respectively as at 31 December 2020, in the opinion of the
directors, the Group will have sufficient working capital to
finance its operation and to meet its financial obligations as
and when they fall due in the foreseeable future, based on
the cash flow projections of the Group covering a period up
to 31 March 2022 and after taking into consideration the
following:

(i)

On 27 January 2021, Future Marvel Limited (a
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company), as the
vendor, entered into a sale and purchase agreement
with Mr. Liu Chang, as the purchaser, for a
disposal of the entire issued shares in Well Surplus
Enterprises Limited and the shareholder loans owned
by the disposal group to Future Marvel Limited,
which represented the entire automotive engines
business (“Automotive Engines Business”) of the
Group. The total consideration for the disposal was
HK$41,500,000, which was settled by the purchaser
in the way of (i) HK$500,000 by cash; and (b) the
balance of HK$41,000,000 by way of waiver of the
interests of the promissory notes held by Power Expert
Global Limited (“Power Expert”). The disposal was
completed on 29 January 2021.

As of 31 December 2020, the Automotive Engines
Business reported a net current liabilities and net
liabilities of HK$256,171,000 and HK$269,520,000,
respectively. The disposal of which would significantly
improve the financial position of the Group;

Bisu Technology Group International Limited Lg% 4 [ B A BR /A ]

ZHEE
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H 5L °
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Notes to Financial Statements

BASIS OF PRESENTATION (Continued)

(i) A major shareholder of the Company has agreed to
provide additional funding by way of shareholder’s
loan for not less than HK$45,000,000 from 1 January
2021 to 30 June 2022 to the Group as and when
required, and not to demand for repayment of the
amount due by the Group until it is in the position
to repay without impairing its liquidity and financial
position. As of the reporting date, the shareholder’s
loan of HK$1,252,000 was drawn down by the Group;
and

(i) On 7 March 2021, the Company entered into two
subscription agreements with two subscribers,
namely Mao Yuan Capital Limited and Mr. Zhang
Yaxun, in respect of the subscriptions of an
aggregate of 40,000,000 subscription shares at the
subscription price of HK$4.80 per share. The issue
of the 40,000,000 subscription shares will not be
required to the approval by the shareholders and the
subscription shares will be issued under the general
mandate granted to the directors at the 2020 annual
general meeting held on 19 June 2020. The gross
proceeds from the subscriptions will be approximately
HK$192,000,000, which are expected to improve the
liquidity of the Group.

The directors of the Company believe that, taking into
account the above factors, the Group will have sufficient
working capital to satisfy its present requirements for at
least the next 12 months from the end of the reporting
period. However, should the above financing or support
be unavailable, the Group may be unable to continue as a
going concern, in which case adjustments might have to
be made to the carrying amounts of the Group’s assets to
state them at their recoverable amounts, and to provide
for any further liabilities which might arise and to reclassify
its non-current assets and non-current liabilities to current
assets and current liabilities, respectively. The effect of these
adjustments has not been reflected in the consolidated
financial statements.

IR MIEE

31 December 2020
e Y

25 E%E (&)

(il AAF—ZFERFEFRBZEHA
CE O AFE—A—HREECE
TAERNA = H s A DR
45,000,000 #5 7T i o B 708 R 4
WHEINE S TALE > HHAER
9 A 5 LU B 4 I SR
17 L B R A 1 SR W B IE 22
> A6 2R A 4 [ 45 R 31 1A 3K
JH o HEWMAE M REEER
BUB R EK 1,252,000 50 5 K&

(i) WZF_—4E=HEH  An
] L 44 GR N (R AR R G AR A
R A JaRk R Af e A2 ) ®T LT
7 58 W Wh ok - NS A BH R
18 55 LI 0 4. 80 5 o0 58 I A& 3
40,000,000 M52 & 1y » 8547
40,000,000 M 72 1 1B 13 JE 75 B A5
JRE SR AE - T R M 5 0 19 AR 4
ZERZEENATILHE T2
FoRAERFBAFRG I THE
FHZ— RAZHERAT o RIEEIE T
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,@ 5
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SR B o ARG D R A 2 A
AT A Y 7 e DL R E
oK o SR > A 2t Al S 4 A ]
Ao R SE B A] RE SRR SR A AR > A
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SR MU RS B R T
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Notes to Financial Statements
pE EL

31 December 2020

x

3.1

124

B+ A=t —H

BASIS OF PREPARATION

These financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
("HKFRSs"”) (which include all Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards
("HKASs”) and Interpretations) issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA"),
accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong
and the disclosure requirements of Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance. They have been prepared under the historical
cost convention. These financial statements are presented
in Hong Kong dollars (“HK$") and all values are rounded to
the nearest thousand (“HK$'000") except when otherwise
indicated.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the
financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the “Group”) for the year ended
31 December 2020. A subsidiary is an entity (including a
structured entity), directly or indirectly, controlled by the
Company. Control is achieved when the Group is exposed,
or has rights, to variable returns from its involvement with
the investee and has the ability to affect those returns
through its power over the investee (i.e., existing rights
that give the Group the current ability to direct the relevant
activities of the investee).

When the Company has, directly or indirectly, less than a
majority of the voting or similar rights of an investee, the

Group considers all relevant facts and circumstances in
assessing whether it has power over an investee, including:

(@) the contractual arrangement with the other vote
holders of the investee;

(b) rights arising from other contractual arrangements;
and

(c) the Group’s voting rights and potential voting rights.
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Notes to Financial Statements

3.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION (Continued)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

The financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared
for the same reporting period as the Company, using
consistent accounting policies. The results of subsidiaries
are consolidated from the date on which the Group obtains
control, and continue to be consolidated until the date that
such control ceases.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive
income are attributed to the owners of the parent of the
Group and to the non-controlling interests, even if this
results in the non-controlling interests having a deficit
balance. All intra-group assets and liabilities, equity,
income, expenses and cash flows relating to transactions
between members of the Group are eliminated in full on
consolidation.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee
if facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes
to one or more of the three elements of control described
above. A change in the ownership interest of a subsidiary,
without a loss of control, is accounted for as an equity
transaction.

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognises
(i) the assets (including goodwill) and liabilities of the
subsidiary, (i) the carrying amount of any non-controlling
interest and (iii) the cumulative translation differences
recorded in equity; and recognises (i) the fair value of the
consideration received, (ii) the fair value of any investment
retained and (iii) any resulting surplus or deficit in profit
or loss. The Group’s share of components previously
recognised in other comprehensive income is reclassified
to profit or loss or retained profits, as appropriate, on the
same basis as would be required if the Group had directly
disposed of the related assets or liabilities.

IR MIEE

31 December 2020
e Y
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Notes to Financial Statements
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31 December 2020
EREF A=A

3.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND 3.2 it HENEFTREE
DISCLOSURES

126

The Group has adopted the Conceptual Framework for

Financial Reporting 2018 and the following revised HKFRSs
for the first time for the current year’s financial statements.

Amendments to HKFRS 3

Amendments to HKFRS 9,

Definition of a Business

Interest Rate Benchmark Reform

HKAS 39 and HKFRS 7

Amendment to HKFRS 16

Amendments to HKAS 1

Covid-19-Related Rent
Concessions (early adopted)
Definition of Material

and HKAS 8

The nature and the impact of the new and revised HKFRSs
are described below:

(a)

Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting
2018 (the “Conceptual Framework”) sets out a
comprehensive set of concepts for financial reporting
and standard setting, and provides guidance for
preparers of financial statements in developing
consistent accounting policies and assistance to all
parties to understand and interpret the standards.
The Conceptual Framework includes new chapters on
measurement and reporting financial performance,
new guidance on the derecognition of assets and
liabilities, and updated definitions and recognition
criteria for assets and liabilities. It also clarifies the
roles of stewardship, prudence and measurement
uncertainty in financial reporting. The Conceptual
Framework is not a standard, and none of the
concepts contained therein override the concepts
or requirements in any standard. The Conceptual
Framework did not have any significant impact on the
financial position and performance of the Group.
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3.2 CHANGES

Notes to Financial Statements

IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND

DISCLOSURES (Continued)

(b)

(9

Amendments to HKFRS 3 clarify and provide
additional guidance on the definition of a business.
The amendments clarify that for an integrated set
of activities and assets to be considered a business,
it must include, at a minimum, an input and a
substantive process that together significantly
contribute to the ability to create output. A business
can exist without including all of the inputs and
processes needed to create outputs. The amendments
remove the assessment of whether market participants
are capable of acquiring the business and continue
to produce outputs. Instead, the focus is on whether
acquired inputs and acquired substantive processes
together significantly contribute to the ability to create
outputs. The amendments have also narrowed the
definition of outputs to focus on goods or services
provided to customers, investment income or other
income from ordinary activities. Furthermore, the
amendments provide guidance to assess whether
an acquired process is substantive and introduce an
optional fair value concentration test to permit a
simplified assessment of whether an acquired set of
activities and assets is not a business. The Group has
applied the amendments prospectively to transactions
or other events that occurred on or after 1 January
2020. The amendments did not have any impact on
the financial position and performance of the Group.

Amendments to HKFRS 9, HKAS 39 and HKFRS 7
address issues affecting financial reporting in the
period before the replacement of an existing interest
rate benchmark with an alternative risk-free rate
("RFR"™). The amendments provide temporary reliefs
which enable hedge accounting to continue during
the period of uncertainty before the introduction
of the alternative RFR. In addition, the amendments
require companies to provide additional information
to investors about their hedging relationships which
are directly affected by these uncertainties. The
amendments did not have any impact on the financial
position and performance of the Group as the Group
does not have any interest rate hedging relationships.
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3.2 CHANGES
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= t+—H

IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND

DISCLOSURES (Continued)

(d)

(e)

Amendment to HKFRS 16 provides a practical
expedient for lessees to elect not to apply lease
modification accounting for rent concessions arising as
a direct consequence of the covid-19 pandemic. The
practical expedient applies only to rent concessions
occurring as a direct consequence of the pandemic
and only if (i) the change in lease payments results in
revised consideration for the lease that is substantially
the same as, or less than, the consideration for the
lease immediately preceding the change; (ii) any
reduction in lease payments affects only payments
originally due on or before 30 June 2021; and (iii)
there is no substantive change to other terms and
conditions of the lease. The amendment is effective
for annual periods beginning on or after 1 June
2020 with earlier application permitted and shall be
applied retrospectively. The amendments did not have
any significant impact on the financial position and
performance of the Group.

Amendments to HKAS 1 and HKAS 8 provide a new
definition of material. The new definition states that
information is material if omitting, misstating or
obscuring it could reasonably be expected to influence
decisions that the primary users of general purpose
financial statements make on the basis of those
financial statements. The amendments clarify that
materiality will depend on the nature or magnitude of
information, or both. The amendments did not have
any significant impact on the financial position and
performance of the Group.
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Notes to Financial Statements

3.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG

FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
The Group has not applied the following new and revised
HKFRSs, that have been issued but are not yet effective, in

these financial statements.

Amendments to HKFRS 3
Amendments to HKFRS 9,

HKAS 39, HKFRS 7,
HKFRS 4 and HKFRS 16

Amendments to HKFRS 10
and HKAS 28 (2011)

HKFRS 17
Amendments to HKFRS 17
Amendments to HKAS 1

Amendments to HKAS 16

Amendments to HKAS 37

Annual Improvements to
HKFRSs 2018-2020

Reference to the Conceptual
Framework?

Interest Rate Benchmark
Reform — Phase 2!

Sale or Contribution of
Assets between an Investor
and its Associate or Joint
Venture®

Insurance Contracts?
Insurance Contracts? ®

Classification of Liabilities as
Current or Non-current® >
Property, Plant and
Equipment: Proceeds
before Intended Use?
Onerous Contracts — Cost of
Fulfilling a Contract?
Amendments to HKFRS 1,
HKFRS 9, lllustrative
Examples accompanying
HKFRS 16, and HKAS 417
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B+ A=t —H

ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(Continued)

No mandatory effective date yet determined but available for
adoption

> As a consequence of the amendments to HKAS 1, Hong
Kong Interpretation 5 Presentation of Financial Statements —
Classification by the Borrower of a Term Loan that Contains
a Repayment on Demand Clause was revised in October
2020 to align the corresponding wording with no change in
conclusion

e As a consequence of the amendments to HKFRS 17 issued
in October 2020, HKFRS 4 was amended to extend the
temporary exemption that permits insurers to apply HKAS 39
rather than HKFRS 9 for annual periods beginning before 1
January 2023

Further information about these HKFRSs that are expected
to be applicable to the Group is described below:

Amendments to HKFRS 3 are intended to replace a
reference to the previous Fframework for the Preparation
and Presentation of Financial Statements with a reference to
the Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting issued in
June 2018 without significantly changing its requirements.
The amendments also add to HKFRS 3 an exception
to its recognition principle for an entity to refer to the
Conceptual Framework to determine what constitutes an
asset or a liability. The exception specifies that, for liabilities
and contingent liabilities that would be within the scope of
HKAS 37 or HK(IFRIC)-Int 21 if they were incurred separately
rather than assumed in a business combination, an entity
applying HKFRS 3 should refer to HKAS 37 or HK(IFRIC)-
Int 21 respectively instead of the Conceptual Framework.
Furthermore, the amendments clarify that contingent assets
do not qualify for recognition at the acquisition date. The
Group expects to adopt the amendments prospectively from
1 January 2022. Since the amendments apply prospectively
to business combinations for which the acquisition date is
on or after the date of first application, the Group will not
be affected by these amendments on the date of transition.
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Notes to Financial Statements

B35S UEDEBUTENOT YET ®EFFECTIVEHONG

KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(Continued)

Amendments to HKFRS 9, HKAS 39, HKFRS 7, HKFRS 4
and HKFRS 16 address issues not dealt with in the previous
amendments which affect financial reporting when an
existing interest rate benchmark is replaced with an
alternative RFR. The Phase 2 amendments provide a practical
expedient to allow the effective interest rate to be updated
without adjusting the carrying amount when accounting
for changes in the basis for determining the contractual
cash flows of financial assets and liabilities, if the change
is a direct consequence of the interest rate benchmark
reform and the new basis for determining the contractual
cash flows is economically equivalent to the previous
basis immediately preceding the change. In addition, the
amendments permit changes required by the interest rate
benchmark reform to be made to hedge designations and
hedge documentation without the hedging relationship
being discontinued. Any gains or losses that could arise on
transition are dealt with through the normal requirements
of HKFRS 9 to measure and recognise hedge ineffectiveness.
The amendments also provide a temporary relief to entities
from having to meet the separately identifiable requirement
when an RFR is designated as a risk component. The relief
allows an entity, upon designation of the hedge, to assume
that the separately identifiable requirement is met, provided
the entity reasonably expects the RFR risk component
to become separately identifiable within the next 24
months. Furthermore, the amendments require an entity to
disclose additional information to enable users of financial
statements to understand the effect of interest rate
benchmark reform on an entity’s financial instruments and
risk management strategy. The amendments are effective
for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2021
and shall be applied retrospectively, but entities are not
required to restate the comparative information. The Group
will apply this practical expedient upon the modification
of the Group's borrowings when the “economically
equivalent” criterion is met and expected that no significant
modification gain or loss will arise as a result of applying
the amendments to these changes.
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ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(Continued)

Amendments to HKAS 1 clarify the requirements for
classifying liabilities as current or non-current. The
amendments specify that if an entity’s right to defer
settlement of a liability is subject to the entity complying
with specified conditions, the entity has a right to defer
settlement of the liability at the end of the reporting
period if it complies with those conditions at that date.
Classification of a liability is unaffected by the likelihood
that the entity will exercise its right to defer settlement of
the liability. The amendments also clarify the situations that
are considered a settlement of a liability. The amendments
are effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2023 and shall be applied retrospectively. Earlier
application is permitted. The amendments are not expected
to have any significant impact on the Group's financial
statements.

Amendments to HKAS 16 prohibit an entity from deducting
from the cost of an item of property, plant and equipment
any proceeds from selling items produced while bringing
that asset to the location and condition necessary for it
to be capable of operating in the manner intended by
management. Instead, an entity recognises the proceeds
from selling any such items, and the cost of those items,
in profit or loss. The amendments are effective for annual
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2022 and shall be
applied retrospectively only to items of property, plant and
equipment made available for use on or after the beginning
of the earliest period presented in the financial statements
in which the entity first applies the amendments. Earlier
application is permitted. The amendments are not expected
to have any significant impact on the Group's financial
statements.
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Notes to Financial Statements

573955 OCEDEBUTFENOT YET “EFFECTIVESHEONG

KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(Continued)

Amendments to HKAS 37 clarify that for the purpose of
assessing whether a contract is onerous under HKAS 37,
the cost of fulfilling the contract comprises the costs that
relate directly to the contract. Costs that relate directly to
a contract include both the incremental costs of fulfilling
that contract (e.g., direct labour and materials) and an
allocation of other costs that relate directly to fulfilling
that contract (e.g., an allocation of the depreciation charge
for an item of property, plant and equipment used in
fulfilling the contract as well as contract management and
supervision costs). General and administrative costs do not
relate directly to a contract and are excluded unless they
are explicitly chargeable to the counterparty under the
contract. The amendments are effective for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2022 and shall be applied
to contracts for which an entity has not yet fulfilled all its
obligations at the beginning of the annual reporting period
in which it first applies the amendments. Earlier application
is permitted. Any cumulative effect of initially applying the
amendments shall be recognised as an adjustment to the
opening equity at the date of initial application without
restating the comparative information. The amendments are
not expected to have any significant impact on the Group's
financial statements.
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ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(Continued)

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2018-2020 sets out
amendments to HKFRS 1, HKFRS 9, lllustrative Examples
accompanying HKFRS 16, and HKAS 41. Details of the
amendments that are expected to be applicable to the
Group are as follows:

o HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments: clarifies the fees that
an entity includes when assessing whether the terms
of a new or modified financial liability are substantially
different from the terms of the original financial
liability. These fees include only those paid or received
between the borrower and the lender, including fees
paid or received by either the borrower or lender on
the other’s behalf. An entity applies the amendment to
financial liabilities that are modified or exchanged on
or after the beginning of the annual reporting period
in which the entity first applies the amendment. The
amendment is effective for annual periods beginning
on or after 1 January 2022. Earlier application is
permitted. The amendment is not expected to have a
significant impact on the Group’s financial statements.

J HKFRS 16 Leases: removes the illustration of payments
from the lessor relating to leasehold improvements in
[llustrative Example 13 accompanying HKFRS 16. This
removes potential confusion regarding the treatment
of lease incentives when applying HKFRS 16.
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Notes to Financial Statements

3.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES

Interests in joint operations

A joint operation is a joint arrangement whereby the parties
that have joint control of the arrangement have rights to
the assets, and obligations for the liabilities, relating to
the arrangement. Joint control is the contractually agreed
sharing of control of an arrangement, which exists only
when decisions about the relevant activities require the
unanimous consent of the parties sharing control.

The Group recognises in relation to its interest in a joint
operation:

e jts assets, including its share of any assets held jointly;

o its liabilities, including its share of any liabilities
incurred jointly;

o its revenue from the sale of its share of the output
arising from the joint operation;

o its share of the revenue from the sale of the output by
the joint operation; and

o its expenses, including its share of any expenses
incurred jointly.

The assets, liabilities, revenues and expenses relating to
the Group's interest in a joint operation are accounted for
in accordance with the HKFRSs applicable to the particular
assets, liabilities, revenues and expenses.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Business combinations and goodwill

Business combinations are accounted for using the
acquisition method. The consideration transferred is
measured at the acquisition date fair value which is the sum
of the acquisition date fair values of assets transferred by
the Group, liabilities assumed by the Group to the former
owners of the acquiree and the equity interests issued by
the Group in exchange for control of the acquiree. For each
business combination, the Group elects whether to measure
the non-controlling interests in the acquiree that are
present ownership interests and entitle their holders to a
proportionate share of net assets in the event of liquidation
at fair value or at the proportionate share of the acquiree’s
identifiable net assets. All other components of non-
controlling interests are measured at fair value. Acquisition-
related costs are expensed as incurred.

The Group determines that it has acquired a business
when the acquired set of activities and assets includes on
input and substantive process that together significantly
contribute to the ability to create outputs.

When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the
financial assets and liabilities assumed for appropriate
classification and designation in accordance with the
contractual terms, economic circumstances and pertinent
conditions as at the acquisition date. This includes the
separation of embedded derivatives in host contracts of the
acquiree.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the
previously held equity interest is remeasured at its
acquisition date fair value and any resulting gain or loss is
recognised in profit or loss.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the
acquirer is recognised at fair value at the acquisition date.
Contingent consideration classified as an asset or liability is
measured at fair value with changes in fair value recognised
in profit or loss. Contingent consideration that is classified
as equity is not remeasured and subsequent settlement is
accounted for within equity.
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Notes to Financial Statements

3.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

Business combinations and goodwill (Continued)
Goodwill is initially measured at cost, being the excess
of the aggregate of the consideration transferred, the
amount recognised for non-controlling interests and any
fair value of the Group’s previously held equity interests in
the acquiree over the identifiable net assets acquired and
liabilities assumed. If the sum of this consideration and
other items is lower than the fair value of the net assets
acquired, the difference is, after reassessment, recognised
in profit or loss as a gain on bargain purchase.

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less
any accumulated impairment losses. Goodwill is tested for
impairment annually or more frequently if events or changes
in circumstances indicate that the carrying value may be
impaired. The Group performs its annual impairment test of
goodwill as at 31 December. For the purpose of impairment
testing, goodwill acquired in a business combination is,
from the acquisition date, allocated to each of the Group’s
cash-generating units, or groups of cash-generating
units, that are expected to benefit from the synergies of
the combination, irrespective of whether other assets or
liabilities of the Group are assigned to those units or groups
of units.

Impairment is determined by assessing the recoverable
amount of the cash-generating unit (group of cash-
generating units) to which the goodwill relates. Where the
recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit (group of
cash-generating units) is less than the carrying amount,
an impairment loss is recognised. An impairment loss
recognised for goodwill is not reversed in a subsequent
period.

Where goodwill has been allocated to a cash-generating
unit (or group of cash-generating units) and part of the
operation within that unit is disposed of, the goodwill
associated with the operation disposed of is included in
the carrying amount of the operation when determining
the gain or loss on the disposal. Goodwill disposed of in
these circumstances is measured based on the relative value
of the operation disposed of and the portion of the cash-
generating unit retained.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Impairment of non-financial assets

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when annual
impairment testing for an asset is required, the asset’s
recoverable amount is estimated. An asset’s recoverable
amount is the higher of the asset’s or cash-generating unit'’s
value in use and its fair value less costs of disposal, and is
determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not
generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those
from other assets or groups of assets, in which case the
recoverable amount is determined for the cash-generating
unit to which the asset belongs.

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying
amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. In
assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are
discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount
rate that reflects current market assessments of the time
value of money and the risks specific to the asset. An
impairment loss is charged to profit or loss in the period in
which it arises in those expense categories consistent with
the function of the impaired asset.

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting
period as to whether there is an indication that previously
recognised impairment losses may no longer exist or may
have decreased. If such an indication exists, the recoverable
amount is estimated. A previously recognised impairment
loss of an asset other than goodwill is reversed only if there
has been a change in the estimates used to determine the
recoverable amount of that asset, but not to an amount
higher than the carrying amount that would have been
determined (net of any depreciation/amortisation) had no
impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior years.
A reversal of such an impairment loss is credited to profit or
loss in the period in which it arises.
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3.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3.4 XEEBERBE (&)
POLICIES (Continued)
Related parties
A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(a)

or

(b)

the party is a person or a close member of that
person’s family and that person

(i)

(i)

(iii)

has control or joint control over the Group;

has significant influence over the Group; or

is a member of the key management personnel
of the Group or of a parent of the Group;

the party is an entity where any of the following
conditions applies:

(i)

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

the entity and the Group are members of the
same group;

one entity is an associate or joint venture of the
other entity (or of a parent, subsidiary or fellow
subsidiary of the other entity);

the entity and the Group are joint ventures of the
same third party;

one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and
the other entity is an associate of the third entity;

the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for
the benefit of employees of either the Group or
an entity related to the Group;
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)
Related parties (Continued)
(b) (Continued)
(vi) the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in (a);

(vii) a person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of the
key management personnel of the entity (or of a
parent of the entity); and

(viii) the entity, or any member of a group of which
it is a part, provides key management personnel
services to the Group or to the parent of the
Group.

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation
Property, plant and equipment, other than construction in
progress, are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation
and any impairment losses. The cost of an item of property,
plant and equipment comprises its purchase price and
any directly attributable costs of bringing the asset to its
working condition and location for its intended use.

Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant and
equipment have been put into operation, such as repairs
and maintenance, is normally charged to profit or loss in
the period in which it is incurred. In situations where the
recognition criteria are satisfied, the expenditure for a major
inspection is capitalised in the carrying amount of the asset
as a replacement. Where significant parts of property, plant
and equipment are required to be replaced at intervals,
the Group recognises such parts as individual assets with
specific useful lives and depreciates them accordingly.
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3.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation
(Continued)

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to write
off the cost of each item of property, plant and equipment
to its residual value over its estimated useful life. The
principal annual rates used for this purpose are as follows:

Leasehold improvements 20%
Machinery and equipment 10% to 24%
Furniture, fixtures and office equipment 20% to 33%
Motor vehicles 24%

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment
have different useful lives, the cost of that item is allocated
on a reasonable basis among the parts and each part is
depreciated separately. Residual values, useful lives and
the depreciation method are reviewed, and adjusted if
appropriate, at least at each financial year end.

An item of property, plant and equipment including any
significant part initially recognised is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected
from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss on disposal or
retirement recognised in profit or loss in the year the asset
is derecognised is the difference between the net sales
proceeds and the carrying amount of the relevant asset.

Construction in progress represents machineries in the
process of installation, which is stated and at cost less any
impairment losses, and is not depreciated. Cost comprises
the direct costs of installation and capitalised borrowing
costs on related borrowed funds during the period of
installation. Construction in progress is reclassified to the
appropriate category of property, plant and equipment
when completed and ready for use.
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3.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
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POLICIES (Continued)

Intangible assets (other than goodwill)

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial
recognition at cost. The cost of intangible assets acquired
in a business combination is the fair value at the date of
acquisition. The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed
to be either finite or indefinite. Intangible assets with finite
lives are subsequently amortised over the useful economic
life and assessed for impairment whenever there is an
indication that the intangible asset may be impaired. The
amortisation period and the amortisation method for an
intangible asset with a finite useful life are reviewed at least
at each financial year end.

Customer contracts

Customer contracts secured on the date of acquisition
are recognised as cost of goods sold under the unit of
production method which is based on the volume of
production in each reporting period as a proportion of
the total estimated units of production for the relevant
customer contracts over the contract period.

Research and development costs
All research costs are charged to profit or loss as incurred.

Expenditure incurred on projects to develop new products
is capitalised and deferred only when the Group can
demonstrate the technical feasibility of completing the
intangible asset so that it will be available for use or sale,
its intention to complete and its ability to use or sell the
asset, how the asset will generate future economic benefits,
the availability of resources to complete the project and
the ability to measure reliably the expenditure during the
development. Product development expenditure which does
not meet these criteria is expensed when incurred.
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3.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

Leases

The Group assesses at contract inception whether a
contract is, or contains, a lease. A contract is, or contains,
a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use
of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for
consideration.

Group as a lessee

The Group applies a single recognition and measurement
approach for all leases, except for short-term leases and
leases of low-value assets. The Group recognises lease
liabilities to make lease payments and right-of-use assets
representing the right to use the underlying assets.

(a) Right-of-use assets

Right-of-use as sets are recognised at the
commencement date of the lease (that is the date
the underlying asset is available for use). Right-of-
use assets are measured at cost, less any accumulated
depreciation and any impairment losses, and adjusted
for any remeasurement of lease liabilities. The cost
of right-of-use assets includes the amount of lease
liabilities recognised, initial direct costs incurred, and
lease payments made at or before the commencement
date less any lease incentives received. Right-of-use
assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the
shorter of lease terms and the estimated useful lives
of the assets is over the lease terms ranging from 22
months to 3 years.
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3.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Leases (Continued)

Group as a lessee (Continued)

144

(b)

Lease liabilities

Lease liabilities are recognised at the commencement
date of the lease at the present value of lease
payments to be made over the lease term. The lease
payments include fixed payments (including in-
substance fixed payments) less any lease incentives
receivable, variable lease payments that depend on
an index or a rate, and amounts expected to be paid
under residual value guarantees. The lease payments
also include the exercise price of a purchase option
reasonably certain to be exercised by the Group and
payments of penalties for termination of a lease, if the
lease term reflects the Group exercising the option to
terminate the lease. The variable lease payments that
do not depend on an index or a rate are recognised
as an expense in the period in which the event or
condition that triggers the payment occurs.

In calculating the present value of lease payments, the
Group uses its incremental borrowing rate at the lease
commencement date because the interest rate implicit
in the lease is not readily determinable. After the
commencement date, the amount of lease liabilities
is increased to reflect the accretion of interest and
reduced for the lease payments made. In addition,
the carrying amount of lease liabilities is remeasured
if there is a modification, a change in the lease term,
a change in lease payments (e.g., a change to future
lease payments resulting from a change in an index
or rate) or a change in assessment of an option to
purchase the underlying asset.
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3.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

Leases (Continued)

Group as a lessee (Continued)

(c¢) Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets
The Group applies the short-term lease recognition
exemption to its short-term leases of machinery and
equipment (that is those leases that have a lease
term of 12 months or less from the commencement
date and do not contain a purchase option). It also
applies the recognition exemption for leases of low-
value assets to leases of office equipment that are
considered to be of low value. Lease payments on
short-term leases and leases of low-value assets are
recognised as an expense on a straight-line basis over
the lease term.

Investments and other financial assets

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as
subsequently measured at amortised cost.

The classification of financial assets at initial recognition
depends on the financial asset’s contractual cash flow
characteristics and the Group’s business model for
managing them. With the exception of accounts receivable
that do not contain a significant financing component or
for which the Group has applied the practical expedient
of not adjusting the effect of a significant financing
component, the Group initially measures a financial asset
at its fair value, plus in the case of a financial asset not at
fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs. Accounts
receivable that do not contain a significant financing
component or for which the Group has applied the practical
expedient are measured at the transaction price determined
under HKFRS 15 in accordance with the policies set out for
“Revenue recognition” below.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Investments and other financial assets
(Continued)

Initial recognition and measurement (Continued)

In order for a financial asset to be classified and measured
at amortised cost or fair value through other comprehensive
income, it needs to give rise to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest (“SPPI”) on the principal
amount outstanding. Financial assets with cash flows
that are not SPPI are classified and measured at fair value
through profit or loss, irrespective of the business model.

The Group’s business model for managing financial assets
refers to how it manages its financial assets in order to
generate cash flows. The business model determines
whether cash flows will result from collecting contractual
cash flows, selling the financial assets, or both. Financial
assets classified and measured at amortised cost are
held within a business model with the objective to hold
financial assets in order to collect contractual cash flows,
while financial assets classified and measured at fair value
through other comprehensive income are held within a
business model with the objective of both holding to collect
contractual cash flows and selling. Financial assets which
are not held within the aforementioned business models are
classified and measured at fair value through profit or loss.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are
recognised on the trade date, that is, the date that the
Group commits to purchase or sell the asset. Regular way
purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets
that require delivery of assets within the period generally
established by regulation or convention in the marketplace.

Subsequent measurement
The subsequent measurement of financial assets depends
on their classification as follows:

Financial assets at amortised cost (debt instruments)
Financial assets at amortised cost are subsequently measured
using the effective interest method and are subject to
impairment. Gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss
when the asset is derecognised, modified or impaired.
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Notes to Financial Statements

POLICIES (Continued)

Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial
asset or part of a group of similar financial assets) is
primarily derecognised (i.e., removed from the Group's
consolidated statement of financial position) when:

J the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have
expired; or

J the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash
flows from the asset or has assumed an obligation to
pay the received cash flows in full without material
delay to a third party under a “pass-through”
arrangement; and either (a) the Group has transferred
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset,
or (b) the Group has neither transferred nor retained
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but
has transferred control of the asset.

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash
flows from an asset or has entered into a pass-through
arrangement, it evaluates if, and to what extent, it has
retained the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset.
When it has neither transferred nor retained substantially all
the risks and rewards of the asset nor transferred control of
the asset, the Group continues to recognise the transferred
asset to the extent of the Group’s continuing involvement.
In that case, the Group also recognises an associated
liability. The transferred asset and the associated liability are
measured on a basis that reflects the rights and obligations
that the Group has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee
over the transferred asset is measured at the lower of the
original carrying amount of the asset and the maximum
amount of consideration that the Group could be required
to repay.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets

The Group recognises an allowance for expected credit
losses ("ECLs") for all debt instruments not held at fair value
through profit or loss. ECLs are based on the difference
between the contractual cash flows due in accordance with
the contract and all the cash flows that the Group expects
to receive, discounted at an approximation of the original
effective interest rate. The expected cash flows will include
cash flows from the sale of collateral held or other credit
enhancements that are integral to the contractual terms.

General approach

ECLs are recognised in two stages. For credit exposures for
which there has not been a significant increase in credit risk
since initial recognition, ECLs are provided for credit losses
that result from default events that are possible within
the next 12-months (a 12-month ECL). For those credit
exposures for which there has been a significant increase
in credit risk since initial recognition, a loss allowance is
required for credit losses expected over the remaining life
of the exposure, irrespective of the timing of the default (a
lifetime ECL).

At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether
the credit risk on a financial instrument has increased
significantly since initial recognition. When making the
assessment, the Group compares the risk of a default
occurring on the financial instrument as at the reporting
date with the risk of a default occurring on the financial
instrument as at the date of initial recognition and
considers reasonable and supportable information that is
available without undue cost or effort, including historical
and forward-looking information.
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Notes to Financial Statements

3.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

General approach (Continued)

The Group considers a financial asset in default when
contractual payments are 90 days past due. However, in
certain cases, the Group may also consider a financial asset
to be in default when internal or external information
indicates that the Group is unlikely to receive the
outstanding contractual amounts in full before taking into
account any credit enhancements held by the Group. A
financial asset is written off when there is no reasonable
expectation of recovering the contractual cash flows.

Financial assets at amortised cost are subject to impairment
under the general approach and they are classified within
the following stages for measurement of ECLs except for
accounts receivable and contract assets which apply the
simplified approach as detailed below.

Stage 1 — Financial instruments for which credit risk
has not increased significantly since initial
recognition and for which the loss allowance
is measured at an amount equal to 12-month
ECLs

Stage 2 — Financial instruments for which credit risk has
increased significantly since initial recognition
but that are not credit-impaired financial assets
and for which the loss allowances is measured
at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs

Stage 3 — Financial assets that are credit-impaired at the
reporting date (but that are not purchased or
originated credit-impaired) and for which the
loss allowance is measured at an amount equal
to lifetime ECLs
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3.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

150

POLICIES (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
Simplified approach

For accounts receivable and contract assets that do not
contain a significant financing component or when the
Group applies the practical expedient of not adjusting the
effect of a significant financing component, the Group
applies the simplified approach in calculating ECLs. Under
the simplified approach, the Group does not track changes
in credit risk, but instead recognises a loss allowance based
on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date. The Group has
established a provision matrix that is based on its historical
credit loss experience, adjusted for forward-looking factors
specific to the debtors and the economic environment.

For account receivable and contract assets that contain a
significant financing component, the Group chooses as
its accounting policy to adopt the general approach in
calculating ECLs with policies as described above.

Financial liabilities

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified as loans and borrowings.
The Group determines the classification of its financial
liabilities at initial recognition.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value
and, in the case of loans and borrowings and payables, net
of directly attributable transaction costs.

The Group’s financial liabilities include accounts and other
payables, interest-bearing bank and other borrowings,
liability component of convertible bonds and promissory
notes.

Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial liabilities depends
on their classification as follows:
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Notes to Financial Statements

3.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

Financial liabilities (Continued)

Financial Liabilities at amortised cost (loans and
borrowings)

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and
borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost,
using the effective interest rate method unless the effect
of discounting would be immaterial, in which case they are
stated at cost. Gains and losses are recognised in profit or
loss when the liabilities are derecognised as well as through
the effective interest rate amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any
discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs
that are an integral part of the effective interest rate. The
effective interest rate amortisation is included in finance
costs in profit or loss.

Convertible bonds

The component of convertible bonds that exhibits
characteristics of a liability is recognised as a liability in
the statement of financial position, net of transaction
costs. On issuance of convertible bonds, the fair value of
the liability component is determined using a market rate
for an equivalent non-convertible bond; and this amount
is carried as a long term liability on the amortised cost
basis until extinguished on conversion or redemption. The
remainder of the proceeds is allocated to the conversion
option that is recognised and included in shareholders’
equity, net of transaction costs. The carrying amount of the
conversion option is not remeasured in subsequent years.
Transaction costs are apportioned between the liability
and equity components of the convertible bonds based
on the allocation of proceeds to the liability and equity
components when the instruments are first recognised.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)
Derecognition/modification of financial liabilities
A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation
under the liability is discharged or cancelled, or expires. The
difference between the carrying amount of the financial
liability derecognised and the consideration paid and
payable is recognised in profit or loss.

The Group accounts for an exchange with a lender of
a financial liability with substantially different terms as
an extinguishment of the original financial liability and
the recognition of a new financial liability. A substantial
modification of the terms of an existing financial liability
or a part of it (whether or not attributable to the
financial difficulty of the Group) is accounted for as an
extinguishment of the original financial liability and the
recognition of a new financial liability.

The Group considers that the terms are substantially
different if the discounted present value of the cash
flows under the new terms, including any fees paid net
of any fees received and discounted using the original
effective interest rate, is at least 10 per cent different
from the discounted present value of the remaining cash
flows of the original financial liability. Accordingly, such
exchange of debt instruments or modification of terms
is accounted for as an extinguishment, any costs or fees
incurred are recognised as part of the gain or loss on the
extinguishment. The exchange or modification is considered
as non-substantial modification when such difference is less
than 10 per cent.

For non-substantial modifications of financial liabilities that
do not result in derecognition, the carrying amount of the
relevant financial liabilities will be calculated at the present
value of the modified contractual cash flows discounted
at the financial liabilities" original effective interest rate.
Transaction costs or fees incurred are adjusted to the
carrying amount of the modified financial liabilities and are
amortised over the remaining term. Any adjustment to the
carrying amount of the financial liability is recognised in
profit or loss at the date of modification.
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Notes to Financial Statements

POLICIES (Continued)

Provisions

A provision is recognised when a present obligation (legal
or constructive) has arisen as a result of a past event and
it is probable that a future outflow of resources will be
required to settle the obligation, provided that a reliable
estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

When the effect of discounting is material, the amount
recognised for a provision is the present value at the end
of the reporting period of the future expenditures expected
to be required to settle the obligation. The increase in the
discounted present value amount arising from the passage
of time is included in finance costs in the statement of
profit or loss.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost is calculated using weighted average method
and, in the case of work in progress and finished goods,
comprises direct materials, direct labour and, an appropriate
proportion of overheads. Net realisable value is based
on estimated selling prices less any estimated costs to be
incurred to completion and disposal.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash
flows, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and
demand deposits, and short term highly liquid investments
that are readily convertible into known amounts of cash,
are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value, and
have a short maturity of generally within three months
when acquired, less bank overdrafts which are repayable
on demand and form an integral part of the Group’s cash
management.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of financial
position, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand
and at banks, including term deposits and assets similar in
nature to cash, which are not restricted as to use.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income
tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss
is recognised outside profit or loss, either in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at the
amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the
taxation authorities, based on tax rates (and tax laws)
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the
end of the reporting period, taking into consideration
interpretations and practices prevailing in the countries in
which the Group operates.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all
temporary differences at the end of the reporting period
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their
carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable
temporary differences, except:

e when the deferred tax liability arises from the initial
recognition of goodwill or an asset or liability in a
transaction that is not a business combination and,
at the time of the transaction, affects neither the
accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

o in respect of taxable temporary differences associated
with investments in subsidiaries, when the timing
of the reversal of the temporary differences can be
controlled and it is probable that the temporary
differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future.
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Notes to Financial Statements

3.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

Income tax (Continued)

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible
temporary differences, the carryforward of unused tax
credits and any unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are
recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable
profit will be available against which the deductible
temporary differences, the carryforward of unused tax
credits and unused tax losses can be utilised, except:

e when the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible
temporary differences arises from the initial recognition
of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not
a business combination and, at the time of the
transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor
taxable profit or loss; and

o in respect of deductible temporary differences
associated with investments in subsidiaries, deferred
tax assets are only recognised to the extent that it is
probable that the temporary differences will reverse
in the foreseeable future and taxable profit will be
available against which the temporary differences can
be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed
at the end of each reporting period and reduced to the
extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable
profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred
tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets
are reassessed at the end of each reporting period and are
recognised to the extent that it has become probable that
sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part
of the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax
rates that are expected to apply to the period when the
asset is realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates
(and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the end of the reporting period.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Income tax (Continued)

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset
if and only if the Group has a legally enforceable right to
set off current tax assets and current tax liabilities and the
deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities relate to
income tax levied by the same taxable authority on either
the same taxable entity or different taxable entities which
intend either to settle current tax liabilities and assets on
a net basis, or to realise the assets and settle the liabilities
simultaneously, in each future period in which significant
amounts of deferred tax liabilities or assets expected to be
settled or recovered.

Government grants

Government grants are recognised at their fair value where
there is reasonable assurance that the grant will be received
and all attaching conditions will be complied with. When
the grant relates to an expense item, it is recognised as
income on a systematic basis over the periods that the
costs, for which it is intended to compensate, are expensed.

Revenue recognition

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when
control of goods or services is transferred to the customers
at an amount that reflects the consideration to which the
Group expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods
or services.

When the consideration in a contract includes a variable
amount, the amount of consideration is estimated to which
the Group will be entitled in exchange for transferring
the goods or services to the customer. The variable
consideration is estimated at contract inception and
constrained until it is highly probable that a significant
revenue reversal in the amount of cumulative revenue
recognised will not occur when the associated uncertainty
with the variable consideration is subsequently resolved.
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Notes to Financial Statements

3.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

Revenue recognition (Continued)

When the contract contains a financing component which
provides the customer with a significant benefit of financing
the transfer of goods or services to the customer for more
than one year, revenue is measured at the present value of
the amount receivable, discounted using the discount rate
that would be reflected in a separate financing transaction
between the Group and the customer at contract inception.
When the contract contains a financing component which
provides the Group with a significant financial benefit for
more than one year, revenue recognised under the contract
includes the interest expense accreted on the contract
liability under the effective interest method. For a contract
where the period between the payment by the customer
and the transfer of the promised goods or services is one
year or less, the transaction price is not adjusted for the
effects of a significant financing component, using the
practical expedient in HKFRS 15.

Revenue from sales of goods is recognised at the point
in time when control of the asset is transferred to the
customer, generally on delivery of the goods.

Revenue from the provision of construction services is
recognised over time, using an output method to measure
progress towards complete satisfaction of the service,
because the Group’s performance creates or enhances
an asset that the customer controls overtime as the asset
is created or enhanced. The output method recognises
revenue in accordance with the direct measurements of
the value of the services transferred by the Group to the
customer with reference to the certified value of work
performed to date.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Other income

Consultancy fee income is recognised over the schedule
period on a straight-line basis because the customer
simultaneously receives and consumes the benefits provided
by the Group.

Interest income is recognised on the accrual basis using
the effective interest method by applying the rate that
exactly discounts the estimated future cash receipts over
the expected life of the financial instrument or a shorter
period, when appropriate, to the net carrying amount of
the financial asset.

Contract assets

A contract asset is the right to consideration in exchange
for goods or services transferred to the customer. If the
Group performs by transferring goods or services to a
customer before the customer pays consideration or before
payment is due, a contract asset is recognised for the
earned consideration that is conditional. Contract asset
are subject to impairment assessment, details of which
are included in the accounting policies for impairment of
financial assets.

Contract liabilities

A contract liability is recognised a payment is received or
a payment is due (whichever is earlier) from a customer
before the Group transfers the related goods or services.
Contract liabilities are recognised as revenue when the
Group performs under the contract (i.e. transfer control of
the related goods or services to the customer).
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Notes to Financial Statements

3.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

Contract costs

Other than the costs which are capitalised as inventories,
property, plant and equipment and intangible assets, costs
incurred to fulfil a contract with a customer are capitalised
as an asset if all of the following criteria are met:

(@) The costs relate directly to a contract or to an
anticipated contract that the entity can specifically
identify.

(b) The costs generate or enhance resources of the entity
that will be used in satisfying (or in continuing to
satisfy) performance obligations in the future.

(c) The costs are expected to be recovered.

The capitalised contract costs are amortised and charged to
profit or loss on a systematic basis that is consistent with
the transfer to the customer of the goods or services to
which the asset relates. Other contract costs are expensed
as incurred.

Share-based payments

The Company operates a share option scheme for the
purpose of providing incentives and rewards to eligible
participants who contribute to the success of the Group's
operations. Employees (including directors) of the Group
receive remuneration in the form of share-based payments,
whereby employees render services as consideration for
equity instruments (“equity-settled transactions”).

The cost of equity-settled transactions with employees
is measured by reference to the fair value at the date at
which they are granted. The fair value is determined by an
external valuer using a binomial model, further details of
which are given in note 30 to the financial statements.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Share-based payments (Continued)

The cost of equity-settled transactions is recognised in
employee benefit expense, together with a corresponding
increase in equity, over the period in which the performance
and/or service conditions are fulfilled. The cumulative
expense recognised for equity-settled transactions at the
end of each reporting period until the vesting date reflects
the extent to which the vesting period has expired and the
Group’s best estimate of the number of equity instruments
that will ultimately vest. The charge or credit to profit or
loss for a period represents the movement in the cumulative
expense recognised as at the beginning and end of that
period.

Service and non-market performance conditions are not
taken into account when determining the grant date fair
value of awards, but the likelihood of the conditions being
met is assessed as part of the Group's best estimate of
the number of equity instruments that will ultimately vest.
Market performance conditions are reflected within the
grant date fair value. Any other conditions attached to
an award, but without an associated service requirement,
are considered to be non-vesting conditions. Non-vesting
conditions are reflected in the fair value of an award and
lead to an immediate expensing of an award unless there
are also service and/or performance conditions.

For awards that do not ultimately vest because non-market
performance and/or service conditions have not been met,
no expense is recognised. Where awards include a market
or non-vesting condition, the transactions are treated as
vesting irrespective of whether the market or non-vesting
condition is satisfied, provided that all other performance
and/or service conditions are satisfied.

Where the terms of an equity-settled award are modified,
as a minimum an expense is recognised as if the terms
had not been modified, if the original terms of the award
are met. In addition, an expense is recognised for any
modification that increases the total fair value of the share-
based payments, or is otherwise beneficial to the employee
as measured at the date of modification.
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Notes to Financial Statements

3.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

Share-based payments (Continued)

Where an equity-settled award is cancelled, it is treated as if
it had vested on the date of cancellation, and any expense
not yet recognised for the award is recognised immediately.
This includes any award where non-vesting conditions
within the control of either the Group or the employee
are not met. However, if a new award is substituted for
the cancelled award, and is designated as a replacement
award on the date that it is granted, the cancelled and new
awards are treated as if they were a modification of the
original award, as described in the previous paragraph.

The dilutive effect of outstanding options is reflected as
additional share dilution in the computation of earnings per
share.

Other employee benefits

Paid leave carried forward

The Group provides paid annual leave to its employees
under their employment contracts on a calendar year basis.
Under certain circumstances, such leave which remains
untaken as at the end of the reporting period is permitted
to be carried forward and utilised by the respective
employees in the following year. An accrual is made at the
end of each reporting period for the expected future cost
of such paid leave earned during the year by the employees
and carried forward.

Pension schemes

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory
Provident Fund retirement benefit scheme under the
Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance for those
employees who are eligible to participate in the MPF
Scheme. Contributions are made based on a percentage of
the employees’ basic salaries and are charged to profit or
loss as they become payable in accordance with the rules
of the MPF Scheme. The assets of the MPF Scheme are held
separately from those of the Group in an independently
administered fund. The Group’s employer contributions vest
fully with the employees when contributed into the MPF
Scheme.
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3.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

162

POLICIES (Continued)

Other employee benefits (Continued)

Pension schemes (Continued)

The Group also operates a Mandatory Provident Fund
Exempted Occupational Retirement Schemes Ordinance
("ORSO") retirement benefit scheme for those employees
who are eligible to participate in the ORSO scheme. This
scheme operates in a way similar to the MPF Scheme,
except that when an employee leaves the scheme prior
to his/her interest in the Group’'s employee contributions
vesting fully, the ongoing contributions payable by the
Group are reduced by the relevant amount of forfeited
employer’s contributions.

The employees of the Group's subsidiary which operates in
PRC are required to participate in a central pension scheme
operated by the local municipal government. This subsidiary
is required to contribute certain percentages of its payroll
costs to the central pension scheme. The contributions
are charged to profit or loss as they become payable in
accordance with the rules of the central pension scheme.

Borrowing costs
All other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in
which they are incurred. Borrowing costs consist of interest
and other costs that an entity incurs in connection with the
borrowing of funds.

Foreign currencies

These financial statements are presented in Hong Kong
dollars, which is the Company’s functional currency. Each
entity in the Group determines its own functional currency
and items included in the financial statements of each
entity are measured using that functional currency. Foreign
currency transactions recorded by the entities in the Group
are initially recorded using their respective functional
currency rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions.
Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are translated at the functional currency rates
of exchange ruling at the end of the reporting period.
Differences arising on settlement or translation of monetary
items are recognised in profit or loss.
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3.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

Foreign currencies (Continued)

Differences arising on settlement or translation of monetary
items are recognised in profit or loss with the exception of
monetary items that are designated as part of the hedge of
the Group’s net investment of a foreign operation. These
are recognised in other comprehensive income until the
net investment is disposed of, at which time the cumulative
amount is reclassified to profit or loss. Tax charges and
credits attributable to exchange differences on these
monetary items are also recorded in other comprehensive
income.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of
historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the
exchange rates at the dates of the initial transactions. Non-
monetary items measured at fair value in a foreign currency
are translated using the exchange rates at the date when
the fair value was measured. The gain or loss arising on
translation of a non-monetary item measured at fair value
is treated in line with the recognition of the gain or loss on
change in fair value of the item (i.e., translation difference
on the item whose fair value gain or loss is recognised
in other comprehensive income or profit or loss is also
recognised in other comprehensive income or profit or loss,
respectively).
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Foreign currencies (Continued)

The functional currency of certain subsidiaries operating in
the PRC is currency other than the Hong Kong dollar. As
at the end of the reporting period, the assets and liabilities
of these entities are translated into Hong Kong dollar at
the exchange rate prevailing at the end of the reporting
period and their statements of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income are translated into Hong Kong
dollars at the weighted average exchange rate for the year.

The resulting exchange differences are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in the exchange
fluctuation reserve. On disposal of a foreign operation, the
component of other comprehensive income relating to that
particular foreign operation is recognised in profit or loss.

Any goodwill arising on the acquisition of a foreign
operation and any fair value adjustments to the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities arising on acquisition are
treated as assets and liabilities of the foreign operation and
translated at the closing rate.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash
flows, the cash flows of the PRC subsidiaries are translated
into Hong Kong dollars at the exchange rate ruling at the
dates of the cash flows. Frequently recurring cash flows
of the PRC subsidiaries which arise throughout the year
are translated into Hong Kong dollars at weighted average
exchange rates for the year.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND ESTIMATES

The preparation of the Group's financial statements
requires management to make judgements, estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues,
expenses, assets and liabilities, and their accompanying
disclosures, and the disclosure of contingent liabilities.
Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could
result in outcomes that could require a material adjustment
to the carrying amounts of the assets or liabilities affected
in the future.
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Notes to Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND ESTIMATES (Continued)

The major judgements, estimates and assumptions that
have the most significant effect on the amounts recognised
in the financial statements and have a significant risk of
causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts
of assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are
described below.

Performance obligation of construction contracts
The Group's revenue from contract works is recognised
over time using the output method and is measured in
accordance with the progress towards complete satisfaction
of the performance obligations. Budgeted contract costs
are prepared by management on the basis of contract
concluded with and/or quotations provided by major
subcontractors, suppliers or vendors involved from time to
time, the experience of management and current market
condition. The estimation of profitability of each project
is dependent on the estimation of the total outcome of
the contract, as well as the work done to date. The Group
reviews and revises the estimates of contract costs to
completion, variation orders and contract claims prepared
for each contract as the contract progresses. Significant
judgement is required in estimating contract costs to
completion, variation works and contract claims which may
have an impact to the total outcome of the contract and
recognition of profit. Actual outcomes of total contract
costs and total revenue may be higher or lower than that
estimated at the end of the reporting period, which would
affect the profit recognised in future years as an adjustment
to the amounts recorded to date.

Impairment of goodwill

The Group determines whether goodwill is impaired at least
on an annual basis. This requires an estimation of the value
in use of the cash-generating units to which the goodwill is
allocated. Estimating the value in use requires the Group to
make an estimate of the expected future cash flows from
the cash-generating units and also to choose a suitable
discount rate in order to calculate the present value of
those cash flows. Further details are given in note 16 to the
financial statements.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND ESTIMATES (Continued)

Impairment of non-financial assets (other than
goodwill)

The Group assesses whether there are any indicators
of impairment for all non-financial assets at the end of
each reporting period. Non-financial assets are tested for
impairment when there are indicators that the carrying
amounts may not be recoverable. An impairment exists
when the carrying value of an asset or a cash-generating
unit exceeds its recoverable amount, which is the higher
of its fair value less costs of disposal and its value in use.
The calculation of the fair value less costs of disposal is
based on available data from binding sales transactions in
an arm’s length transaction of similar assets or observable
market prices less incremental costs for disposing of the
asset. When value in use calculations are undertaken,
management must estimate the expected future cash
flows from the asset or cash-generating unit and choose a
suitable discount rate in order to calculate the present value
of those cash flows.

Provision for expected credit loss on accounts
receivable and contract assets

The Group assesses on a forward looking basis the expected
credit losses associated with its accounts receivable and
contract assets. The impairment methodology applied
depends on whether there has been a significant increase in
credit risk. To make that assessment, the Group compares
the risk of a default occurring on the financial instrument as
at the reporting date with the risk of a default occurring on
the financial instrument as at the date of initial recognition
and consider reasonable and supportable information, that
is available without undue cost or effort, that is indicative
of significant increases in credit risk since initial recognition.
Significant estimates and judgements are required in
determining the probability-weighted amount that is not
recoverable and the forecast of future economic conditions.
The information about ECLs on the Group’'s contract assets
and accounts receivable is disclosed in notes 19 and 20 to
the financial statements, respectively.
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Notes to Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND ESTIMATES (Continued)

Leases — Estimating the incremental borrowing
rate

The Group cannot readily determine the interest rate
implicit in a lease, and therefore, it uses an incremental
borrowing rate (“IBR”) to measure lease liabilities. The IBR
is the rate of interest that the Group would have to pay
to borrow over a similar term, and with a similar security,
the funds necessary to obtain an asset of a similar value to
the right-of-use asset in a similar economic environment.
The IBR therefore reflects what the Group “would have to
pay”, which requires estimation when no observable rates
are available (such as for subsidiaries that do not enter into
financing transactions) or when it needs to be adjusted to
reflect the terms and conditions of the lease. The Group
estimates the IBR using observable inputs (such as market
interest rates) when available and is required to make
certain entity-specific estimates.

Provision for inventories

An allowance is recognised when the net realisable value
of inventories is higher than their costs and inventories are
obsolete and slow-moving. Determination of allowance for
inventories requires the management to obtain conclusive
evidence. In making the judgement and estimates, the
management also considers the factors such as the purpose
of holding the inventories and the effect of the events after
the reporting period. Where the actual outcome in future
is different from the original estimate, such difference will
impact the carrying value of inventories and allowance
charge or write-back in the period in which such estimate
has been changed.

As at 31 December 2020, the carrying amount of
inventories is fully impaired and the allowance of inventories
of HK$6,748,000 has been recognised in profit or loss for
the year ended 31 December 2020.
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Notes to Financial Statements
pE EL

31 December 2020

x

5.

168

B+ A=t —H

SEGMENT INFORMATION

For management purposes, the Group is organised into
business units based on their products and service and has
two reportable operating segments as follows:

o Civil engineering and construction segment — civil
engineering works and building construction and
maintenance works

o Automotive engines segment — development,
production and sale of automotive engines

Management monitors the results of the Group’s operating
segments separately for the purpose of making decision about
resources allocation and performance assessment. Segment
performance is evaluated based on reportable segment
profit or loss, which is a measure of adjusted profit or loss
before tax. The adjusted profit or loss before tax is measured
consistently with the Group's profit or loss before tax except
that gain on disposal of subsidiaries, gain on extinguishment
of convertible bonds, net, gain on modification of promissory
notes, finance costs (other than lease liabilities) as well as
corporate and unallocated corporate income or expenses are
excluded from such measurement.
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Notes to Financial Statements
pE  EL

31 December 2020
SEFEF A=t

5. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 5. oEER (&)

Civil engineering and

construction Automotive engines Total
IRIBREE REREHK @zt
2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019

“$-%E  CT0F CESEE CT0E SRS®E A
HK$"000 HK$' 000 HK$"000 HK$' 000 HK$"000 HK$" 000
TER  FEL TER  TEE FERL TEE

Segment revenue AU 475,269 377,816 3,052 81,293 478,321 459,109
Segment results PEE 2,586 (38,838)  (209,768)  (761,942)  (207,182)  (800,780)
Gain on extinguishment of FEE AR

convertible bonds, net et 293,712 —
Gain on modification of promissory notes 71K 245 2 &k 294,577 =
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HEEA 2 g = 1,682
Corporate and unallocated income RERKIEHA 833 =
Corporate and unallocated expenses EY TIN5 (13,889) (41,735)
Finance costs (other than interest on MEER (A

lease liabilities) HEARGHE) (65,907) (81,661)
Profit/(loss) before tax BRBHTRA /(B 302,144 (922,494)
Segment assets PHEE 207,962 198,394 45,218 237,097 253,180 435,491

Corporate and other unallocated assets ¥R MA M

& 2,641 3,604
Total assets EEAH 255,821 439,095
Segment liabilities THEE 97,999 90,840 314,738 282,180 42,737 373,020

Corporate and other unallocated liabilities 4% &Mk 2L

afk 522,013 1,040,830
Total liabilities AfEH(E 934750 1,413,850
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Notes to Financial Statements
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31 December 2020
—ECEREFTZH=+—H

5. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 5. oEER (&)

Civil engineering and

construction Automotive engines Total
IRIBREE EEEI] L
2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019

“e-%E CT-0F CESEE CT0E SRSRE A
HK$"000 HK$' 000 HK$"000 HK$" 000 HK$"000 HK$' 000
TER  FBL TAR B FERL TEE

Other segment information: A HER
Bank interest income FAMEA - 1 3 4 3 5
Impairment of goodwill HERE — - (16,338)  (275,821) (16,338)  (275,821)
Impairment of intangible assets WY EEWE - - - (88,042) - (88,042)
(Impairment)/reversal of impairment FENRS (i) /

of accounts receivable BUER M (791) 212 (152,123) (349,368) (152,914) (349,156)
(Impairment)/reversal of impairment of A% (Bif) /

contract assets BER (44) 31 — — (44) 3N
Impairment of property, plant and ERE T

equipment W = = (28,416) = (28,416) =
Provision for inventories fr il - - (6748)  (33,140) (6,748)  (33,140)
Depreciation of property, plant and VERE YT

equipment i (171) 266) (6100 (5688  (781)  (5950)
Depreciation of right-of-use assets EREERENE (2,357) (1,457) (525) (1,060) (2,882) (2,517)
Amortisation of intangible assets B - - — (1,236) - (1,236)
Capital expenditure* BA (2,402) (26) — (127) (2,402) (153)
* Capital expenditure consists of additions to property, plant * BRI REY Y - IR

and equipment and right-of-use assets. 5 S Al A REE R -
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Notes to Financial Statements

5. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)
Geographical information

(a)

(b)

Revenue from external customers

5

IR MIEE

31 December 2020
SECEREF A =+—H

oEER (F)
it EE R
(a) REIMBEEHWA

2020 2019

—EEF ZEZ—JUE

HK$’ 000 HK$ 000

FET Tt

Hong Kong s 475,269 377,816
PRC ] 3,052 81,293
478,321 459,109

The revenue information above is based on the
locations of the customers.

Non-current assets

A WA B TS R R % B e
o

(b) FRBEE

2020 2019

—B-EHF ZE U

HK$' 000 HK$’ 000

FTExT T

Hong Kong B 2,399 3,407
PRC HH [ — 48,522
2,399 51,929

The non-current asset information above is based on
the locations of assets.

bt I B R T R
P AE s -
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pE EL

31 December 2020
—ECEREFTZH=+—H

5. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 5. oEER (&)
Information about major customers FEEFNEHR
Revenue from each major customer which accounted for A& EERF WAL A 4R B R 4
10% or more of the Group's revenue for the year, is set out R A R 10% 8 2L B > R s
below:
2020 2019
—BEHF —EF A
HK$'000 HK$" 000
FHET THs T
Customer A# HEA* N/A ~EHA 82,068
Customer B* KFB* 159,575 160,740
Customer C* KHEC* 82,489 83,442
Customer D* FFD* 87,882 N/A A7
Customer E* KEE* 97,199 N/A A
# This customer is under the automotive engines segment. E K P B IR AT o
These customers are under the civil engineering and : PR E R TR R o

construction segment.

Except for the aforesaid, no revenue from a single external B Ll AL > sk B AN EF
customer accounted for 10% or more of the Group's WA AL B A 10% 8L L -
revenue.
6. REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS 6. WA HBBAR Kz
An analysis of revenue is as follows: WAZHmT -
2020 2019
—EEF —ZFNE
HK$’ 000 HK$" 000
FHERT T T

Revenue from contracts with customers — BL%F Z [ 1& & EEH
A 478,321 459,109
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6.

REVENUE, OTHER
(Continued)

Notes to Financial Statements

INCOME AND GAINS 6.

Disaggregated revenue information

For the year ended 31 December 2020

IR MIEE

31 December 2020
SECEREF A =+—H

WA~ AR W (&)

(i) 2HFBAER

BE-_Z-_Zf+=-A=+—H

IEFE
Civil
engineering
and  Automotive
Segments AN construction engines Total
ITARIE
kEE JRE BB #at
HK$' 000 HK$' 000 HK$' 000
FET FTER THET
Type of goods or services B R A
Sales of goods BYHE — 3,052 3,052
Construction services 2 R 124,607 — 124,607
Civil engineering services TR TRERMRH 350,662 = 350,662
Total revenue from contracts HEF 2 N AHEL
with customers A JE R 475,269 3,052 478,321
Geographical markets it & h 5
Hong Kong i 475,269 — 475,269
PRC ailc] — 3,052 3,052
Total revenue from contracts %P 2 A & E A
with customers A 8% 475,269 3,052 478,321
Timing of revenue recognition T3S Y5 RS
Goods transferred at a point JA B — IR ] B RS 2
in time &Y = 3,052 3,052
Services transferred over time W IRy e RS 2 AR 475,269 — 475,269
Total revenue from contracts L% P 2 [ A #E 4
with customers I 8% 475,269 3,052 478,321
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31 December 2020
ZERCREF+ZHA=+—H

6. REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS 6. WA HKARKE (E)
(Continued)
(i) Disaggregated revenue information (Continued) (i)

DIHFBAER (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2019 BE-Z-hF+=A=t+-—8H

174

IEFE
Civil
engineering
and Automotive
Segments 2 construction engines Total
+ARTHE
Bk TR I st
HK$'000 HK$' 000 HK$" 000
R AR AR
Type of goods or services B R%E R
Sales of goods By E — 81,293 81,293
Construction services eyl iery 66,945 = 66,945
Civil engineering services T AR TRMH 310,871 S 310,871
Total revenue from contracts WEF 2 A HES
with customers U A B85 377,816 81,293 459,109
Geographical markets it & h 35
Hong Kong i 377,816 = 377,816
PRC ailc] — 81,293 81,293
Total revenue from contracts L% P 2 A 8 E A
with customers A 8% 377,816 81,293 459,109
Timing of revenue recognition T3S B SRS
Goods transferred at a point JA R — I [H] B R 2.
in time & — 81,293 81,293
Services transferred over time W IRy T RS 2 IR 377,816 = 377,816
Total revenue from contracts HE P Z B &4 E A
with customers A B % 377,816 81,293 459,109
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31 December 2020
“FoFEFA=tH

6. REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS 6. WA Htlgx ARz ()
(Continued)
(ii) Performance obligations

(i) ENEE

Information about the Group’s performance obligation
is summarised below:

Sales of goods

The performance obligation is satisfied upon delivery
of goods and payment is generally due with 60 to 90
days from delivery.

Construction and civil engineering services

The performance obligation is satisfied over time as
services are rendered and payment is generally due
within 30 days from the date of billing. A certain
percentage of payment is retained by customers
until the end of the retention period as the Group's
entitlement to the final payment is conditional on the
satisfaction of the service quality by the customers
over a certain period as stipulated in the contracts.

A B A 42 1 B A0 FUAT 2 B R
LU

HEER

J& 40 BAT A 38 A 7 il AR 2 AR AT
O HH A AT 60 E 90 H N
BT o

BERLIKRIERE

V& # 3AT: BB 4 3t MBS i 22 A B A
FOEH AR H B30 H A&
b o AFERE— & Lol %5 PR
LR WA R AR S R
B AT B HE R L% 5 6 2 BT
AT A1 03 TR 7R £ R s L M
(HE0

2020 2019
it 223 “E-NEF
Notes HK$’ 000 HK$' 000
B 5% TERT TH#IT
Other income and gains Hit AR WKz
Interest income FLEWA 3 5
Consultancy fee income EHE- (S ON 1,227 480
Government subsidies* HRF A Bl * 12,735 1,225
Gain on disposal of items of B - A Rk
property, plant and equipment JE H B A = 92
Gain on extinguishment of AR E SR
convertible bonds, net g TR 26 293,712 —
Gain on modification of AT R LR 2 AR
promissory notes 27 294,577 —
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HEMHE A 7 2 Wi — 1,682
Sundry income METRUT A 1,094 1,501
603,348 4,985

* Being the subsidies received from the COVID-19 Anti-
epidemic Fund under the Employment Support Scheme
and other subsidy schemes as promulgated by the
Government of the Hong Kong Special Administrative
Region of the People’s Republic of China during the
year.

* BPAR 475 v 3 B A (50 s 4
AT IR I JESCRF 7 4T A A 11 £
MEFFIE T COVID-19F;
ﬁ%ﬁﬁ&ﬁ\mﬂiﬁﬁﬁ%aq&%
MR
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pE EL

31 December 2020
—ECEREFTZH=+—H

7. FINANCE COSTS 7. BHEHR

An analysis of finance costs is as follows: BRI
2020 2019
—BCEF ZR—F
Notes HK$'000 HK$' 000
i THET T
Interest on lease liabilities HEABNE 15(b) 306 404
Interest on bank and other borrowings  #47 & H A ZAE 5,403 6,141
Interest on promissory notes R i ZE RS, 30,475 41,598
Imputed interest on convertible bonds Ik & 2 HEE AL 26 30,029 33,922
66,213 82,065
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IR MIEE

31 December 2020
“FoFEFA=tH

PROFIT/(LOSS) BEFORE TAX 8. BBiAIER (EHE)
The Group's profit/(loss) before tax is arrived at after AREEZ BRBLATE A (EE) B
charging/(crediting): B (EA) THI&IAE :
2020 2019
—EBIEF “E-NE
Notes HK$'000 HK$’ 000
B &E FExT THsI0
Cost of sales: B AR
Cost of inventories sold EEFERA 3,084 79,283
Provision for inventories 17 B 154 6,748 33,140
Amortisation of intangible assets LT P 6 17 — 1,236
Contract costs BRI 460,393 398,006
470,225 511,665
Research and development costs WFEE LA — 842
Impairment of accounts JREMSCHR B Bl
receivable* 20 152,914 349,156
Impairment/(reversal of impairment) A#I&EBE,
of contract assets* (WAE M) * 19 44 (312)
Impairment of property, plant and  #13 - 2% K & A
equipment BE 14 28,416 —
Depreciation of property, plant and  #713 - #2% & st
equipment** Prg 14 2,898 6,223
Depreciation of right-of-use assets i Fil i & £ 7 % 15(a) 3,648 3,161
Auditor’s remuneration BTN 4 1,348 1,311
Employee benefit expense fié B A ] B =52
(excluding directors’ and chief (NEEESE K
executive's remuneration BTN B B4
(note 9))* (Pft5E9) ) *# 68,928 62,047
Equity-settled share option expense LA MBHHE &k 54 11 i %
(excluding directors’ and chief B S (NG S
executives’ remuneration s AT B4
(note 9)) (ffF5E9)) — 27,369
Lease payments not included in the kst ATHE & E5T&E
measurement of lease liabilities Z B K 568 —

i The impairment/(reversal of impairment) of accounts
receivable and contract assets for the year are included
in “Impairment of financial and contract assets, net”
in the consolidated statement profit or loss and other

comprehensive income.

* %

The depreciation of property, plant and equipment of nil

(2019: HK$1,339,000) for the year included in “cost of

inventories sold” provided above.

J The employee benefit expense of HK$43,237,000 (2019:
HK$37,643,000) for the year included in “cost of sales”

provided above.

RO KA S E R WE (B
E ) 5 A &% & 18 48 e H A 22 i
WA R P9 [ 4l 5 46 S (R
e

* %

ERPIE ~ A B A ST R (.
F—JU4 1 1,339,000 70) §HA L
SO T BB -

E HERIRE BRAIBA 43,237,000 5T
(—F—JL4 : 37,643,000 50) 7
A b SCHTEE T 8 AR ] e
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B SV ES S

9.

178

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S
REMUNERATION

Directors’ and chief executive’s remuneration for the year,
disclosed pursuant to the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on The Stock Exchange, section 383(1)(a), (b), (c)
and (f) of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and Part 2
of the Companies (Disclosure of Information about Benefits
of Directors) Regulation, is as follows:

EERESTBRAEME

MRIEW AP 7% B AR A~ (R#EA R
1) 55383 (1)(a) ~ (b) ~ () K (f) MU
Je K22 A (40 50 56 S 0 i R ) ARG 26
2B B 2 AF N S R ATEA B
BT -

2020 2019

— —F A

HK$' 000 HK$ 000

FTHT Tt

Fees 4 408 433

Other emoluments: HoAth T

Salaries, allowances and benefits in B4 ALK

kind HY A % 7,139 2,063

Pension scheme contributions BT AT S 4R 52 45

Equity-settled share option expense I HEE 248 A PG E 2 - 1,352

7,191 3,460

7,599 3,893

During the year, no director was granted share options
(2019: one director was granted share options), in respect
of their services to the Group, under the share option
scheme of the Company, further details of which were set
out in note 30 to the financial statements. The fair value of
such options, which had been recognised in profit or loss
over the vesting period, was determined as at the date of
grant and the amount included in the financial statements
for the year ended 31 December 2019 was included in
the above directors’ and chief executive's remuneration
disclosures.
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Notes to Financial Statements

DIRECTORS" AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S 9.

REMUNERATION (Continued)

(a)

Independent non-executive directors
The fees paid to independent non-executive directors

during the year were as follows:

IR MIEE

31 December 2020
SECEREF A =+—H

EERESTRAEME (F)
(a) BAFHITES

A TR AT 8 S JR AT L A
BWF

Salaries, Equity-
allowances Pension settled
and benefits scheme  share option Total
Fees inkind  contributions expense remuneration
Fe - 2H BIRER RELE
we  REWHG dEfR  BRERR ame
Notes HK$' 000 HK$' 000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$' 000
liFi3 FhR TER TER FHR TER
2020 —ECEF
Mr. Leung Tsz Wing VSR St 136 = = - 136
Mr. Zhang Guozhi REE (i) 111 = = = 111
Mr. Ip Mei Shun BRIk 136 - — — 136
Mr. Yu Wai Chun REREE (iv) 25 - - - 25
408 — — — 408
2019 —8-NE
Mr. Chan Kai Wing WS (i 24 - - - 24
Mr. Yip Tai Him b1 Vi (i) 41 — - - 41
Mr. Leung Tsz Wing VSR Jits 144 — - - 144
Mr. Zhang Guozhi REE 4 (i) 120 — - - 120
Mr. Ip Mei Shun £ 104 — - - 104
433 - — — 433
Notes: BT
(i)  Resigned on 28 February 2019 (i) ﬁ:%—ﬂiiﬂ i INER 2

(i) Resigned on 12 April 2019

(iii)  Appointed on 28 February 2019 and resigned on 16

October 2020

(iv)  Appointed on 16 October 2020

(i) AT EFIUENA A+ HEHE

(i) MEF—NFEZH AR
ZAEWR T FFEHA TR
H AT

(iv) ?@iiiiiﬁ‘ﬂ TN HEE
T
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31 December 2020
—ECEREFTZH=+—H

9. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S 9. BEENESTHAEHME (&)

REMUNERATION (Continued)
(b) Executive directors and

(b) BITESERIHTES

non-executive

directors
Salaries, Equity-
allowances Pension settled
and benefits scheme  share option Total
Fees inkind  contributions expense  remuneration
¢ 28 BB RELE
e RENFIE TR BREER aye
Notes HKS$'000 HKS$' 000 HKS$'000 HKS$'000 HK$' 000
i3S TiEn TiEn TiEn TiEn TiEn
2020 k- o<
Executive directors anEs
Mr. Artem Matyushok Artem Matyushok /& (i) = 2,11 = — 2,11
Mr. Brett Ashley Wight ~ Brett Ashley Wight’e () = 1,771 = = 1,771
Mr. Xing Bin Ttk —~ 390 18 —~ 408
Mr. Lam Wah RS (i — 356 8 - 364
Mr. Liu Wengang L it (i) = 1,897 12 = 1,909
Mr. Chin Chun Hin BiREf (iv) = % 3 - 9
— 6,621 4 — 6,662
Non-executive director FonE®
Mr. Lam Wah MR (i) = 518 11 = 529
— 7,139 52 — 7,191
Notes: Bt 5t
(i)  Appointed on 5 February 2020 () MEoFRFEHHHERT
(i) Re-designated as executive director and resigned as (i MoFZEEANT=ZHWHES

HWITESE RBHTERTES
(i) A FERE)NH A AR

(v BoFECFET-ATEAE
ZiE

non-executive director on 3 August 2020

(iii)  Resigned on 20 August 2020

(iv)  Appointed on 13 November 2020
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31 December 2020
SECEREF A =+—H

9. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S 9. BENESTHAEME (&)
REMUNERATION (Continued)

(b) Executive directors and non-executive (b) BITEERIHTEE (F)
directors (Continued)

Salaries, Equity-
allowances Pension settled
and benefits scheme  share option Total
Fees inkind  contributions expense  remuneration
Brg o wEb BIREA R4 E
e REWAE atdlft WREER LR
Notes HK$"000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$" 000
i3 T THT T THT T
2019 —E-E
Executive directors WirER
Mr. Xing Bin Tt — 360 18 — 378
Mr. Lam Wah M (i) - 993 12 1,352 2,357
Mr. Liu Wengang BRI (i) - 300 3 = 303
— 1,653 33 1,352 3,038
Non-executive directors ~ F#fTESE
Mr. Wong Hin Shek TEEEE (i) — 170 6 — 176
Mr. Lam Wah LS (i - 240 6 - 246
— 410 12 — 422
- 2,063 45 1,352 3,460
Notes: B &E
(i) Re-designated as non-executive director and resigned iy WM_-F—NLFENHA=Z+—HH
as executive director on 31 August 2019 1255 AT R B AT #
+
(i)  Appointed on 1 November 2019 iy MZFE—NF+—H - HEZ
£
(i)  Resigned on 12 April 2019 (i) A F—JUFEM A+ H BT
There was no arrangement under which a director waived TAAE T AR A 2 S B RO
or agreed to waive any remuneration during the year (2019: fal i 2 BE (—F—JUAE - J) -

Nil).
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10. FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES

182

The five highest paid employees during the year included
three (2019: one) directors, details of whose remuneration
are set out in note 9 above. Details of the remuneration of
the remaining two (2019: four) non-director, highest paid

employees for the year are as follows:

10. EEBSHFMES

AR > T4 fo N R B LA =4

(ZF U — &) EF > AR
& RE IR ESCEES o RAER > H
BRM A4 (F—JU4F - U4) B Hri
1M IR AR BRI RE R AT

2020 2019

—EZEHF ZE—IUAE

HK$'000 HK$ 000

FET Fison

Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind ¥4 ~ HEHERIE Y F 25 4,542 6,630
Discretionary performance-related B 3% B M 1Y 19 45 1 AT

bonuses 1,474 666

Pension scheme contributions R A FE R 120 195

6,136 7,491

The number of non-director, highest paid employees whose
remuneration fell within the following bands is as follows:

P <= A ~F- T 51 4 4 e i 6 M
HE B AR

2020 2019
—E-®E TN

HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,001 # &
1,500,000% 75 — 2

HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 1,500,001 C &
2,000,000 75 — —

HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000 2,000,001 #5 7T %
2,500,000#5 7T — 1

HK$2,500,001 to HK$3,000,000 2,500,001 # T2
3,000,000 G 1 1

HK$3,000,001 to HK$3,500,000 3,000,001 # T &
3,500,000 70 1 —
2 4
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11. INCOME TAX 11.
Hong Kong profits tax was been provided at the rate of
16.5% (2019: 16.5%) on the estimated assessable profits
arising in Hong Kong during the year. Bisu Yunbo, a wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Group in the PRC, is subject to
a preferential corporate income tax (“CIT”) rate of 15%
(2019: 15%). Tax on profits assessable elsewhere have been
calculated at the rates of tax prevailing in the jurisdictions
in which the Group operates.

IR MIEE

31 December 2020
e

Frig®i

R R AR BB E W A T
ARBL U R 16.5% (& — L4 -
16.5%) MY BLRFH LM o AL EH R
W 2 — [ 2 B N | L E AR E
AR EAEIER ([EER]) &
15% 8Bl (—ZFE—JLF + 15%) - HAth
i 7 8 R Vi | 2 ol T T i AR A [ 4
& A R BATRL R A -

2020 2019

- e 323 —E— A

HK$' 000 HK$’ 000

FEx Tt

Underprovision in prior years — Hong Kong M {E4F B H AL — F 62 —
Overprovision in prior years — PRC TR AR R — — (3,511)
Deferred (note 28) RSE (P 5E28) 53 (12,738)
Total tax charge/(credit) for the year RIS () B 115 (16,249)

A reconciliation of the tax expense applicable to profit/
(loss) before tax at the statutory/applicable rates for the
jurisdictions in which the Company and the majority of its
subsidiaries are domiciled to the tax expense at the effective
tax rate is as follows:

PAAR 2 7] e LR H8 73 B T 2 ) P £ 1Y) ]
TEMEW 2 355 0 BT A BR AL
Al F1l (s 1) 78 11 B 0 2 B S B LA
F B ARG R B BUE R SCZ BT

2020 2019

—E-EF R

HK$'000 HK$’ 000

FEx T 0

Profit/(loss) before tax B AT A (R 18) 302,144 (922,494)

Tax at the statutory tax rate T e B R FHE A BLIE 52,624 (184,725)

Lower tax rate enacted by local authority 177 & J& 52 BB Bl % — 41,837

Income not subject to tax DRHAABL B A (99,237) (102)

Expenses not deductible for tax AATH0BLBE 32 44,517 130,303
Underprovision/(overprovision) in WEFEEBERL

prior years (RBEEAE) 62 (3,511)

Tax losses not recognised KRB R 2,096 —

Others HAt 53 (51)

Tax charge/(credit) BIIE S (HE ) 115 (16,249)

Annual Report 2020 — & “F 44 183



Notes to Financial Statements
pE EL

31 December 2020
B SV ES S

12.

13.

184

DIVIDEND
The directors do not recommend the payment of any final
dividend in respect of the year (2019: Nil).

EARNINGS/(LOSS) PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE
TO OWNERS OF THE PARENT

The calculation of the basic earnings/(loss) per share
amounts is based on the profit for the year attributable to
owners of the parent of HK$302,029,000 (2019: loss for
the year of HK$905,423,000) and the weighted average
number of ordinary shares in issue during the reporting
period.

The calculation of the diluted earnings/(loss) per share
amounts is based on the profit/(loss) for the year
attributable to the owners of the parent, adjusted to
reflect the interest on the convertible bonds. The weighted
average number of ordinary shares used in the calculation
is the number of ordinary shares in issue during the year, as
used in the basic earnings/(loss) per share calculation, and
the weighted average number of ordinary shares assumed
to have been issued at no consideration on the deemed
exercise or conversion of all dilutive potential ordinary
shares into ordinary shares.

The calculations of basic and diluted earnings/(loss) per
share are based on:

12

13.

RE
oA Rt A A R AT (T A i
B(CFJEE) -

BARBEEAELBRERN
(E518)

FREAREA (R TR EREA 7
WA NEAL 45 A3 #1302,029,000 % 70
(ZF—JU4E - 4£N)E54H 905,423,000
W 0) SO I T AT A 2 ik
FIBEE

IR 2 A (5 R) Ty EE R BEA
YA NS4 R A (kD) 7H5
Stz 48 51 B DU e R B AR R AL o
T RO 22 0 2 RO R - 3% U A R
ARA ) FHEPERFERND
BT E AR > HA B
B RBE FAHE AT - WA
ST AT SRR A L 2 A A R o

T BEEA R R A U 1R) BsHE
2.9/

2020 2019
—ECEHF ZE—IUE
HK$' 000 HK$" 000
FET T T
Earnings/(loss) BF (F518)
Profit/(loss) attributable to owners FAREHE B R A8
of the parent, used in basic loss FREF/NEIE FE PN A
per share calculation A (FEiE) 302,029 (905,423)
Interest on convertible bonds Al AE I 22 F B 30,029 33,922
Profit/(loss) attributable to owners IR AT #1252 1 B
of the parent before interest RSN ¥ SN/ A
on convertible bonds AR (EGiE) 332,058 (871,501)
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13. EARNINGS/(LOSS) PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE 13. BAREEAELEERERN

TO OWNERS OF THE PARENT (Continued) (E5#E) (&)
The calculations of basic and diluted earnings/(loss) per TR LA (ER) WEE
share are based on: A

Number of shares

IR &
2020 2019
—E-EF —E U
Shares gl
Weighted average number of ordinary FRIA w51 A R v
shares in issue during the year used E1EZ F N T AT
in the basic and diluted loss per share 288 I AR 1
calculation 200,000,000 200,000,000
Effect of dilution — weighted average M B — R
number of ordinary shares: TnREF-H4 8
Convertible bonds A AR 25 195,000,000 -
Weighted average number of ordinary )ﬂﬁ(‘ﬁﬁﬁ%ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬂ
shares in issue during the period Z N AT
used in diluted earnings per share TNHEF- 34 %
calculation 395,000,000 200,000,000
The computation of diluted loss per share for the year BEZF-NFTZA=T—HIESF
ended 31 December 2019 does not assume the impact ﬁz%ﬂﬁﬁﬁﬁ}éﬂﬁﬁﬁj‘tz‘@ﬁﬁﬁﬂi
of the convertible bonds outstanding since their assumed T Rk 8 R R
conversion would result in a decrease in loss per share. F'Xi?i?@ﬂ?f%ﬁﬁﬂﬁ}gﬁﬂmm °
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31 December 2020
—ECEREFTZH=+—H

14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

14. ¥ - WBRZE

Furniture,
Machinery fixtures
Leasehold and  and office Motor  Construction
improvements  equipment  equipment vehicles in progress Total
f
BERER
RENE RERRK AR hE HEIR st
HK$"000 HK$"000 HK$" 000 HK$" 000 HK$" 000 HK$" 000
THT THT THT ThT ThT ThT
31 December 2020 k- S 2:3
tZA=t-H
At 31 December 2019 and e Sy K3
1 January 2020: tZAZt-0R
“RIRE--R
Cost Hik 388 50,589 4,586 495 18 56,076
Accumulated depreciation ZiHE R
and impairment (117) (21,799) (1,829) 2n) (23,956)

Net carrying amount B i (8 21 28,790 2,757 284 18 32,120
At 1 January 2020, net of RZFZFE-A-H-

accumulated depreciation R 2HTE RBE

and impairment 2N 28,790 2,157 284 18 32,120
Additions e = = 122 = = 122
Transfer i ] = 17 = = (17) =
Depreciation provided during the year SR {TER i (:t8)

(note 8) (78) (2,290) (1) (119) (2,898)
Impairment (note 8) WM (:E8) = (26,134) (2,282) = (28,416)
Fxchange realignment s = (383) (32) = (1) (416)
At 31 December 2020, net of i Swe <3

accumulated depreciation +ZAZ+-H

and impairment bR Z5HTE RBE 193 — 154 165 = 512
At 31 December 2020: RZF-FE

TZA=ZT-H:
Cost A 388 53,037 4,836 488 58,749
Accumulated depreciation BB B
and impairment (195) (53,037) (4,682) (323) = (58,237)
Net carrying amount TR 193 = 154 165 = 512
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14. 1% ~ B[ REE (E)

14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

(Continued)
Fumniture,
Machinery fixtures
Leasehold and and office Motor  Construction
improvements  equipment  equipment vehicles—in progress Total
EUS
e E R
fEuE RS LN it FRIE st
HKS' 000 HKS' 000 HKS' 000 HK$' 000 HKS' 000 HKS' 000
Tk Tk Tk Tk Tk Tk
31 December 2019 g-0E
tZBE=1-H
At 31 December 2018 and e ayit:2
1 January 2019: FZA=-HE
“F-NE-A-R:
Cost A 388 51,689 5278 1,558 18 58,931
Accumulated depreciation AERBE
and impairment (39) (16,925) (2,247) (1,128) = (20,339)

Net carrying amount I #(E 349 34,764 3,031 430 18 38,592
At 1 January 2019, net of REZ-NE-A-H-

accumulated depreciation bR A5tV E R

and impairment 349 34,764 3,031 430 18 38,592
Additions e 8,187 52 219 919 6,491 15928
Acquisition of subsidiaries (note 32) OEM B AR (BE32) — — 152 1,007 52 1,681
Disposals k3 - - - (16) - (16)
Disposal of subsidiaries (note 33) HE WA (3E33) (8,187) - (338) (1,799) (6,946) (17.270)
Transfer L6 — 67 — — (67) -
Depreciation provided during the year  ER{TER( (:t8)

(note 8) (78) (5,566) (319 (260) - (6,223)
Exchange realignment 5t = (527) (48) 3 = (572)
At 31 December 2019, net of e Sy 2

accumulated depreciation +ZAZ+-0

and impairment R EFHTE RBE m 28,790 2,757 284 18 32,120
At 31 December 2019: RoE-N5

TZAZ1-H:
Cost A 388 50,589 4,586 495 18 56,076
Accumulated depreciation ZiHE R
and impairment (117) (21,799) (1,829) 21 = (23,956)
Net carrying amount IR 1 28,790 2,757 284 18 32,120
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15.

188

LEASES

The Group as lessee

The Group leases office premises for its daily operations.
The lease term is ranging from 22 months to 3 years,
with an option to renew the lease when all terms are
renegotiated. Lease payments are usually increased annually
to reflect current market rentals.

15. #HE
AEBEREBEA
AEEEHWEEHRENRASG - M
EWRRAF22MM H £ 34 > o] DL #E#
T T I o T A OB AR T o A
A O 45 A 8 DA S g A T
L4 o

(a) Right of use assets (a) FEREEE
The carrying amounts of the Group's right-of-use AN > AR B AR A AR
assets and the movements during the year are as (IEWSE TRV (T
follows:
2020 2019
—E-EF —EF A
HK$'000 HK$ 000
FET T
At 1 January w—H—H 3,252 3,882
Additions NE 2,280 2,546
Depreciation charge (note 8) Y A (fEe) (3,648) (3,161)
Exchange realignment [ifE 53, 3 4% 3 (15)
At 31 December Wrt—H=1+—H 1,887 3,252
(b) Lease liabilities (b) HEEE
The carrying amount of lease liabilities and the TAER > FH S B R T R A A )
movements during the year are as follows: BWuE
2020 2019
—EB-EHF TR
HK$'000 HK$ 000
FET T T
Carrying amount at 1 January w—H—HZ RHE 3,372 3,882
New leases & 2,280 2,546
Accretion of interest recognised A TR BRE R B RS 3
during the year (note 7) (Ft5E7) 306 404
Payments 13K (3,320) (3,429)
Exchange realignment [ifE 53, 3 4% 35 (31)
Carrying amount at 31 December A+ " H =+—H ZHEHE 2,673 3,372
Analysed into: M A
Current portion R 33 43 2,565 552
Non-current portion FE BPHAHS 4 108 2,820
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SECEFEF A =+—H

15. HE (&)

The Group as lessee (Continued) AEBEEREBEA (F)
(c) The amounts recognised in profit or loss in relation to (c) WEHlE 8 5 R A 4 %8 0
leases are as follows: R
2020 2019
—E-EH ZE—JUE
HK$' 000 HK$’ 000
FET Tt
Interest on lease liabilities A EFME 306 404
Depreciation charge of BHEEETESR
right-of-use assets 3,648 3,161
Expense relating to short-term A AR A B BR S
leases (included in administrative  (§FAFTELRE %)
expenses) 568 —
Total amount recognised in T A 5 L EH
profit or loss 4,522 3,565
16. GOODWILL 16. 8
2020 2019
—ECEH ZE U
Notes HK$'000 HK$ 000
(i FHET RN
Cost and net carrying amount: BUAS B R T A
At 1 January w—H—H 16,557 297,552
Acquisition of subsidiaries WS i B 2 ) 32 — 419
Disposal of subsidiaries o B e A ) 33 — (419)
Impairment during the year FE N E (16,338) (275,821)
Exchange realignment T o, 7 48 (219) (5,174)
At 31 December wt—HA=+—H — 16,557

Goodwill acquired through a business combination is
allocated to the cash-generating unit of the Automotive
Engines Business (the “Automotive Engines CGU") for

impairment testing.

Bt
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16.

190

"BHE+ZH=+—H

GOODWILL (Continued)
Impairment test of the Automotive Engines CGU

The full resumption of production of the automotive
engines business customers encountered further delay
during 2019 and 2020 due to the shortage in supply
due to the suppliers’ concern on the payment ability
of the automotive engines business customers. The
automotive engines business customers need to undergo
further financial and operational restructuring to address
the suppliers’ concern but such restructuring is still in
progress as of the reporting date. Based on discussion
with the automotive engines business customers, only the
restructuring of one of the automotive engines business
customers, namely Baic Yinxiang Automobile Co., Ltd.* (dt
RERFIREEAFRA ), “Baic Yinxiang”) is making progress
but the result of the restructuring is still uncertain.
Moreover, it is expected the COVID-19 outbreak will further
delay the restructuring negotiation and progress.

The resumption progress of the key automotive engines
business customers remained un-promising throughout the
year. The restructuring of BAIC Yinxiang is still in progress
and the result remained uncertain. The resumption target,
plan or schedule of BAIC Yinxiang remained unknown
to the Group. Due to the unsatisfactory progress of the
customers’ resumption, together with the heavy impact of
the COVID-19 outbreak, the automotive engines business
of the Group recorded a minimal operation. Moreover,
based on discussion with BAIC Yinxiang, a new engine
production line may be injected into BAIC Yinxiang after
the restructuring which may reduce their orders to the
automotive engines business of the Group in the future.

In view of the above situations, the Board performed
an impairment assessment as at 30 June 2020 (“2020
Interim Valuation”) and recognised impairment losses
of HK$16,338,000 (2019: HK$275,821,000) and
HK$28,416,000 (2019: Nil) respectively in connection with
goodwill allocated to Automotive Engines CGU and the
property, plant and equipment relation to the Automotive
Engines Business (the “Automotive Engines Assets”)
respectively. The impairment losses are made based on the
results of impairment tests for Automotive Engines Business
using their value in use calculation with reference to a
valuation performed by Moore Transaction Services Limited
("Moore"”), an independent professionally qualified valuer.

Bisu Technology Group International Limited HZERHE 4 [H 5 F5 A5 BR A

16. B& (&)

AEBEHMRESESCE N ZRENR
=

B 7 1A e 5 AL R P S B IR R )
WEBEF ST » Hibit =%
— R R R R E R
BEFHELEEEmKELEE - KHE
PEIMEY R P T AT I
MESHEH (EREHREIWZESA
A AEHEAT) DA Mg P {1k JE 7 () 5 & - AR
PR S E M ER R P WEE o
Hep—ARESHRELEFS (A
RERANRHEARA R > [JERBA )
B A O R HEAT > M AL A R AN
GE o I > FEFFCOVID-19 8815 1 H %
YEAR T AH R SO -

AR A > FERH B ET R
5 IRAR HE AT AS 44781 - L IRER Y
HEHANEELT T HEERMAMHE - A&
S5 18 M AT RS ALV ER B 0 R AR B AR
FHEI SRR R o N E P IRIE R
AR > I ECOVID-19 1 1Y i &
RO KR I TR R 0 Bl M ST B A
DEER o A R BRI
hEm > LR EALE W RETE A 1R
BB A AR > BEeT B HH
15 B A AL VR A B M SE T T B o

B Bl EHREGOR F X
ENH = HETRE A ([ ZF
TR HATEAL ) o MR il R
FBF I AR B 4 A B Y R SRR
BEE) B E TS AR B P 3~ MRS IR A
(TR H BB B 2 ) 43 Bl e 58 0k (H
JEi1816,338,000% 70 (& — JLAF ¢
275,821,000 7C) }28,416,000# 7T
(ZFE—JUAE - #8) o JERGIR T R
FAE B (ERTE 2 PR S E S I
Pl 4t HlF 2 L W HESEBMEHE
fiiMoore Transaction Services Limited

(IMoore ]) AT HFEE I 1 i o
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16. GOODWILL (Continued)
Impairment test of the Automotive Engines CGU
(Continued)
The following describes each key assumption on which
management has based, to undertake impairment testing of
Automotive Engines Assets:

(a)

(b)

(@

(d)

the cash flow projections from 1 July 2020 to 30
June 2025 (the “Forecast Period”) on management
expectation of future business performance and
prospects of the Automotive Engines CGU,;

since only the restructuring on BAIC Yinxiang
is making progress, the uncertainty about the
resumption of the operations of other Automotive
Engines Business Customers is very high. It is therefore
assumed only BAIC Yinxiang can resume its operations
during the Forecast Period. Therefore, only potential
cashflow from the purchase plan of BAIC Yinxiang
is considered in the projected cashflow during the
Forecast Period;

given the restructuring of BAIC Yinxiang is still in
progress, it is assumed BAIC Yinxiang can only resume
its operations and execute its purchasing plan from
2021 onwards;

downward adjustments of 77% on the quantity from
the purchasing plan of BAIC Yinxiang were made by
the management considering the historical difference
between the actual purchase from BAIC Yinxiang and
the past purchase plans, the uncertainty of the success
of the restructuring as well as the potential impact
from the possible new engines production line to be
injected into BAIC Yinxiang. The forecasted revenue
was estimated at approximately HK$463,465,000
during Forecast Period,

IR MIEE

31 December 2020
e ES

2

16. BE& (&)
PERBRRSELEN ZRER
= (&)

T SO A A P AT IR B
5 (L T s e T AR 7 ) 25 T 2 BB

Annual Report 2020 % " EAEAER

R 95 78 3 g VR B B A B e
A B R AR SE TS 3R BRI S
HMABNE —F _F4ELH—
HEZZZHFESNA=1H(H
HIHAR 1) A B 00

F R L SR M IE e AT E A
A A 3 ) M S R S AR
BHEAFAERRAHENE - HI
R BB A A R T TR 40 ] K
BEE - HL > RN >
AL R St ) 2 VA B
B ATHB R E

BRI ETEA - K
R A PR T s 4
PRARAR NI AT HL R R T )

B A 8 AL IR B B PR R
I BEL A0 1 R T ) ) R S 2
AR B B A e RE DA &% T g
TE A L PR R 04 5 9% B M Ak A
AR A WOVETE R B > B ERAR
AR H MR T HT7% -
T T 0 T 8 FEL B WS A A6 2
463,465,000 7T 5
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16. GOODWILL (Continued)
Impairment test of the Automotive Engines CGU
(Continued)

192

(e)

(f)

(9

the net (loss)/profit margin of (12.7%) to 1.6%
throughout the Forecast Period were estimated
by the management based on the historical gross
profit margin and fixed overheads with downward
adjustments considering higher marketing expenses
in the future. The forecasted loss of each period
ranges from net loss of HK$8,081,000 to net profit of
HK$1,937,000 during Forecast Period;

the pre-tax discount rate of 20.29% are used with
reference to the current market data for relevant
industry and comparable companies; and

the growth rate beyond 2024 was 2.5% which did
not exceed the long-term average growth rate of the
industry and the economy.

The significant changes of the inputs and assumptions
used in the 2020 Interim Valuation from those previously
adopted in 2019 is the downward adjustment from the
purchase plan of BAIC Yinxiang increased from 70% in
2019 to 77% in 2020 due to the increased uncertainty of
the future orders for BAIC Yinxiang given the possible new
production line to be injected.
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16. B& (&)
FERBRRTELEEM ZRER
= (#)

(e)

(f)

(9)

TE AT (EsE) i R =R
(12.7%) & 1.6% & M g R 15
JRE 50 T R 288 % [ 5 4% H P Bl S
b wt > 3% R 2] H A& 2 8 B
SR T AE R ER o A TE
] 1 5 10 1) 70 00 s 48 A T s 18
408,081,000 ¥k JG 2 ¥ A1 7 %
1,937,000 G 5

4622 AR BE AT 26 B n] B LN ]
B A T 3G BOIE AR SR 1 20.29%
MIBLHTEEBLR 5 &

CERCOMERMMERR
2.5% » R A U117 3 B A IR
WP R -

T AR R A B R G e A
B 2 AR B SR Y . — JLAF P R
AP 1A EOR S ) 5 L IRAR ARG BR B R
BT A E— LR 70% 1 n
BEORTREMNTT% > TR REE
B 3HT A E ARA L IR H AR AT B0
ANTHEE VEHE N o
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16. GOODWILL (Continued)

Impairment test of the Automotive Engines CGU
(Continued)

The recoverable amount of the Automotive Engines CGU
from the impairment assessment using the above key
assumptions against the carrying amount of the Automotive
Engines CGU as at 31 December 2020 and 2019 are

IR MIEE

31 December 2020
“FoFEFA=tH

16. & (&)

FAERBMRRESELEEN ZEER
= ()

REBZRERE-NFET A=
+—H > RE BB B A AR
Al ] 4 AE (PR bl 3 EAR AR
BRGS0 B S B &

analysed below: AR B I BRI A
2020 2019
—ECEF —E U
HK$'000 HK$’ 000
FERT T
Recoverable amount of Automotive MR AL EAT 1 IR B R B
Engines CGU per valuation REmEERMZ
AT i [7] < R — 48,000
Carrying amount of the Automotive TRE BRI M B < 7 A B AL
Engines CGU: Z WRTHE
Property, plant and equipment W ~ s KM — 31,443
Goodwill [l — 16,557
— 48,000
Headroom Available A 22 [ — —

Based on the impairment assessment, the Board estimated
that the automotive engines business customers
would generate to the Group an aggregate revenue
of HK$463,465,000 during the Forecast Period and
an aggregate net loss before any impairment loss of
Automotive Engines Assets of HK$16,762,000 during the
Forecast Period. Accordingly, full provision for impairment
of the Group’s Automotive Engines Assets were made as at
31 December 2020.

R 8 W (E FEAG - g A FH R
BB SE BT % P % TE T 4 R AR
5] 7457 2fe 48k A 463,465,000 JC -
A T A [ 49 Al A s 1R AR R FT L
TR B B AR A AT T e S 1R
16,762,000 70 « B » R F-F
FH A=A AREEREES
16 TR (B L R HR R A A o
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17. INTANGIBLE ASSETS . BIEEE
Customer
contracts
gﬁ = II’J
HK$'000
FHBxT
At 31 December 2020 R-ZE-_ZEHF+=-HA=+—H
Cost AR 698,697
Accumulated amortisation and impairment TSN K E (698,697)
Net carrying amount R T 4 (L —
31 December 2019 —E-NE+=ZHA=+—H
Net carrying amount: MR T PR E
At 1 January 2019 N_F—NE—-H—H 88,618
Amortisation provided during the year (note 8) RN T B RS (B 3E8) (1,236)
Impairment during the year N EE (88,042)
Exchange realignment [FEE 53, ) & 660
At 31 December 2019 WN_F—-NEF+_A=1+—H —
At 31 December 2019 RoFE—NFET+ A =+—H
Cost JEA 658,096
Accumulated amortisation and impairment ELGT B SO (E (658,096)
Net carrying amount H T VR —

Customer contracts represent certain automotive engine
sales framework agreements (the “Automotive Engine Sales
Framework Agreements”) entered into by Well Surplus
Enterprises Limited and its subsidiaries (the “Automotive
Engines Group”) in 2015 and pursuant to which the related
customers agreed to procure pre-agreed quantities of
engines from the Automotive Engines Group from 2016
to 2020. In February 2018, the Automotive Engines Group
entered into certain supplemental Automotive Engine Sales
Framework Agreements (the “Supplemental Agreements”)
with the related customers, pursuant to which the customer
contract period was extended to 2022, and the pre-
agreed quantities of engines were adjusted based on the
customers’ latest production needs. The customer contracts
are amortised to profit or loss under the unit of production
method over the relevant contract period.

194  Bisu Technology Group International Limited kb ZURk % 42 [ 15 B A7 FR 23
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Notes to Financial Statements

INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Continued)

The recoverable amounts of the intangible assets were
determined based on value in use calculation using cashflow
projections of financial budgets covering to the customer
contract period of the Automotive Engines Agreements and
Supplemental Agreements extended to 2022 approved by
management.

For the year ended 31 December 2019, an impairment loss
of HK$88,042,000 was recognised and the full carrying
amount of the intangible assets was impaired and provided
as at 31 December 2019.

In view of the same reasons as disclosed in note 16 to
the financial statements above, the Board assessed the
impairment loss on the intangible assets, which were
essentially the value of the automotive engine sales
framework agreement and the supplemental agreements
with the automotive engines business customers
which would expire in 2022. By applying the same key
assumptions as the impairment test of the goodwill which
detailed in note 16 to the financial statements, the present
value of the estimated free cash flow arising from the sales
to the automotive engines business customers from 2020 to
2022 was extracted from the valuation report prepared by
Moore to determine the impairment loss on the intangible
assets. Since the present value extracted was negative,
management consider there is no recoverable amount
from the intangible assets and a full impairment loss was
provided.

IR MIEE

31 December 2020
LR A -+—H

BEE (&)
ﬁiﬂ%ﬁ?ﬂﬁ_ﬁlﬁlﬂ%%ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ“‘é‘ﬂ
JiE - 4 38R 25 9 3 8 A4 B Al T T
W (ERE R ) BFGHIN
IO IR T AR A B 4 U R R R )
B {H 2 BEBRE ] 7B o o

BELZ—-NFE+_HA=+—HILF
FE o CRERR I (E G 1E 25 88,042,000 #5
TTHR ZZF—NWF+A=+—H&
TV & 7 Y R T (2 BB W (ELE R4 -

B b SCBAHS H R M 5 16 Bl B Y AR
] B R > S w4 R Y e (E
BEiE > W EE R EE AR
% i B E R e R B YRR o A S
BRI & F R
T e A (B o 4 4R R P B B 5 i 3 Y
E 16 HHFE I A P 2 e (E T A ] ) B
BB B F _FERE F T
PHEE TR SR ET R P WG B
H B 45 U i 1 BB 4 9 Bk Moore £
i 28 S TE 6 U e 4R T A Y A A
W o ORI BLE S B B
i 5 2y Y A T i e R > IR
RAFREER -
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18. INVENTORIES 18. 78
2020 2019
i —E-E
HK$'000 HK$" 000
FET THs T
Raw materials JEM R — 6,581
Finished goods Bl — 3,314
— 9,895
19. CONTRACT ASSETS 19. BREE
31 December 31 December
2020 2019
gt 223 —F-EF
+=—A=+—H +ZH=+—H
HK$'000 HK$"000
FET THTT
Contract assets arising from: HE TSI G HEE
Construction services ok R 8,905 4,006
Civil engineering services o N I & 81,961 56,718
90,866 60,724
Impairment WAE (145) (101)
90,721 60,623
The excess of cumulative revenue recognised in profit AR 2 TP RR A B T A R AR
or loss over the cumulative billings for construction or ARG Rt IR R LG
civil engineering services are recognised as contract HEE - RN EATRRBEEHE
assets. Included in contract assets for construction or A E RS o fFR P
civil engineering services are retention receivables. Upon S ARTRRBEWNE > HERAEAH
completion of construction or civil engineering work BEEMNSHEEN T EEBBRUER - =
and acceptance by customer, the amounts recognised B RN G A E R IN T i ik A
as contract assets are reclassified to accounts receivable. KEE K AR TR FFES 4L
The increase in contract assets in 2020 was the result of RIGmms - XAEHBEEF KLY
increase in ongoing contract work for both construction A0 K T A5 B0 IR B 2% i B S R B
and civil engineering services at the end of the years. The 20 °
Group's trading terms and credit policy with customers are
disclosed in note 20 to the financial statements.
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19. CONTRACT ASSETS (Continued)

The expected timing of recovery or settlement for contract
assets as at 31 December is as follows:

1k

IR MIEE

31 December 2020
FEF A=+ H

#7#

Al%’.]ﬁg (II‘E)
WA=+ — BG4 & E K E
EAS AR BN R AT

2020 2019
—EDEF —E—JUE
HK$' 000 HK$’ 000
FHET T
Within one year — 4N 74,521 54,599
After one year — A% 16,200 6,024
Total contract assets MERERE 90,721 60,623
The movements in the loss allowance for impairment of BHEEMEEEBEES T
contract assets are as follows:
2020 2019
—ECEF —E U
HK$'000 HK$’ 000
FER Tt
At beginning of year A 101 413
Impairment/(reversal of impairment) WAk 1E 7 (BE
losses (note 8) fEHE ) (F5ES) 44 (312)
At end of year AR 145 101
An impairment analysis is performed at each reporting date A R F (0 P A R R AT U
using a provision matrix to measure expected credit losses. b iEt B EBE SR - 5tE S

The provision rates for the measurement of the expected
credit losses of the contract assets are based on those
of the accounts receivable as the contract assets and the
accounts receivable are from the same customer bases. The
provision rates of contract assets are based on days past
due of accounts receivable of various customer segments
with similar loss patterns (i.e., by geographical region,
customer type and rating). The calculation reflects the
probability-weighted outcome, the time value of money and
reasonable and supportable information that is available
at the reporting date about past events, current conditions
and forecasts of future economic conditions.

R TR 5 s 1H A 454 b R
T %S MWK > TR A K R
WK B AR F] % 5 R - SRV EE
f14 8% 45 b 24 )5 2 T FL A R AL s 1R A X
(RIS i st B I8 35K~ 70 5 R0 R TR
F1% 2% T 2 15 T 1) B W SR A O K W
TE o ant BB AR IRERT R - B
IR B R 7 i H 09 T A5 09 A BR) o 1

"B AR A T oA A0 A8 3 Ak A2 7 0 110
B K A] 5 R o
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19. CONTRACT ASSETS (Continued) 19. BHEE (&)
Set out below is the information about the credit risk I 30 Ao A A A R AR Y AR 4
exposure on the Group's contract assets using a provision HHEENGE SRR ER
matrix:
2020 2019
—B-BF —EIF
Expected credit loss rate TG B % 0.06%-41.87% 0.00%-4.85%
HK$' 000 HK$’ 000
FET T o
Gross carrying amount HE TH] AL 90,866 60,724
Expected credit losses TG B R 145 101
20. ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE 20. FEWARR
Accounts receivable represented receivables for contract JRE W B A A 40 LA I B B VR R )
work and sale of automotive engines. The payment T RE ISR K o & 40 L RE AR AR A
terms of contract work receivables are stipulated in the TR A R AL FFTH > hifEE
relevant contracts and the credit period is generally 30 Hl— M /530H o R B8RS B %
days. The payment terms for receivables arising from A IR A AT OB ME B R T
sales of automotive engines are mainly on credit and the MiAE S0 — A 90 H o B IR 2R
credit period is generally 90 days. The carrying amounts (B BN SUAE (AR o A 4R 8 36 f ek
of accounts receivable approximate to their fair values. R WS R A B A A AT SR A
The Group does not hold any collateral or other credit fhfE SR > BIEERRE -

enhancements over its accounts receivable balances and
they are non-interest bearing.

2020 2019

—EEHF ZE U

HK$' 000 HK$'000

TExT T T

Accounts receivable JRE Wi AR K 777,880 698,306
Impairment WAE (682,856) (491,100)
95,024 207,206
In view of the aforementioned and the fact that the Group's S |l A T R A 4B ] 2 iR R L
accounts receivable relate to a few number of major Dk EEEFME > WEAEE
customers, there is concentration of credit risk and further AT A o HE— A EEIE R B R MY

details are discussed in note 41 to the financial statements. B
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20. ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE (Continued) 20. BUWERR (&)
The ageing analysis of the accounts receivable as at the end AR AR > B R A R B A A
of the reporting period, based on the invoice or delivery A K 5 s 48 1 4 1% 2 BRI 2 A n
date and net of loss allowance, is as follows: T
2020 2019
—B-%F —F—h0EF
HK$'000 HK$" 000
THERT AR
Within 3 months @A N 51,035 32,218
4 to 6 months (DX 2,485 117
Over 6 months NEA L E 41,504 174,871
95,024 207,206
The movements in the loss allowance for impairment of JFRE WS B i (L e TR T M S B 4 T

accounts receivable are as follows:

2020 2019

—E-EHF TR

HK$'000 HK$" 000

FEx T T

At beginning of year TRAEY]) 491,100 144,452
Impairment losses (note 8) WAHK IR (FEE8) 152,914 349,156
Exchange realignment iEE b, 5 4 38,842 (2,508)
At end of year AR 682,856 491,100
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20.

200

ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE (Continued)
Impairment

An impairment analysis is performed at each reporting date
using a provision matrix to measure expected credit losses
on remaining accounts receivable. The Group determines
the provision for expected credit losses by grouping
together accounts receivable with similar credit risk
characteristics and collectively assessing them for likelihood
of recovery, taking into account prevailing economic
conditions.

Set out below is the information about the credit risk
exposure on the Group’s accounts receivable using a
provision matrix:

20. FEWARRR (&)
i {E
TP A5 S S D 485 A R e o A 9
AT > DLEH R B R OR 3k 2 RS
B - B ENGEEER > A%
V] 22 1R [ 194 £ 6 JRL e e R WA
o A K 75 e H AT AS I L > SR EE AT
fiti e 181 9 W] REE

T SCH AT A R G A A
A AR A 5 g L

Past due
A
Current 1-3 months Over 3 months Total
BN —Z=f@A Z@EANL st
2020 b g 2:3
Expected credit losses rate HIE SRR 1.5% 5.8% 94.0% 87.8%
HK$' 000 HK$' 000 HK$' 000 HK$' 000
FH7 FiH FH7 Fi#
Gross carrying amount i T A4 (. 50,401 1,528 725,951 777,880
Expected credit losses HIE HE R 735 88 682,033 682,856
2019 —B-NF
Expected credit losses rate HGE BRERR 0.6% 0.0% 73.7% 70.3%
HK$' 000 HK$'000 HK$' 000 HK$'000
TH#T THT T T
Gross carrying amount TR 4 32,236 117 665,953 698,306
Expected credit losses HfE SR 18 — 491,082 491,100
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20. ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE (Continued)

Set out below is the information about the credit risk
exposure on the Group's accounts receivable by business
segments:

Civil Engineering &

IR MIEE

31 December 2020
SECEREF A =+—H

. FRWRRR ()

SO A S 2 w23 B A S T R
WM (s LB Y R -

Construction Automotive Engines Total

IRIBREE REREH aE
2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
TR T TR T TR T
Gross amount FiX 54,389 33,125 723,491 665,181 777,880 698,306
Impairment W (810) (18)  (682,046)  (491,082)  (682,856)  (491,100)
53,579 33,107 41,445 174,099 95,024 207,206

The Group engaged Moore to perform an independent
assessment report to provide references to the Group
for the assessment of expected credit loss of accounts
receivable for the Company in accordance to HKFRS 9.

Concerning the civil engineering and construction segment,
since the customers were mainly institutions related with
the Hong Kong Government, public companies or associates
of public companies, large and private organisation,
Moore has obtained or estimated their relevant credit
ratings and determined the relevant default and recovery
rates according to historical statistics. The Group has also
considered possible changes in the macro economy and
other factors which may result in different default behavior
and credit risks of the debtors as compared to its historical
performance. Based on the available information as of
the time, it was not expected there could be a significant
changes in the credit of the customers in this segment.

A4 &I Moore i 4T M8 3L 5T 5 )
o TS A B AR R A s B S A A )

55 995 FE AN AR 40 ) U R R TE S
B RELE2% -

BN TR TR R 2 86 - it
&P By B s BUN AT B H A
EiAFs B AR MBE AL - K
R K FL AR > R Moore S 45 8 A
w0 S5 R BEAS PSR AR > I AR 4 JRE S 4
TR 8 A R B Y A R R [E] i e
AL M IR R T R BRI R e s B
R R > B E R RBIA L > 3%
b n] BEEBURE B A BT S K
Tj%fﬂf&zﬁﬁ)fﬁlﬂ o AR I A IR 2
ER o MR EFERAS
BwEEREL -
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x

20.

202

B+ A=t —H

ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE (Continued)
Concerning the Automotive Engines segment, the full
resumption of production of the automotive engines
business customers encountered further delay since 2019
due to the shortage in supply due to the suppliers’ concern
on the payment ability of the automotive engines business
customers. The automotive engines business customers
need to undergo further financial and operational
restructuring to address the suppliers’ concern but such
restructuring is still in progress. Based on discussion
with the automotive engines business customers, as of
the reporting date, only the restructuring of one of the
automotive engines business customers, BAIC Yinxiang is
making progress but the result of the restructuring is still
uncertain. Moreover, it is expected the COVID-19 outbreak
will further delay the restructuring negotiation and
progress.

For the year ended 31 December 2020, the resumption
progress of the key automotive engines business customers
remained un-promising. The restructuring of BAIC Yinxiang
is still in progress and the result remained uncertain. The
resumption target, plan or schedule of BAIC Yinxiang
remained unknown to the Group. Considering the above
factors, default rate of 100% (2019: 100%) was assigned
to all automotive engines business customer. Moreover,
due to slimmer chance of recovery after another year of
slow restructuring progress, relevant recovery rates of
10% (2019: 38.1%) or 1% (2019: 12.5%), were assigned
to BAIC Yinxiang and other automotive engines business
customers respectively.

Bisu Technology Group International Limited Lg% 4 [ B A BR /A ]

20. BWARR (&)

B VR LB B A S A B ol AL R
B BLERME SR EEERELR
FHZfteeh > A-F—LFER > K
BT KT A AR A T MK AE
A o REBEIEER R & BB
e — b A S A A (MR AL e
HEAT) DARR YL RE R 195 & o AR
HEg > RIEEREEHEEREFN
wem o BEHAB—REBEHEERE
FACRSR AR A IE A T - HEEA
AR HEE - MAh > TEEFCOVID-19
1V 314 P B SiE A% A RH O -

#HE - -THE+_A=+—HIL*¥F
o FERHEBEFHREREF WIKE
HE AT R4 o JbTR SR AL TE
AT HERIAEE - AEH KA
RV AR B EE ~ w81 sl R
2k o Bt Al - BT AT A IRE
BEREBEFNELEH100% (—
T— LA 1 100%) ° LAk > HR A4
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21. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER 21. FANEIE - RE R H iR
RECEIVABLES

2020 2019

—E-EF ZE—JUE

HK$' 000 HK$ 000

THET Tt

Prepayments TEAT #IA 4,219 1,203

Deposits and other receivables i 4z I FAth FEWSUR 13,709 43,462

17,928 44,665
The financial assets included in the above balances relate to bl A R A A Y A TR A T BT ST
receivables for which there was no recent history of default A IR 4840 B i U W R 5k ) B WS R AT
and past due amounts. As at 31 December 2020 and 2019, 77 NI e 3 O Qe Sy 1 iy
the loss allowance was assessed to be minimal. A=1—H > EHEBMEFEA AT

HB -
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22.

204

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

22. RERBEEEY

2020 2019

= —ZF—hAF

HK$'000 HK$ 000

FET RV

Cash and bank balances 4 BRAT 45 B 49,749 64,777

Included in cash and bank balances of HK$1,057,000 was
being frozen by banks in the PRC due to pending lawsuits.

At the end of the reporting period, the cash and bank
balances of the Group denominated in RMB amounted to
HK$1,596,000 (2019: HK$1,568,000). The RMB is not freely
convertible into other currencies, however, under PRC's
Foreign Exchange Control Regulations and Administration
of Settlement, Sale and Payment of Foreign Exchange
Regulations, the Group is permitted to exchange RMB for
other currencies through banks authorised to conduct
foreign exchange business.

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on daily
bank deposit rates.

Bisu Technology Group International Limited Lg% 4 [ B A BR /A ]

B4 B SRAT &5 B AL 48 IR 2R R 5 s
B4R AT B 45 691,057,000 4% 7C o

A R > AL REHER
B4 MERAT 45 BR%E 1,596,000 T (—
F—JL4F 1,568,000 50) - NRHKE
RAG B SR 5 HoAh B o AR R
B A RE A4S RAG ) Re C &5 B ~ 5 REE I
A A BAR 2 ) > AR IS M IR
TEHEAT SN HE L5 19 SR AT A% A R S 3
L H AW -
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23. ACCOUNTS PAYABLE 23. BNERX
An ageing analysis of the accounts payable as at the end B 2 4% 5 5 H O A i R R AT
of each reporting period, based on the invoice date, is as HR K Z R4 43 BT
follows:
2020 2019
i —F A
HK$'000 HK$' 000
FTHERT THIT
Within 3 months =fE AR 43,205 47,144
4 to 6 months Ut VAN (DE| 213 359
Over 6 months S E A 297,020 265,797
340,438 313,300
At 31 December 2020, retentions payable included in W_Ez _FEE+_HA=+—H -
accounts payable amounted to HK$7,617,000 (2019: JE ASH B 3k b AL Y RE AT IR B SR IE
HK$8,444,000) and were normally settled on terms ranging F57,617,000¥ 0 (. F— JL4 -
from two to three years. The carrying amounts of accounts 8,444,000 7C) » — AT M £ =4
payable approximate to their fair values. TN 5T o AT R K 1% B T BEL L Ao
EEMA -
Accounts payable are non-interest-bearing and are normally JEAMTER R B Gt FE > — A T7E
settled on terms ranging from 7 to 120 days. The payment 120 H &S o SOAMGEFOR A B & 4
terms are stipulated in the relevant contracts. HIETH o
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24. OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS

206

24, HtENRRAREA

2020 2019
= —ZF—hAF
HK$'000 HK$ 000
FExT Fisoc

Accruals of costs for contract work & TFERLARY
A 42,979 27,743
Other payables At FRE A5 3R 19,424 15,803
Accruals HiEE M 17,983 12,140
Due to a holding company JREAST — [H] 48 1 2 ] O 32,900 19,440
Due to a controlling shareholder JREAST — 42 48 % % AR R 16,781 10,312
130,067 85,438

Represented by: & -

— non-current liabilities — i E) A 43,224 29,752
— current liabilities — BB 86,843 55,686
130,067 85,438

The carrying amounts of other payables and accruals
approximate to their fair values.

Notes:

(a)

(b)

(@)

Other payables are non-interest-bearing and are expected to
be settled within one year.

Included in other payable is interest payable of HK$7,249,000
(2019: HK$3,459,000) to a related company, which is
controlled by Mr. Jiang Jianhui, a controlling shareholder of
the Company.

The amount due to a holding company is unsecured, interest-
free and repayable from 2021 to 2023.

The amount due to a controlling shareholder included the
loan amount of HK$16,738,000 (2019: HK$10,288,000)
and interest payables of HK$43,000 (2019: HK$24,000).
Except for the amount due to a controlling shareholder of
HK$4,300,000 are unsecured, bear interest at a rate of 1%
and repayable from 2021 to 2022, the remaining balance is
unsecured, interest-free and repayable from 2021 to 2023.

Bisu Technology Group International Limited Lg% 4 [ B A BR /A ]

o

B 5L
(a)

(b)

At BB A 3 B T 2 2 D 0 i e i B G
FABEAA

oAt A BROR T B B TE R — 4R
WAL o

A A 3B A5 TE AT — [ BE 6 A A
ZHME7,249,000% 0 (—F—J
4 1 3,459,000 00) - #% B A
P A2 ) P R 2% S S AR o o

AR — [T 42 Fe 2 1 3R IH y KA
RRBERARF_—HFE_ER =
A -

16,738,000 0 (—F—JL
10,288,000 5t) K& FEff F &
43,0000 (=& —JU4FE 1 24,000
W50 ) o B ME AT — 4% 45 I A% SR 3K I
4,300,000 #k T & EHCHF ~ $5 6] K
1% 5B RAR _F Z— 8 ZF
TURAEEAN > BRR &Y R 5 JEHCET
RE KA - —FE =
HEAE IR o



25. INTEREST-BEARING BANK AND OTHER

Notes to Financial Statements

P AR BT RE

31 December 2020
CECFEFTH=+—H

25. sFESRITREMER

BORROWINGS
2020 2019
== RN
Contractual Contractual
interest interest
rate (%) rate (%)
per annum Maturity HK$" 000 per annum Maturity HKS' 000
AHERZ ELIERIES
(%) 348 TiEn (%) HMA T
Current i)
Bank loan - unsecured T E - N/A N/A N/A HIBOR 2020 4,080
ki ek TER  +175%t025%  ZFCEE
FRITHERE
+1.75%£2.5%
Other loans - unsecured HE 3 - 10% 2021 1,500 10%-12% 2020 53,900
“BC-f e Sme <2
Other loans - unsecured L& - 10%-12%  on demand 36,500% N/A N/A N/A
EEZREE N AR R
38,000 57,980
Non-current Fiid
Other loans - unsecured A - 5% 2023 6,000 N/A N/A N/A
Z§CZE AR AR Nl

44,000 57,980
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25.

208

INTEREST-BEARING BANK AND OTHER 25. sFERITRHEMMER (&
BORROWINGS (Continued)
2020 2019
—ECEF ey KD
RMB'000 RMB’ 000
ARET R UNEY S ETH
Analysed into: M By
Bank loan: SRATHK
Within one year or on demand *EWE@?EWE@%*T%% - 4,080
Other borrowings: HAtfE
Within one year or on demand — 4 A Bl SR R 38,000 53,900
In the second year AR 6,000 -
44,000 53,900
44,000 57,980

e Included in other loan is loan of HK$31,500,000 (2019:
HK$31,500,000) from a related company, which is controlled
a controlling shareholder of the

by Mr. Jiang Jianhui,
Company.

Notes:

(@) A corporate guarantee was given by the Company for the
outstanding balance of bank loans of HK$4,080,000 as at 31

December 2019.

(b)  All borrowings are in Hong Kong dollars.

Bisu Technology Group International Limited FLERH % 45 B [ B A5 BR A

G

o

(a)

(b)

Hoh B 3k w52 3 — W BB A w2
331,500,000 50 (~F—JL4 ¢
31,500,000 70) » 7% BHW A 7] B A%
A P B 2 R S o

AATFBKZE —JLEH A
+— H MR R R AT B R
4,080,000 #k T4 it %%ﬁéo

F)fﬁ{a T)\U%ﬁ%‘[’ﬁ °
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26. CONVERTIBLE BONDS 26. ATRARES
The convertible bonds recognised in the consolidated T G B 55 TR L 2R i R ) T R I A 2
statement of financial position are bifurcated into two R w4 A AR R A o 4 R A
components for accounting purposes, namely the liability AR S 2 T4 > T R% AE AR A R
component and the equity component, and the movements WS AR I
in these components during the reporting period are as
follows:
Liability Equity
component component Total
BEHD BRI @ct
HK$'000 HK$' 000 HK$'000
T THIT THIT
At 1 January 2019 R_F—NE—H—H 352,411 375,576 727,987
Interest expense (note 7) AL B (BiEE7) 33,922 = 33,922
At 31 December 2019 and R _F— L
1 January 2020 TZA=Z+— &
TR 386,333 375,576 761,909
Interest expense (note 7) BB 32 ( Kﬁu}J 30,029 — 30,029
(Gain)/loss on extinguishment of RS AMMEME S 2 (Metk) /
convertible bonds, net (note 6)  JEHEFE (Kik6) (302,173) 8,461 (293,712)
At 31 December 2020 W T T
+ZA =40 114,189 384,037 498,226
The details of the outstanding principal amount of the B R R v R S AR SRR
convertible bonds is as follows: W
HK$" 000
THE T
At 1 January 2019, 31 December 2019, N_F—NFE—-H—H -
1 January 2020 and 31 December 2020 “F-NEHZHA=F—H
TECRIE-A—HK
“EFFFE+"H=1+—H 390,000
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CONVERTIBLE BONDS (Continued)

On 4 February 2016, the Company issued zero coupon
convertible bonds with an aggregate principal amount
of HK$390,000,000 to Power Expert as part of the
consideration for the acquisition of Automotive Engines
Business. The maturity date of the convertible bonds is
on the second anniversary of the date of issuance (i.e. 4
February 2018). The convertible bonds bear no interest on
the principal amount. No security or guarantee is granted
in respect of the convertible bonds. The convertible bonds
can be converted into 195,000,000 ordinary shares in the
Company at the initial conversion price of HK$2.00 per
conversion share (subject to adjustment pursuant to the
terms of the convertible bonds). The Company may at any
time before the maturity date by written notice redeem the
convertible bonds at 100% of the principal amount. Any
amount of the convertible bonds which is redeemed by the
Company will forthwith be cancelled.

On 13 March 2018, the Company has executed the
extension of the maturity date of the convertible bonds
for 2 years from 4 February 2018 to 4 February 2020.
On 8 November 2019, the Company and the then holder
of the convertible bonds, Power Expert, entered into an
amendment agreement, pursuant to which (i) the maturity
date of the convertible bonds shall be extended for 5
years to 4 February 2025. This proposed amendment took
effect on 14 January 2020 (“CB Extension”). As a result
of CB Extension, the liability and equity component was
extinguished by a gain of HK$302,173,000 and loss of
HK$8,461,000 respectively based on revaluation upon the
date of execution, i.e. 14 January 2020. The revaluation
was carried out by Moore. On the other hand, the carrying
amount has been charged with imputed interest.

Bisu Technology Group International Limited HZERHE 4 [H 5 F5 A5 BR A

26. Tﬁﬁﬁ#@g)

)3’\ —NETAMAE > AN IS

Iﬂﬂe%ﬁ T4 #1455 390,000,000
«%mm? BT &% - DAE 2 I
TR B O A SE TS B AR A AR o AT R
BN A B3 4T B 80058 — R
EH (B F—/FE_HAMH) - Al #
JE A 5 ) AR 2 BRI AN FH S, o A Sk wT
e 55 75 152 4R B R o AT R I A
I3 0] F5 ) 2 A g P 4 B 47 2.00
W on (8 7 AR I8 nT 46 B 65 25 1 1
) SR AR F R 195,000,000 B
W o AR A AR H AT RE RS
T 4 N 4 AR B BN 100 % i | W
JEAE S5 o AN ) T B [m] () A Ao ] 46 i
& a B T R B8 -

RAF-NFE=ZA+=H ARFEH
AR EE BB h = N\ FE
AMWHERWMEE T -FHE AN

HeRZF—NNF+—H/NH » B
) B IRF AT 4 B R 75 4 A N T AR BR BK
FIAERT Wk o BRI > () AT (RS
MEI A H R RS E —F A4
HAWWH - @& EiTh % =% @—
H 10 A AR (Al E 55 i = )
A AT A 5 1 R *Eﬁ%%‘%ja/ﬂ;ﬁ
(= ZFFE—-H+TUH) ZHH
B > B BORE & 300 23 Al 5 8 i 2
302,173,000%%&%@@&461,000%
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26. CONVERTIBLE BONDS (Continued)

On 3 February 2020, the Company received a duly-executed
transfer notice from Power Expert notifying the Company
that Power Expert has agreed to transfer the convertible
bonds to LE Group Holdings Pte. Ltd. (“"LEGH"). The
Company has given its consent on the transfer and issued
new certificates of the convertible bonds to LEGH.

On 7 October 2020, the Company received a transfer notice
from LEGH notifying the Company that LEGH has agreed to
transfer the convertible bonds back to Power Expert. The
Company has given its consent on the transfer and issued
new certificates of the convertible bonds to Power Expert.

As at 31 December 2020, the convertible bonds had a
carrying amount of HK$498,226,000 (31 December 2019:
HK$761,909,000), in which HK$384,037,000 (31 December
2019: HK$375,576,000) was recognised as equity and
HK$114,189,000 was recognised as non-current liabilities (31
December 2019: HK$386,333,000 was recognised as current
liabilities).

At 31 December 2019 and 2020, no convertible bonds
were converted and the outstanding principal amount of
the convertible bonds was HK$390,000,000.

Subsequent to the reporting period on 19 March 2021,
Power Expert issued a conversion notice to the Company
in respect of the exercise of the conversion rights attached
to the convertible bonds to the extent of HK$40,000,000
and accordingly request the Company to issue 20,000,000
conversion shares of the Company. As all conditions for
the conversion which were stipulated in the terms of the
convertible bonds were fulfilled, the Company has given
its consent on the conversion, and will issue 20,000,000
conversion shares to Power Expert. On 26 March 2021, the
partial conversion of the convertible bonds has completed,
and 20,000,000 conversion shares has been issued and
allotted to Power Expert.

IR MIEE

31 December 2020
e Y

26. ARRES (&)

AR CTBETHZH > AAARTY
REBR BR B 2 5 A5 57 (W d g i > S
& AN W 75 R BR R B[R] 2K AT 4 A
T LE Group Holdings Pte. Ltd.
(TLEGH ) o AR E[Fl S fIE
S 2 84T BT AR 25 B w8 5 T LEGH ©

WoEEFELH LR RAFAR
LEGH Wi 3 48 58 58 50 > 1 & A A A
LEGH % [F] 75 1 mT 46 B 0 5 s 1] 17 B BR
Bk o ANFCFSHEERIE IO
Tl (R S s 3 T IS REBR Bk -

W oF_FEE+_HAH=+—H >
A AR IR BRI /5 498,226,000
B (ZEF—NLFE+ZH=Z+—
H:761,909,000#7c) » Hh
384,037,000 ¢ (—FE—JL4E+ A
=+—H :375,576,000%: 0) 2
B HERE B 114,189,000 #k ST 78 5 Ik
nEEE (CEF - NFE+H=1—
H : 386,333,000 CHERE BB &
f&) o

b St Jat X Ry
S b T R
Ko T 0 0 2% 0 o 0 A G B
390,000,000 % 7T °

ERE S R E—FE=H T
H > I5REERBR ¥ 17 8140,000,000 %
G ] $Hi 5 1 2 I T 194 48k s A 1) A< 2 ]
B R A R B R AR BT
20,000,000 B4 A w4 e 4y - H
A AT 4 1A 5 Bk b BT BT B Y 4 1Y
AT R > AN A O
> NG5 ) I RE BR PR ¥£4720,000,000
MMy « A —F ——4E=H
TRH - B EGRARIRESRC
SER - H O] 3 A8 BR Bk 8 AT A P 8
20,000,000 B4 B B A7y
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PROMISSORY NOTES 27. HRE
2020 2019
—EZEHF ZE—IUFE
HK$'000 HK$" 000
FET THIT
First Note B 123,200 235,372
Second Note By 166,683 318,613
289,883 553,985
Carrying amount at 31 December WA= —HIRE(E
Analysis into: Ao~
Current portion B &R 43 18,564 553,985
Non-current portion FE B350 4y 271,319 =
289,883 553,985

On 4 February 2016, the Company issued two promissory
notes with face values of HK$174,250,000 (the “First
Note”) and HK$235,750,000 (the “Second Note"”) in
favour of Power Expert as part of the consideration for the
acquisition of Automotive Engines Business. Both the First
Note and Second Note carry interest at a rate of 10% per
annum. The outstanding principal amounts plus any accrued
interest will be repayable on the maturity date falling on
the second anniversary of the date of the First Note and
Second Note, i.e. 4 February 2018.

On 31 December 2017, the Company has extended the
maturity date of the First Note and Second Note for 2 years
from 4 February 2018 to 4 February 2020 and the interest
rate was adjusted downwards from 10% to 8% per annum,
all accrued and outstanding interest shall be repaid on the
extended maturity date of 4 February 2020.

Bisu Technology Group International Limited Lg% 4 [ B A BR /A ]

RFE—NEZAMH > AN M
REBR BREE AT W ib AR S0 2598 > T {E 4 A
£174,250,000% 0 ([ 5H— 24 )
}%235,750,000% 70 ([ 55 54 1) >
DA b i il o ) e S 1 S 44K
B o o — ZHYE K O T R M4 A A
10% wt/E o A AE 1 7 5 FUH [R] AT fu] 22
RS A ZEA B — R R R AR
WESEEH (M _F— N\E AN
H) B2 89 HfE#E -

WoFE—LEFH=1+—H &R
A O — RS R B A
HoF—/EHMHERHWAFEE
FORETAMHE > MEFMKREH
10% FHHEEE 8% » i A MEFT 3K IH K
W o £ 8 R BB R A
H 483 = 3 1 A % -
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27. PROMISSORY NOTES (Continued)

On 8 November 2019, the Company and Power Expert
entered into an amendment agreement, pursuant to
which the term of the promissory notes will be changed
to perpetual and the interest rate will be fixed at 5% per
annum with effect from 5 February 2020, payable annually
and the interest accrued on or before 4 February 2020
shall be payable on 4 February 2025 (“PN Extension”).
Further details are set out in the Company’s announcement
dated 8 November 2019 and the Company's circular
dated 19 December 2019. This proposed amendment took
effect on 14 January 2020. As a result of PN Extension,
the gain on modification of promissory notes amounted
to HK$294,577,000 (note 6) was recognised based on
revaluation upon the date of execution, i.e.
2020. The revaluation was carried out by Moore.

14 January

On 3 February 2020, the Company received an assignment
notice from Power Expert notifying the Company that
Power Expert has agreed to assign the promissory notes to
LE Group Holdings Pte. Ltd. ("LEGH"). The Company has
given its consent on the transfer and issued new certificates
of the promissory notes to LEGH.

On 12 October 2020, the Company received an assignment
notice from LEGH notifying the Company that LEGH has
agreed to assign the promissory notes back to Power
Expert. The Company has given its consent on the transfer
and issued new certificates of the promissory notes to
Power Expert.

As at 31 December 2020, the promissory notes had a
carrying amount of HK$271,319,000 (2019: Nil) and
HK$18,564,000 (2019: HK$553,985,000) recognised as
non-current liabilities and current liabilities, respectively.

27.

IR MIEE

31 December 2020

FZEt—A=t—H
EKRZRHE’ (IIIE)
A ZF—NE+T—H/NH » KA A R

TG REBRBR AT LB RT Wh ik - #R UL > 7KL
TR I PR A Bl Bk A > T E AR A
A R5% > HFZ _FHE_HAH
o BELAMA—K > AR F E
A WY H B A E A B A B RE R
THAETHMA ZM (TERRE Eﬁ
R o E—BFEEEI A AL H
B oF—FE+—ANBZ8HE A
ARIHBMR —F—LFE+=H+JUH
ZH o REHRBRIN F R
A HAER - R LEEER
*Eﬁ%ﬁiﬁﬁﬁ = =FFE—H+

) ZEHAEE - HERRAERT K LR
ﬁﬁzﬂﬁzﬁnzm 577,000 70 (FsE6) -
BZ Al T i Moore EfT o

/\:?#—{fﬁ A=H» KARRY
A BR BR R B MR A g AR A T
AE IR Bk O[] B A% 7K 50 S PR GE T LE

Group Holdings Pte. Ltd. ([LEGHJ) -

Z/NCIIRACINER L5 S R AR B

LSRR R TLEGH ©

WRoFZFEFETH+TZH AR
PELEGH Wi 2 s 38 48 1 > € A A
LEGH &[] & 7K b, 5% 48 0[] I5 fig B
e AAFCHHEEFIH WO
AT 7R S BB v T T I R BR K o

RoFEZREFTH=1—H - IR
fEtszm 319,000 70 (—F—JL4F :
48) }% 18,564,000 JC ( —F—JL4E
553,985,000%5 7t Y 7K 5, ZE 45 43 Fl e
RS IR E) AR S B B
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PROMISSORY NOTES (Continued)

Subsequent to the reporting period on 27 January 2021,
Future Marvel Limited (a wholly-owned subsidiary of
the Company), as the vendor, entered into a sale and
purchase agreement with Mr. Liu Chang, as the purchaser,
for a disposal of the entire issued shares in Well Surplus
Enterprises Limited and the shareholder loans owned by the
disposal group to Future Marvel Limited, which represented
the entire Automotive Engines Business of the Group. The
total consideration for the disposal was HK$41,500,000,
which was settled by the purchaser in the way of (i)
HK$500,000 by cash; and (b) the balance of HK$41,000,000
by way of waiver of the interests of the promissory notes
held by Power Expert. The disposal and the waiver of the
interest of the promissory notes have been completed on
29 January 2021.

The carrying amounts of the First Note and Second Note at
year end were computed by discounting the face values of
the notes by the effective interest rate and the outstanding
interest payable.

Bisu Technology Group International Limited Lg% 4 [ B A BR /A ]

27. AR EE (F)

PERE  RZF_—4F—-HZ
TLEtH s AARZE2EKNBA A
Future Marvel Limited (/EZ&E J5)
BB BSEE (IEAE T ik & well
Surplus Enterprises LimitedZ &#
AT My o R A5 K Future
Marvel LimitedZ 3 &3 (B A< 4
Bz 2R ER) ST EE
fih ok o B IHAR M {E £ 41,500,000
Bt CHE U T4
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28. DEFERRED TAX 28. EEBIIR
The movements in deferred tax liabilities during the year are AENIRIE B E AR R S LT ¢
as follows:
Depreciation Fair value
allowance adjustments
in excess arising from
Withholding of related  acquisition of
tax depreciation subsidiaries Total

tehil WEHELR
wEN EENDAR

BNH RESHE EEAR aE
HK$' 000 HK$' 000 HK$' 000 HK$' 000
T T T Tl
At 1 January 2019 REF—FE—-H—H 13,349 1 12,738 26,088
Deferred tax credited to profitor R AL
loss during the year (note 11) MAEERIE (H3E11) = = (12,738) (12,738)
At 31 December 2019 and R-ZF-NE
1 January 2020 TZAZT—HE
“FRE-A- 13,349 1 - 13,350
Deferred tax charged to profitor RN B FIFRIIELE
loss during the year (note 11) BUA (1) = 53 = 53
At 31 December 2020 REZEZZE
+-H=+—H 13,349 54 — 13,403

At 31 December 2020, the Group has tax losses arising in = jh — % ~F4E+ - H=+—H > REHE
Hong Kong of HK$70,271,000 (2019: HK$23,447,000). 7y i & Ak (9 BL JE 5 48 2 70,271,000 7 75
Subject to the final assessment of the Hong Kong Inland (=2 —JU4F : 23,447,000%70) o Byt
Revenue Department, these tax losses are available ¥ Bi% 3 10 i R EEAL - 73 LLBiIE B 38 0]

indefinitely for offsetting against future taxable profits of ) 4 FR #7 F DA R 8 65 48 2 51 10 o8 2k e 2 i
the companies in which the losses arose. WS F o
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DEFERRED TAX (Continued)

Deferred tax assets have not been recognised in respect of
these losses as it is not considered probable that taxable
profits will be available against which the tax losses can be
utilised.

Pursuant to the PRC Corporate Income Tax Law, a
10% withholding tax is levied on dividends declared to
foreign investors from the foreign investment enterprises
established in PRC. The requirement is effective from 1
January 2008 and applies to earnings after 31 December
2007. A lower withholding tax rate may be applied if
there is a tax treaty between PRC and the jurisdiction of
the foreign investors. For the Group, the applicable rate is
10%. The Group is therefore liable for withholding tax on
dividends distributed by those subsidiaries established in
PRC in respect of earnings generated from 1 January 2008.

Deferred tax has not been recognised for withholding taxes
that would be payable on certain unremitted earnings
that are subject to withholding tax of one of the Group’s
subsidiaries established in PRC. In the opinion of the
directors, it is not probable that these subsidiaries will
distribute such unremitted earnings in the foreseeable
future. The aggregate amount of temporary differences
associated with investments in subsidiaries in Mainland
China for which deferred tax liabilities have not been
recognised amounting to HK$251,324,000 (2019:
HK$279,613,000) as at 31 December 2020.

Bisu Technology Group International Limited Lg% 4 [ B A BR /A ]

28. EIERIE (&)
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BB - BALEME  BWHABER
10% ° Bt > A LA TR Z 5 7R
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Fr T A R S A ZE A AR T B > M
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S A
SHARE CAPITAL 29. B
Shares Bi% 12
2020 2019
—E-EF R A
HK$'000 HK$ 000
FET T 0
Authorised: FoHE
500,000,000 ordinary shares of 500,000,000 B 5 % 1 {5
HK$0.01 each 0.01 ¥ JC Y 48 i 5,000 5,000
Issued and fully paid: AT ML -
200,000,000 ordinary shares of 200,000,000 J% 4 1% T {5
HK$0.01 each 0.01 ¥ JCHY 78 % 2,000 2,000

Share options
Details of the Company’s share option scheme are included
in note 30 to the financial statements.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

Pursuant to an ordinary resolution passed on 24 March
2016, the shareholders of the Company approved the
adoption of a new share option scheme (the “Scheme”).
Unless otherwise terminated or amended, the Scheme will
remain in force for 10 years from the date of adoption.

The purpose of the Scheme is to provide incentives and
rewards to eligible participants who contribute to the
success of the Group’s operations. Eligible participants
of the Scheme include full-time or part-time employees,
including any executive directors of the Group; and any
business or joint venture partners, contractors, agents or
representatives, consultants, advisers, suppliers, producers
or licensors, customers, licensees (including any sub-
licensee) or distributors, landlords or tenants (including any
sub-tenants) of the Group or any person who, in the sole
discretion of the Board, has contributed or may contribute
to the Group. The Scheme became effective on 29 March
2016 and, unless otherwise cancelled or amended, will
remain in force for 10 years from that date.

30.

R
A ) AR o R O A R R
R 5330 o

AR AESTE

WER = —RE=H "+ HERE
ZEMPRE > A T R TE BR AR
B RERTB ([RZAT 8 )) - BRIE AT
AL SUERT - ERIGZFNEE A R A A
WIREFT 1O AR HERRAE K o

WZat #2252 1) 2 A 4R R
TR B Z & B2 B3 4R I SUm &
[l ¥ o At 2 S EK 2 HE Q2
B MR R B > AR AR 2 AT T
THEE ; MAEE ZAMEHREE
P - R B - §
N~ R - BERERG - AR R R
N~ BF RN (A7
BN SR - EEEAMF (8
FEAEAT T AL ) ol 2 g B0 Y 15 5l
HOREA R ALEENERZ
RN L o #Zat 3k —F —NF=H
ZJUB AR MR IE 5 AT BUE B
R0 SR B R HREMERAEROE 0
o
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued)

The maximum number of unexercised share options
currently permitted to be granted under the Scheme is an
amount equivalent, upon their exercise, to 10% of the
total number of shares of the Company in issue as at the
date when the Scheme was approved by the shareholders
of the Company in a general meeting, which is a total of
20,000,000 shares available for issue under the Scheme.
The maximum number of shares issuable under share
options to each eligible participant in the Scheme within
any 12-month period is limited to 1% of the shares of the
Company in issue at any time. Any further grant of share
options in excess of this limit is subject to shareholders’
approval in a general meeting.

Share options granted to a director, chief executive officer
or substantial shareholder of the Company, or to any of
their associates, are subject to approval in advance by
the independent non-executive directors. In addition, any
share options granted to a substantial shareholder or an
independent non-executive director of the Company, or
to any of their associates, in excess of 0.1% of the shares
of the Company in issue at any time or with an aggregate
value (based on the price of the Company’s shares at
the date of grant) in excess of HK$5 million, within any
12-month period, are subject to shareholders’ approval in
advance in a general meeting.

The offer of a grant of share options may be accepted
within 21 days from the date of the offer, upon payment
of a nominal consideration of HK$1 in total by the
grantee. The exercise period of the share options granted
is determinable by the directors and ends on a date which
is not later than 10 years from the date of the offer of the
share options.

The exercise price of the share options is determinable by
the directors, but should not be less than the highest of (i)
the closing price of the shares of the Company as stated
in the Hong Kong Stock Exchange daily quotation sheet
on the date of grant of share options; (ii) the average of
the closing prices of the shares of the Company as stated
on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange for the 5 trading days
immediately preceding the date of the offer; and (iii) the
nominal value of the shares of the Company.

Bisu Technology Group International Limited HZERHE 4 [H 5 F5 A5 BR A
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30. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2020, no share option has
been granted by the Company. There was no outstanding
share option of the Company as at 31 December 2019 and

2020.

The following share options under the Share Option Scheme
during the year ended 31 December 2019:

IR MIEE

31 December 2020
“FoFEFA=tH

30. fBRRAERTE (&)

BE_ZXZ-EFF+HA=1T—HILF
BE o AR A R o A U F
—NER EFEFT A = —
H > AR\ w3l 40 0 A AT off B P A o

REE-F-NAFE+_A=+—H1L
AR 5 AR SR R A i 2
LU

Number of share options
BREHE

Name or As at As at Exercise

category of 1 January 31 December price

participant 2019 Granted Exercised  Cancelled 2019 Date of grant HKS  Exercise period

B R

s8% Z®-NF ZE-NF %8

LSRN -A-A Rit Efif BA¥ tZA=t-B RHAK B 8

Director

gz

Mr. Lam Wah - 500,000 - (500,000) — 26 Apr2019 7128 26 Apr2019-

R “E-NE 25 Apr 2024

WAZtAH “E-NENAZARA

FoF
MAZ+AH

Others — 11,500,000 —(11,500,000) — 26 Apr2019 7128 26 Apr2019-

At “E0E 25 Apr 2024

MAZ+7%H “Z-NERAZFRH

FoFCNE
WAZTHA

The fair value of the share options granted in 2019 was
HK$28,721,000, of which the Group recognised a share
option expense HK$28,721,000 during the year ended 31
December 2019.

A T — JUAE AR 0 W RN A E M
£428,721,00087C » Hp#EE —%F—
JUE+ A =+ — B R4 A R
RO I HERH 228,721,000 7T ©
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued)

The fair value of equity-settled share options granted
during the year was estimated as at the date of grant
using a binomial model, taking into account the terms
and conditions upon which the options were granted. The
following table lists the inputs to the model used:

30. BBRAERTEI (&)
RN > AR R RRESS BRI
AEERRT HEA ZHARR (F
I8 5 T i BOHRE 09 46 R S AR 1) AT A
Boo TERIH T AT AR A A B
i

2019

—E-NF

Dividend yield (%) B Bl 5 (%) —
Expected volatility (%) TE I B (%) 74.9
Historical volatility (%) JiE 2 U (%) 74.9
Risk-free interest rate (%) 4 JEl B ) 2R (%) 1.71
Expected life of options (year) W RETE R (4F) 5
Weighted average share price (HK$ per share) TIRET- 34 e (4 e o) 5.6

The expected life of the options is based on the historical
data over the past three years and is not necessarily
indicative of the exercise patterns that may occur. The
expected volatility reflects the assumption that the historical
volatility is indicative of future trends, which may also not
necessarily be the actual outcome.

No other feature of the options granted was incorporated
into the measurement of fair value.
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Notes to Financial Statements

RESERVES

The amounts of the Group’s reserves and the movements
therein for the reporting period are presented in the
consolidated statement of changes in equity.

(a) Statutory surplus reserve
Transfers from retained profits to the statutory surplus
reserve were made in accordance with the relevant PRC
rules and regulations and the articles of association of
the Company’s subsidiaries established in the PRC.

For the entities concerned, the statutory surplus
reserve can be used to cover previous years’ losses, if
any, and may be converted into capital in proportion
to equity holders’ existing equity holdings, provided
that the balance after such conversion is not less than
25% of their registered capital.

(b) Share option reserve

It represents the fair value of share options vested
which are yet to be exercised, as further explained in
the accounting policy of share-based payments in note
3.4 to the financial statements. The amount will either
be transferred to the share premium account when the
related share options are exercised, or transferred to
retained profits should the related share options lapse
or be forfeited.

32. BUSINESS COMBINATION

On 15 April 2019, Global Harvest Inc (a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company) entered into an agreement
with Mr. Jiang Jianhui (a controlling shareholder of the
Company), for the purchase of 100% of the total issued
shares of Links Wonder Investment Holdings Limited (“Links
Wonder”). Details of which were set out in the Company
announcements dated 14 and 22 April 2019.

On 6 May 2019, Xingyu Keji (Shenzhen) Company Limited
(BB (YD ARAT, a then indirect wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company) entered into an agreement
with Mr. Jiang Jianhui (the controlling shareholder of the
Company), for the purchase of 60% of the total issued
shares of Qiubei Woma Agricultural Development Co., Ltd.
(“Qiubei Woma"). Details of which were set out in the
Company announcement dated 6 May 2019.

IR MIEE

31 December 2020
e Y

1. #1E

2 S O ) £ £ R B L
ARG eI B R RS

(a) EERERRE
R B ) A 2 3 E L B AR T
AR B AH B K R A IS B DL B A
28 wAE HH B RS Y Y T D i AL
ARTEREAN AR,

A REEmE - EE B
AT P VI A A 1 4E B S 1R (T
) > Jn ] FEHE S FE A N B R
T LU 4 5 B A - M A A B
A% 1Y) &5 B AN D ot i &
AM)25% ©

(b) FERHERE
W P At 48 Tl B - 1 R AT HE
¥ B PO HE 2 % SO BB > RE
A 5 R B R 3. 4 3 LA
FLBREAS R B wHEOR B9 R o A
TR S P MEA T AR > %k 4 T A R
B R B0t PR MR o B A
SRR 2 e 2 WA > AR

B o

32. ¥¥%a0t

AZE—JAFEWA +HH > Global
Harvest Inc (472 & — [# 4 & Mt &
OS] B3 e A (A )
H) RISk > W Links Wonder
Investment Holdings Limited ([Links
Wonder]) 100% &84T HEAy o 7E1H
IR AT HE A = F—JLFEM A
TWHEZ T ZHZ A% -

R oE—ERANHE > BB
(GEHN) A PR R R 25 AR W) [ 3%
G M B A ) R EE A (AR F]
P2 B e B ) BT O7 h ko UG P b UK R
JREBRBARA R (T EJLKIR ) 60%
CEAT IR o FEIE IR AN E H B
BoE-NELANABZAE -
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32. BUSINESS COMBINATION (Continued)

The fair values of the identifiable assets and liabilities
of Links Wonder and Qiubei Woma as at the date of

32. ¥BEH (B)

Links Wonder A Frdb & il it i i 2

ERSIIE 9318 09 &= K /A =K =R/

acquisition were as follows: I
2019
—E-hE
Qiubei
Links Woma Total
Wonder E 463K i g
Notes HK$" 000 HK$" 000 HK$" 000
Bt 5 Fis ot T TFisoo
Property, plant and equipment ¥J2& - % & f 14 215 1,466 1,681
Deferred assets R HiE 547 970 1,517
Prepayments, deposits and AT EIE - #E K
other receivables Al 8 i K 6,617 3,107 9,724
Cash and cash equivalents 4 LB 4% EY 1,077 216 1,293
Other payables and accruals — HoAth A 3Kk &% TE 1R 2 (332) (5,230) (5,562)
Total identifiable net assets Ao R fE R 2R
at fair value AT g Al A N 8,124 529 8,653
Non-controlling interest IE HE B 4 16 (8,164) (211) (8,375)
(40) 318 278
Goodwill on acquisition W R 11 2 41 378 419
Satisfied by cash DAL P AT 1 696 697

An analysis of the cash flows in respect of the acquisition of

AL WA B R B 2 W] 2 B e U R 23 A A

a subsidiary was as follows: T
2019
—E-NEF
Qiubei
Links Woma Total
Wonder E4b SRR Febc)
HK$" 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000
Fis o Tt Tt
Cash consideration B4 e (1) (696) (697)
Cash and bank balance acquired R 4 M ARAT 45 R 1,077 216 1,293
Net inflow of cash and cash FEABE IR B E AR
equivalents included in cash flows — B & & B4 &
from investing activities HEZEYFRA 1,076 (480) 596
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Notes to Financial Statements

BUSINESS COMBINATION (Continued)

Since the acquisition, Links Wonder and Qiubei Woma
did not contribute any revenue to the Group's revenue
and contributed HK$1,229,000 and HK$1,109,000 to the
Group's consolidated loss for the year ended 31 December
2019 respectively.

Had the combination taken place at the beginning of the
year, the revenue of the Group and the loss of the Group
for the year ended 31 December 2019 would have been
HK$459,109,000 and HK$906,895,000, respectively.

DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES

IR MIEE

31 December 2020
e

32. ¥%&506t (E)
B FEIE LI 5 Links Wonder &
Fr b R i Slf7 48 3 A 45 8 B JRK AT o] i
A MAEEERE - F—NLE+HH
=+ —HIEEENGSER A
1,229,000# 7C 5% 1,109,000 T °

il & BF B AFBDHEAT > IR B E &
—LE+ A=t —HIEFEERN
A5 M A B A B s 4R o B
459,109,000 7t % 906,895,000
j‘Bo

33. HEMB AT

2019
TR
Notes HK$ 000
B 5E T-#5 70

Net assets disposal of: HE G E
Goodwill [k 16 419
Property, plant and equipment W - Weds SO 14 17,270
Inventories & 984
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables TAATEIE ~ e B = Ah RE UK 3,060
Cash and cash equivalents 4 LB &% EY 1,056
Other payables and accruals At A} R % TE 2 (12,372)
Non-controlling interests IF $E BERE 45 (12,098)
(1,681)
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries A i N R 2 AR 1,682
Satisfied by Cash DB fE AT 1

An analysis of the net outflow of cash and cash equivalent
in respect of the disposal of subsidiaries is as follows:

M EREAF e RBE%EHY
TR AT

2019

—ER—JUAE

HK$’ 000

T T

Cash consideration BEAE 1

Cash and bank balance disposal of R B SERAT &G B (1,056)
Net outflow of cash and cash equivalents included FEATE IS B A A A B T

in cash flows from investing activities Y B 4 e B4 S (E DI T o (1,055)
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34. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT

224

OF CASH FLOWS
(a) Major non-cash transactions
(i) During the year,

34. REBEREXRNEE

(a) EEFREXRS

the Group had non-cash

additions to right-of-use assets and lease
liabilities of HK$2,280,000 (2019: HK$2,546,000)
and HK$2,280,000 (2019: HK$2,546,000),
respectively, in respect of lease arrangements for

office premises.

(b) Changes in liabilities arising from financing activities

()  HER - BRI E
TP AREEA G E
T 08 IR B4 N B 43
£52,280,000% 7 (~F—
JU4E © 2,546,000 8) K&
2,280,000 70 (= F—JUL

4 1 2,546,000%850) ©

(b) REMEXBHNABERE

Interest-

bearing bank
and other  Convertible Promissory Lease
borrowings bonds notes Liabilities

HEBRTR
AtfeE  WRRES RARE HESE
HKS$' 000 HK$' 000 HK$' 000 HK$' 000
T T T T
At 1 January 2019 R-Z-NE-A—A 70,255 352,411 512,387 3,882
Changes from financing cash flows BERSHEED (7,010) = = (3,025)
New leases HE - = = 2,546
Foreign exchange movement SMNEEE) S = — (31)
Changes from operating cash flows BEREREEY (5,265) — — —
Interest expense FIEHE = 33,922 41,598 404
Interest paid classified as operating cash flows ~ EffFIEAEALERLHE - - = (404)
At 31 December 2019 REF-NEFZA=+—H 57,980 386,333 553,985 3,372
t 1 January 2020 WZZ-ZHE—H—H 57,980 386,333 553,985 3,372
Changes from financing cash flows HERLT 28 (13,980) — — (3,014)
New leases FLiiN = = — 2,280
Foreign exchange movement SMEZH - — - 35
Interest expense FEBE — 30,029 30,475 306
Interest paid classified as operating cash flows ~ EfFEANALERLHE - - - (306)
Gain on extinguishment of convertible bonds GRS ITHU 5 2 s = (302,173) = =
Gain on modification of promissory notes BRIRRERE s = = (294,577) -
At 31 December 2020 e 2 Y 44,000 114,189 289,883 2,673
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IR MIEE

31 December 2020
SECEREF A =+—H

34. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT 34. 6B E&FRERMT (&)
OF CASH FLOWS (Continued)

(c) Total cash outflow for leases

The total cash outflow for leases included in the

() HERESRHAHE
AAGERERETNHERSE

consolidated of cash flows is as follows: W AR R
2020 2019
—E-EF ZE—JUE
HK$' 000 HK$ 000
THET T 0
Within operating expenses T 7 78 B S 4 B 306 404
Within financing activities TE Tl & 3 B A 3 A 3,014 3,025
3,320 3,429

35. JOINT OPERATION 35. HEKE

Particulars of the Group's joint operation as at 31 December
2019 and 2020 are as follows:

FHAEER - F-NER_F-F
F T H = H SR A RS W
B

Form of Place of Percentage of attributable Principal
Name of joint operation business structure operation interest of the Group activities
HEEEEM FRRERA gesm AEEREEEEAL IERH
2020 2019
b S 33 “FnE
% %
(note (a)) (note (b))
GER) (fiF5E(b))
EXCEL - LANON Joint Venture Body unincorporated Hong Kong 51 51 Construction
i - TG EEE AN ik BEATH
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35. JOINT OPERATION (Continued)

(a)

Under the joint venture agreement, the joint operators
have contractually agreed sharing of control over the
relevant activities of this body unincorporated, hence this
body unincorporated is jointly controlled by the Group and
the other joint operator. Furthermore, the joint venture
agreement specifies that the Group and other party to the
joint arrangement have rights to the assets and obligations to
the liabilities relating to the joint arrangement in accordance
with the attributable interest of the Group as disclosed above
and the interest attributable to the other joint operator
respectively, therefore the body unincorporated is classified
as a joint operation.

The joint operation is principally engaged in construction
work to carry out the provision of barrier-free access facilities
for highway structures in Hong Kong.

36. EVENTS AFTEER THE REPORTING PERIOD

226

(a)

On 27 January 2021, Future Marvel Limited (a wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company), as the vendor,
entered into a sale and purchase agreement with Mr.
Liu Chang, as the purchaser, for a disposal of the
entire issued shares in Well Surplus Enterprises Limited
and the shareholder loans owned by the disposal
group to Future Marvel Limited, which represented
the whole Automotive Engines Business of the
Group. The total consideration for the disposal was
HK$41,500,000, which was settled by the purchaser
in the way of (i) HK$500,000 by cash; and (b) the
balance of HK$41,000,000 by way of waiver of the
interests of the promissory notes held by Power Expert.
The disposal and the waiver of the interest of the
promissory notes have been completed on 29 January
2021.

On 7 March 2021, the Company entered into two
subscription agreements with two subscribers,
namely Mao Yuan Capital Limited and Mr. Zhang
Yaxun, in respect of the subscriptions of an
aggregate of 40,000,000 subscription shares at the
subscription price of HK$4.80 per share. The issue
of the 40,000,000 subscription shares will not be
subject to the approval by the shareholders and the
subscription shares will be issued under the general
mandate granted to the Directors at the 2020 annual
general meeting held on 19 June 2020. The gross
proceeds from the subscriptions will be approximately
HK$192,000,000, which are expected to improve the
liquidity of the Group.
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35. &[5
(a)

(b)

36. &

(a)

(b)

ge (E)

R B EE > HRLE AR
A PE I E L =R I A A AR A
B SE TS O FE R RE > BRIE - % JF R D
BN TS i A SE ) B A 3 ] A A
SER R o BUAN > B A St R 5
WY A 42 [ 2 3L (] ok b LAt A AR
45 b At BT 9% 8 A 4 [ B A A B %
fth S ) K88 A HE A 55 0 B B A A
A AT PR R A AR
B Wt ZEAFEASE LI

AEGETRAEERTE > M
It A S 3 o B 7 S

Hi#&=EE
W_F_—4HF—-H_++tH:
K EZ 2 G & A Al Future
Marvel Limited (1F 2 ) 82|
BAd (FEAE ) Bt & well
Surplus Enterprises LimitedZ
AT AT Iy K AR A
K Future Marvel LimitedZ %
FR K (B A4 | 2 & 3 iR gt
BMEY) T I EHEW & -
ERIHAMRME 41,500,000
76 > CHE TN R A -
(i)500,000 % 7 LA B & 324 5 ]
(b)#2%841,000,000 7 7T LA # %
TG REBR Bk IR 2 7R L SRR E 2
J5 AT o 8 I R K S
EHAEER _F - —HZ
TILHFER,

RZEFZ—FE=ZAEH - ARH
BT 44 R N (B A IR AR A PR
28 A B SR BERAG S AR ) BT SL A 4 R
WD o A B A A
4.80# Tt d i+ 3£40,000,000
Jie a8 Mg i A - $84740,000,000
R B 0y B ZE MR A R HE > T
OB AR PR —F AN
At A8z —F - FERK
WAEREG R THEEZ — BRI
BEAT o W M 2 TE T S SO AR
#)7%192,000,000% 5T - FHIAF
RFAEEZREIE -



Notes to Financial Statements

36. EVENTS AFTEER THE REPORTING PERIOD
(Continued)

(0)

On 19 March 2021, Power Expert issued a conversion
notice to the Company in respect of the exercise of the
conversion rights attached to the convertible bonds to
the extent of HK$40,000,000 and accordingly request
the Company to issue 20,000,000 conversion shares
of the Company. As all conditions for the conversion
which were stipulated in the terms of the convertible
bonds were fulfilled, the Company has given its
consent on the conversion, and will issue 20,000,000
conversion shares to Power Expert. On 26 March
2021, the partial conversion of the convertible bonds
has completed, and 20,000,000 conversion shares has
been issued and allotted to Power Expert.

37. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

(a)

(b)

(0)

At 31 December 2020, the guarantees given by the
Group to certain banks in respect of performance
bonds in favour of certain contract customers
amounted to HK$18,649,000 (2019: HK$8,635,000).

In the ordinary course of the Group's construction
business, the Group has been subject to a number of
claims due to personal injuries suffered by employees
of the Group or the Group’s subcontractors in
accidents arising out of and in the course of their
employment. The directors are of the opinion that such
claims are well covered by insurance and would not
result in any material adverse impact on the financial
position or results and operations of the Group.

The Group has subject to a number of claims for
interest charge from the suppliers of the Automotive
Engines Business due to late settlement of the
relevant accounts payable. The amount of claims are
amounted to HK$3,247,000 (2019: HK$1,902,000)
and the directors are of the opinion that since i)
there is no evidence that such claims would not likely
to materialise; and ii) the Group has completed the
disposal of the Automotive Engines Business on 29
January 2021 and any potential claims would be
borne by the purchaser of the Automotive Engines
Business, such claims would not result in any material
adverse impact on the financial position or results and
operations of the Group.

IR MIEE

31 December 2020
e ES

2

36. HEHKREE (&)

(@)

MRoFE—HE=HA+H > T5HE
Rk A7 4140,000,000 % 5T ]
5 A 5 s R %) 8 5 A 1) AR 2 )
B O A o R B R AR
1720,000,000 A 2 7] 6 %
JBEAy o H A AT $ A 2 Mk b T
FT 1 R 1 P A I A R A
(D& /NIRRT D= - € SO 47 A ]
AEBR Bk #£4720,000,000 M 2
ety o R-FE-—4E=ZH N
H o> &0 n] ki E 52 %
A HE W I5REBRBR 34T I Bic 5%
20,000,000 B e f5 JE 153

37. KARAEE

(a)

Annual Report 2020 % " EAEAER

RoEZREFTH =+ —H
AEMRGTETARHNEFZE
PR R A 1) 2 T SRAT SR ALY 5
1£7%518,649,0008: 70 (~FE— L
4 1 8,635,000 7T) ©

TEA G B A SE 5 10 B W R AR
o A SR T O SR T 0 T S
B R 5 7E 2 A 0 TH] 8 A R A A
N B A5 T T i A B R A TR
0o AR > A B RIEE R R
B R ARG - A B AR SR Y
P IR 0L 8 S A S 8 AT AT
HERAAZE -

H A 2E 88 45 15 A BH RE AT R > 9%
FL % ) e SE TS 1 R T ) AN A
RHETHEEARE  RES
BE3,247,0008 00 (—F—JL
41,902,000 7T) > T HE T
By RS M SRR R A B R
BERATRE G S LA BL 5 i) A4k
R —F - —4F—H = TJH
SE S H B R H R A SRS VR
BEEETS B O & RIS AT AT VA
R BOA R R A A g
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38. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(a) In addition to the transactions and balances detailed
elsewhere in these financial statements, the Group had
the following material transactions with related parties

38. A RS
(@)  BRAEAS 5 i 2 A 0w 2t 1Y)
G R AEERAN > A SR B s
B BEL IR g O AT R SRR

during the reporting period: o
2020 2019
i ~EFhE
Notes HK$'000 HK$" 000
B st FTET THIT
Corporate service fee charged HANE -2 EF (i)
by a company of which a director AT TR AR Y
of the Company is a controlling 23 A AR S
shareholder e %5 2 — 227
Interest expenses charged by a HA N F— & ROR (i)
company of which a shareholder AR R R
of the Company is a controlling 23 AR LB,
shareholder B 3¢ 3,780 797
Notes: R &E
() The transactions were conducted on terms and () 25 4% A B 45 7 A . i 2 1
conditions mutually agreed between the relevant TR AR HEAT ©
parties.
(i)  Details are set out in notes 24 and 25 to the financial (i) WF G O RS R M sk 24 &
statements. 25 o

(b) Acquisition of subsidiaries from a shareholder

(b) EMRRKEHEDF

2020 2019
—E-EF R —IUE
HK$’000 HK$’ 000
FTHET AR
Cash consideration paid to ST Z A SR
Mr. Jiang Jianhui 3 4 AE — 697

Details of which are set out in note 32 to the financial

statements.
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Notes to Financial Statements

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued)
(c) Compensation of key management personnel
of the Group
Further details of the compensation of key
management personnel of the Group are included in
notes 9 and 10 to the financial statements.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY
As at 31 December 2020 and 2019, all the Group’s financial
assets and liabilities were at amortised cost.

FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Management has assessed that the fair values of cash
and cash equivalents, accounts receivable, contract assets,
financial assets included in prepayments, deposits and other
receivables, accounts payable, financial liabilities included
in other payables and accruals and lease liabilities, interest-
bearing bank and other borrowings approximate to their
carrying amounts largely due to the short term maturities of
these instruments.

The Group’s finance department headed by the director
is responsible for determining the policies and procedures
for the fair value measurement of financial instruments.
The finance department reports directly to the director
and the audit committee. At each reporting date, the
finance department analyses the movements in the values
of financial instruments and determines the major inputs
applied in the valuation. The valuation is reviewed and
approved by the directors. The valuation process and results
are discussed with the audit committee twice a year for
interim and annual financial reporting.

38.

39.

40.

IR MIEE
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(0 FAEETEEEASHRMH
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HE — 25 T O S R B 5E 9
J10 -

SRITEYSE
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Tl A T 4 R
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EMIAZARBERIAE
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R B KB EY - MEBCORER
FREE - BEEEMNZIE - ek
Hof U R - BT IR Z A
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41.

230

FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

The fair values of the financial assets and liabilities are
included at the amount at which the instrument could be
exchanged in a current transaction between willing parties,
other than in a forced or liquidation sale.

The following methods and assumptions were used to
estimate the fair values:

The fair values of the liability portion of convertible bonds
and promissory notes have been calculated by discounting
the expected future cash flows using rates currently
available for instruments with similar terms, credit risk and
remaining maturities. The Group’s own non-performance
risk for convertible bonds and promissory notes as at 31
December 2020 and 31 December 2019 was assessed to be
insignificant.

The Group did not have any financial assets or liabilities
measured at fair value as at 31 December 2020 and 31
December 2019.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES

The Group’s principal financial instruments include accounts
receivable, contract assets, deposits and other receivables,
accounts and other payables, cash and cash equivalents,
lease liabilities, interest-bearing bank and other borrowings,
promissory notes and convertible bonds. Details of these
financial instruments are disclosed in the respective notes to
the financial statements.

The Group's ordinary activities expose it to various financial
risks, including foreign currency risk, credit risk and liquidity
risk. The risks associated with financial instruments and
the policies on how to mitigate these risks are described
below. Management monitors closely the Group’s exposures
to financial risks to ensure appropriate measures are
implemented in a timely and effective manner.
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Notes to Financial Statements

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (Continued)

Foreign currency risk

Foreign currency risk means the risk on the fluctuation
of fair value or future cash flows of financial instruments
which arose from changes in exchange rates.

The Group's civil engineering and construction business is
located in Hong Kong and is transacted and settled in HK$
while the Group’s Automotive Engines CGU is located in
PRC and is transacted and settled in RMB. Accordingly, the
directors considered that the Group’s foreign currency risk
is insignificant.

Credit risk

The Group's credit risk is primarily attributable to bank
balances, accounts receivable and contract assets. The
Group's maximum credit risk exposure at the end of the
reporting period in the event of other parties failing to
perform their obligations is represented by the carrying
amount of each financial asset as stated in the consolidated
statement of financial position.

For the maximum exposure as at 31 December 2020,
management monitored the creditworthiness and payment
patterns of each debtor closely and on an ongoing basis.
It was the Group's policy that all customers of automotive
engines who wished to trade on credit terms and subject
to credit verification procedures. The Group's accounts
receivable from contract work represent interim payments
or retentions certified by the customers under terms as
stipulated in the contracts and the Group did not hold any
collateral over these receivables. As the Group’s customers
in respect of contract work primarily consist of government
departments and developers or owners with strong
financial backgrounds, management considers that the risk
of irrecoverable receivables from contract work was not
significant.

At 31 December 2020, the Group had concentrations
of credit risk as 2% (2019: 3%) of the total accounts
receivable were due from the Group’s largest external
customer and 7% (2019: 48%) of the total accounts
receivable were due from the Group’s five largest external
customers.

IR MIEE

31 December 2020
e Y

1. BBEREERFERBECK ()

S EL R

B8 g 4 IR BEE 5 5 ) i 2 A 9 2
T A 2 oM (B EOR AR B 42 0 B )
JEUB o

AR 2 bR TR B i A A
W A LA T 5 KA R > AL
ZARH R B M B e AR B S A
B 3 AR 5y KAEH o B
B R A A I T A9 0 R Ba T B
AEIE -

FERR

AR T G B B B R AT A
B~ REUURB N & EE - i 2 KA
MBS 77 R BE AT H 85 - AEER
i 0 A5t SR B TR 3B Y B 5 £ B JEL B A
T A < i E ARG BB IR DL AR o
I3 W R TET L

MBE _—F_FFE+_H=Z1T—HM®
KRR > PRI R A % ) B A
BB NGB SR P o A5
B BOR & T A SR EEHE RN
R EHREFEITHE > WWHEET
FRRERT - AEEN A LRE
SRR R R AR 15 G A N R T BAGR SR S AT Y
A ) Bk S8 & 5 A% BT RY AR BE RRE
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TR MRS A B AN K o

BB oBE T A ST —H o AR
47 €5 2% {5 S BB T O L - G
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41. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (Continued)
Credit risk (Continued)
Maximum exposure and year-end staging
The tables below shows the credit quality and the maximum
exposure to credit risk based on the Group's credit policy,
which is mainly based on past due information unless other
information is available without undue cost or effort, and
year-end staging classification as at 31 December.

The amount presented are gross carrying amounts for
financial assets.

As at 31 December 2020

41. BIREREEEEREE (&)

=ERRE (&)

RA R R F R R
FERINEE R AL ERBORNEE
CEV'S-FNEE- Y W IV e
s TR DU T AT AL E R - K&
B A=t~ R B B -

S R 4 T T R T AR

R-B-EHF+=-A=+-—H

12-month Lifetime
ECLs ECLs
128 A
FEFR 2HRACEEFA
Simplified
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 approach
F1ER HE2RE E3RE %
HK$' 000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$' 000 HK$' 000
TEx ThR TER FHR TER
Contract assets* GHBEE - - - 90,866 90,866
Accounts receivable* TE AR+ - - - 777,880 777,880
Financial assets included in deposits ~ sF A4 KL
and other receivables TElEN SR E
— Normal** - E¥* 13,709 - - - 13,709
— Doubtful** — Rfx - - - - -
Cash and cash equivalents B8 BB & FHE
— Not yet past due — MARmH 49,749 - - - 49,749
63,458 - - 846 932,204
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 41. BiRKREEEERBE (&)
AND POLICIES (Continued)

Credit risk (Continued)

FERR ()

Maximum exposure and year-end staging (Continued) BARRERFEROBE R (F)

As at 31 December 2019

R-Z-hF+Z-A=+—H

12-month Lifetime
ECLs ECLs
1218 7 B4
fREER 2HEREEER
Simplified
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 approach

F1RE FME 3B il ik
HK$' 000 HKS$' 000 HKS' 000 HK$' 000 HKS$' 000
Tt it Tt Tt it

Contract assets* BHERE — = - 60,724 60,724
Accounts receivable* REk R 2 = = = 698,306 698,306
Financial assets included in deposits ~ #FATE 4 JAl

and other receivables AN SREE

— Normal** — [Ef** 43,462 - - - 43,462

— Doubtful** — Rlxr - — — — —
Cash and cash equivalents B&RBA%HEY

— Not yet past due - HAEH 64,777 - = - 64,777

108,239 — — 759,030 867,269

* For accounts receivable and contract assets to which the * A% A [ T 8 AL vk w R TRl 1 1 Wl

Group applies the simplified approach for impairment,
information based on the provision matrix is disclosed in note

19 and 20 to the financial statements.

**  The credit quality of the financial assets included in deposits
and other receivables is considered to the “normal” when
they are not past due and there is no information indicating
that the financial assets had a significant increase in credit
risk since initial recognition. Otherwise, the credit quality of

W M GREE > TN B
Bff 5F 19 S 2.0 9 25 2 1% 40 B (19 &

ik o A R Sl R R OR g
0 UK it R AR £ L R K W T
FE A $e 4 B LAt B R G 4
HE SR RAUETIER | - w0 &
R (5 R R AR TR BR ] -

the financial assets is considered to be “doubtful”.

Further quantitative data in respect of the Group’s exposure A B A R (9 A AR AT 7 AR 1 15 AL
to credit risk arising from accounts receivable are disclosed B 1 A — 20 1 2 O R W R M 5
in note 20 to the financial statements. 20 #E -
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (Continued)

Liquidity risk

The Group’s policy is to monitor regularly the current and
expected liquidity requirements to ensure that it maintains
sufficient reserves of cash and adequate committed lines of
funding from major financial institutions to meet its liquidity
requirements in the short and long term. In addition,
banking facilities have been put in place for contingency
purposes.

The following tables details the remaining contractual
maturities at the end of the reporting period of the
Group’s financial liabilities, which are based on contractual
undiscounted cash flows (including interest payments
computed using contractual rates, or if floating, based on
rates as at the end of the reporting period) and the earliest
date that the Group could be required to repay:

41.

MHRREEBRERBK (&)

REE TR

7S T 1 SR % E U B R IR R TR
WEE oK > LA AR MRS 2 4 5
Sl Soie B 3 2 4 R 10 2 40 il
R > AT 2 S R A
BEETR o o AEEGLPER
a8 AR Z T -

eIk SUNLEA: SRy & il
ROREFRRIBR S A HITRES A
RUGH B SRR (BTG A R
(a0 g 17 B 1) 3 ) AR A A 0 A R
1 ) S 5t B B MR ) B A 4R AT
AEZE MR 1 foc 7 H AR 4

Within
1 year or Between Between
on demand 1 and 2 years 2 and 5 years Total
—FRARNE
FEEREE —Z-F —ERE st
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000 HK$' 000 HK$' 000
THEx FET TET TExT
31 December 2020 —EB_EHF
+=A=+-8H
Accounts payable B AT B 340,438 - - 340,438
Lease liabilities HEAR 2,603 108 - 2,711
Financial liabilities included in  FF AL AbRESS HOE
other payables Z e AL 59,888 18,385 23,810 102,083
Interest-bearing bank and at SR B A
other borrowings LT 46,861 = 7,801 54,662
Convertible bonds A ks S - - 390,000 390,000
Promissory notes (note) R (M) 20,500 20,500 290,100 331,100
470,290 38,993 711,711 1,220,994

Note: Details of the term of the promissory notes, including interest
rate and maturity rate are set out in note 27 to the financial
statements.

Bisu Technology Group International Limited Lg% 4 [ B A BR /A ]
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 41. MEEMREEBERBEE (&)
AND POLICIES (Continued)
Liquidity risk (Continued) RBESEE (F)
Within
1 year or Between Between
on demand 1and 2 years 2 and 5 years Total
—ENEA
JRE B R AR R —FE & CEAE M
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000 HK$' 000 HK$' 000
T T Tt Tt
31 December 2019 —S—-hE
+=A=+-8H
Accounts payable JRE AT B K 313,300 — — 313,300
Lease liabilities HEARE 2,814 672 = 3,486
Financial liabilities included in  #F A H b EA} A
other payables Z e Al 43,546 6,000 23,752 73,298
Interest-bearing bank and atRERAT S A
other borrowings RN 64,072 = = 64,072
Convertible bonds AR S 390,000 — — 390,000
Promissory notes LR 557,600 — = 557,600
1,371,332 6,672 23,752 1,401,756

As explained in note 2 to the financial statement, the
directors have adopted or plan to adopt certain measures
in order to improve the Group’s financial and cash flow
positions and to maintain the Group’s as a going concern.

Capital management

The primary objective of the Group’s capital management
policy is to ensure that the Group will be able to continue
as a going concern while maximising the return to
stakeholders through the optimisation of the debt and
equity balance.

The directors review the capital structure on a periodical
basis. As part of this review, the directors consider the
cost of capital and the risks associated with each class of
capital and will balance the Group’s overall capital structure
through new share issues as well as raising new debts or
repayment of existing debts.

Al BB R M 2 BTt - R C
PRI A B BRBCE T > DABGE A
S T B B 5 I B e i IR L > DA B A
FRA G B R A AL -

ETEE
A5 I < LU R R AR A Tl
PRASE I RE 5 BAC > [F] R i AL

(RS BB A e R M) 4 A B 2 [ 3
KA

G MR E AL o MR A
Mt TAEM — &2 > #HH % EE S W
7 B BELAS UL 6 A B RO J e o I 9
ST R R AT R B BME R BUA
5 ARy A 45 [ 1) R B AR A o
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (Continued)
Capital management (Continued)

The Group monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is
net cash and bank balances divided by the total capital. Net
debts are calculated as the total of interest-bearing bank
and other borrowings, liability component of the convertible
bonds and promissory notes less cash and cash equivalents.
Total capital refers to equity attributable to owners of the
parent. The gearing ratio as at 31 December 2020 and 31

December 2019 was as follows:

41.

MHRREEBRERBK (&)

E2EE (#)

AEEERNEERMIREEEAR
T 6 2 £ A P 30 T 45 B 4 S SRAT &5 B
THERR LUE A BB o 85 i
Hewt BLARAT RO A AR - AT R R
BRI SR S S Y AR R &
REeEFHEWFHR - EARFRGLA
BeA ANREALRELE - T FE+ T
A=Zt—HEZF-WE+ZH=F

—HWEEARILEMT
2020 2019
i g 253 —F -4
HK$'000 HK$’ 000
FERT Tt
Interest-bearing bank and other FH S ERAT B A K
borrowings 44,000 57,980
Liability component of the AR RS AL
convertible bonds 114,189 386,333
Promissory notes TR 289,883 553,985
Less: Cash and cash equivalents o Bla R e S EY (49,749) (64,777)
Net debts AU 398,323 933,521
Equity attributable to owners of YNk XS PN
the parent JRE A 2 (678,929) (974,755)
Gearing ratio (%) EEAELR (%) N/A NA*
TEA AN

* The gearing ratio as at 31 December 2020 and 2019 are
not available because the Group reported a negative equity
attributable to owners of the parent as at 31 December 2020

and 2019.
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42. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE 42. XX R ZM#EARRE
COMPANY

Information about the statement of financial position of the A B A2 R o B R 2 BB IR I 3R
Company at the end of the reporting period is as follows: ZERIF
2020 2019
—EEHF —E—JUE
HK$'000 HK$ 000
FExT Fis ot
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FREBEE
Property, plant and equipment L ERR YT = 1
Total non-current assets I i ) A - 1
CURRENT ASSETS REBEE
Due from subsidiaries JRE Wiz o6 i 2 ) K 36,524 48,536
Prepayments, deposits and FASTHIE ~ B K&
other receivables oAl SRR 1,433 1,423
Cash and cash equivalents W& LB &S EY 399 492
Total current assets i AR 38,356 50,451
CURRENT LIABILITIES REAE
Other payables and accruals At A 3R K% TR R 2 30,392 15,733
Interest-bearing other borrowings ahE HAL SR 38,000 53,900
Convertible bonds CIEiS T 18,564 386,333
Promissory notes R L 2R - 553,985
Total current liabilities N =R 86,956 1,009,951
NET CURRENT LIABILITIES REREFE (48,600) (959,500)
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT EERE
LIABILITIES RRE B & (48,600) (959,499)
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42. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE

COMPANY (Continued)

42. ARB 2 HBRAE (&)

2020 2019
—E-TF R
HK$'000 HK$" 000
FHT T T
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES FREBEME
Other payables At JBE A B TH 43,223 29,771
Interest-bearing other borrowings B A A 3K 6,000 .
Convertible bonds CIE i d=¢ 114,189 —
Promissory notes R S8R 271,319 —
Deferred tax liabilities PEAE R TA & & 2 2
Total non-current liabilities FE i E A A 434,733 29,773
Net liabilities BRI (483,333) (989,272)
EQUITY R
Share capital B A 2,000 2,000
Equity component of convertible bonds ] #i i {5 % 2 H 35 ¥6 4
(note) (Bf5E) 384,037 375,576
Reserves (note) b (BfE3E) (869,370) (1,366,848)
Deficiency in assets B s 4 (483,333) (989,272)

Dr. Gao Gunter
SWESL
Chairman

M
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42. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE

43.

44.

COMPANY (Continued)
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42. ARB BT (&)

Note: R &E
A summary of the Company’s reserves is as follows: AN T 2 AT
Equity
component
of Share
Share  convertible option  Accumulated
premium bonds reserve losses Total
TRR
E52
R EE Buls  BRERE ZitER @t
HK$' 000 HK$'000 HK$' 000 HK$" 000 HK$' 000
il il i T T
At 1 January 2019 REF—JE—A—H 45,486 375,576 - (786,377) (365,315)
Total comprehensive loss for the year FERAHERAE = = = (654,678) (654,678)
Equity-settled share option arrangements M S F RS IRCHE 2 4 = = 28,721 = 28,721
Transfer of share option reserve upon S O 7 A R e
the cancellation of share options it = = (28,721) 28,721 =
At 31 December 2019 RZE—E+ZA=Z+—H 45,486 375,576 - (1,412,334 (991,272)
At 31 December 2019 and 1 January 2020 R-Z—E+=H=1—H
KoEZEE—-A—R 45,486 375,576 - (1,412,334) (991,272)
Total comprehensive loss for the year ERAHERAE = = = 497,478 497,478
Loss on extinguishment of convertible bonds &l et % 2 fi 2 = 8,461 = = 8,461
At 31 December 2020 WEZZZEF A=A 45,486 384,037 — (914,856) (485,333)

COMPARATIVE AMOUNTS

Certain comparative amounts have been reclassified to
conform to the current year's presentation. In the opinion

of the directors of the Company, this presentation would
better reflect the financial performance of the Company.

APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The financial statements were approved and authorised for

issue by the board of directors on 29 March 2021.

43. kB H
LT UBEEECEHSEUS S
EREZRBY o AARERDL > %2
B 6 0 3 R AR N B 2 BTSSR B o

44. #EEBTHEHERER
MBHRER T —F£=H - +JLH
W G L AR HET S
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Five-Year Financial Summary
LENBHE

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the 74 [ 3 2 1o i B BUAE B/ BARH) 2 264K -
Group for the last five financial years/period, as extracted from  &JE K B BEHEE (Fdk 5 A 5 5 E 1) 88 B 5

the Group's published financial statements, is set out below. k) WHUNT o
RESULTS S
Nine months
Year ended Year ended Year ended Year ended ended
31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December
2020 2019 2018 2017 2016

SEIEFE SR ZEF-NF 2R CEAE
t=A=t-B FZA=t—A +ZA=+-H +tZA=t-H +ZA=+-H

ILEE 1L EFE IEFE 1EJURA
HK$' 000 HK$' 000 HK$' 000 HK$' 000 HK$' 000
TR T T T Tt
Revenue WA 478,321 459,109 743,414 2,026,599 2,145,926
Profit/(loss) before tax BRI A/ 1R 302,144 (922,494) (769,826) 69,892 124,783
Income tax credit/(expense)  FFEBLER /(S H) (115) 16,249 66,059 (32,179) (34,631)
Profit/(loss) for L
the year/period W/ ) 302,029 (906,245) (703,767) 37,713 90,152
ASSETS, LIABILITIES AND TOTAL EQUITY EE -BEBENAES
31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December
2020 2019 2018 2017 2016
“BCER “ENE ZE )\ SELE “E-RE
+ZA=+-B +ZA=+—RH +ZH=Z+—-H +ZHA=+—H +ZH=+—H
HK$' 000 HK$' 000 HK$' 000 HK$' 000 HK$' 000
TR T Tk Tk T
Total assets WEE 255,821 439,095 1,307,390 2,509,552 2,594,815
Total liabilities BALK (934,750) (1,413,850) (1,400,349) (1,806,938) (2,043,443)
(Deficiency in assets)/ (KR /
total equity g (678,929) (974,755) (92,959) 702,614 551,372
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China Carbon Neutral Development Group Limited
(formerly known as Bisu Technology Group International Limited Lt 3R SEBEIBR G R 2 )
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